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Important

The board of directors (“Board”), supervisory committee
(“Supervisory Committee”) of Tianjin Capital Environmental
Protection Company Limited (the “Company”) and its Directors
(“Directors”),
management confirmed that the information in this 2008 interim

supervisors (“Supervisors”) and senior

report (“Interim Report”) does not contain any false information,
misleading statements or material omissions, and accept joint and
several responsibility for the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness
of the contents of this report.

The Chairman, Ms. Ma Baiyu, and the executive Director, Mr. Tan
Zhaofu, were unable to attend the Board meeting due to business
engagement and both have entrusted the Vice Chairman, Mr. Gu
Qifeng, to vote on their behalf. The executive Director, Mr. An
Pindong, was unable to attend the Board meeting due to business
engagement and has entrusted executive Director, Ms. Fu Yana, to
vote on his behalf. Mr. Ko Poming, an independent non-executive
Director, was unable to attend this board meeting due to a business
trip and he has entrusted Mr. Di Xiaofeng, an independent non-
executive Director to vote on his behalf.

The interim financial statements of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2008 are unaudited.

None of the major shareholders of the Company has misappropriated
the Company’s funds.

Ms. Ma Baiyu, the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Gu Qifeng, the
person in charge of the accounting function, and Ms. Chen Yinxing,
the person in charge of the accounting department of the Company,
have warranted the truthfulness and completeness of the financial
statements in this Interim Report.
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I. Company Profile

(I) Basic Information of the Company

Legal Chinese name

REBZERRBRNBR AR

Abbreviation of the legal Chinese name

BIZRIR

English name
Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited

Abbreviation of the English name
TCEPC

Place for listing of the A Shares
Shanghai Stock Exchange (the “SSE")

Short form of the A Shares
BIZIRIR

Stock code of the A Shares
600874

Place for listing of the H Shares
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE")

Short form of the H Shares
Tianjin Capital

Stock code of the H Shares
1065

Registered address

No. 45 Guizhou Road

Heping District

Tianjin

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")

Address of the Company’s office
TCEP Building, 76 Weijin South Road
Nankai District

Tianjin

The PRC

Postal code
300381

Website
http://www.tjcep.com

E-mail address
tjcep@tjcep.com
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Legal representative of the Company

Ms. Ma Baiyu

Secretary to the Board
Ms. Fu Yana

Telephone number
86-22-23930128

Facsimile number
86-22-23930126

E-mail
fu_yn@tjcep.com

Correspondence address

TCEP Building, 76 Weijin South Road
Nankai District

Tianjin

The PRC

Company Secretary
Mr. Lo Wai Keung, Eric

Telephone number
852-2218-0920

Facsimile number
852-2501-0028

E-mail
cosec@tjcep.com

Securities Affairs Representative
Ms. Guo Fengxian

Telephone number
86-22-23930128

Facsimile number
86-22-23930126

E-mail
guo_fx@tjcep.com

Correspondence address

TCEP Building, 76 Weijin South Road
Nankai District

Tianjin

The PRC
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Newspapers for the Company’s announcement: 6
Shanghai Securities News

Website designated by the China Securities Regulatory
Committee (“CSRC") for the disclosure of the Interim
Report:

http://www.sse.com.cn

Place where the Interim Report is available for
Inspection

Office of the Secretary to the Board at

16/F, TCEP Building, 76 Weijin South Road, Nankai District,
Tianjin, the PRC

Other basic information: 7>

Date of first registration of the Company
8 June 1993

The first registered address of the Company
No. 10 Hubei Road, Heping District, Tianjin, the PRC

Dates of changes in registration of the Company
26 August 1998, 8 January 2001,
23 July 2001 and 25 February 2003

Change in registered address of the Company
No. 45 Guizhou Road, Heping District, Tianjin, the PRC

Number of Business Licence of the Company
Qi He Jin Zong Zi No. 009079

Tax Registration Number of the Company:

State tax registration number
Guo Shui Jin Zi 120114103065501

Local tax registration number
Di Shui Jin Zi 120114103065501

Name of PRC auditor appointed by the Company
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong Tian Certified Public
Accountants Limited Company

Correspondence address of PRC auditor appointed by
the Company

11th Floor, PricewaterhouseCoopers Center

202 Hu Bin Road

Shanghai, the PRC

Name of International auditor appointed by the
Company
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Correspondence address of International auditor
appointed by the Company

22/F, Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited ¢ 2008 Interim Report
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(I1) Principal accounting data and financial highlights as
prepared in accordance with the PRC Accounting Standards

1.

Total assets

Equity interests (or shareholder’s equity)
Net assets value per share (Yuan)

Operating profit
Total profit
Net profit

Net profit after deduction of

extraordinary items

Basic earnings per Share (Yuan)

Basic earnings per Share after deduction
of extraordinary items (Yuan)

Diluted earnings per Share (Yuan)

Return ratio on net assets (%)

Net cash flow from operating activities
Net cash flow from operating

activities per Share

REE

AL (FRRER)

BRFEE (L)

BENE

MERE
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()
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()
(%)
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BEERYELNRDREFE

BREEEBELN
RenEFE

Major Accounting Information and Financial Benchmarks

#

#
)

(D) REFTESTHRUGRNTESHHEMN

MBEHRE

1 EREFBENYHER

Unit: ‘000 Currency: RMB
B T R AR

At the end
of the reporting
period

FHREHR

6,959,029.00
2,931,722.00
2.05

Reporting period
(January to June)
BEH (1-68)

128,168.00
128,129.00
95,643.00

95,672.00
0.07

0.07
0.07
3.26

218,804.00

0.15

Comparison between

the end of

the reporting period

At the end
of last year

LEERR

5,886,672.00
2,893,168.00
2.03

Corresponding
period
of last year

LERS

156,099.00
157,115.00
110,585.00

109,904.00
0.08

0.08
0.08
4.07

54,528.00

0.04

and the end
of last year
Increase/
Decrease (%)
EHERR
HEFEH
REBH(%)

18.22
1.33
0.99

Comparison
between the
reporting period
and corresponding
period

of last year
Increase/

Decrease (%)
ARERLLF

B AR (%)

-17.89
-18.45
-13.51

-12.95
125

-12.5

-12.5

Decreased by 0.81
percentage point
AL 081 HEHE
301.27

275

ARAXBRROERATDVO-ZEZNFEHIHRE
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Extraordinary profit and loss items and amounts:

Extraordinary profit and loss items

FEEMBRER

Profit and loss incurred from the disposal of non-current assets
Total

Difference in accounting standards between PRC and overseas

Amount for
the period
LN
According to PRC Accounting
Standards BhE e 95,643

Items adjusted according to
Hong Kong Accounting
Standard and the total:

According to Hong Kong
Accounting Standards

BREAEIEANBENNERA

BEASER 104,843

Pursuant to the requirements of HK(IFRIC) Int. 12, adjustments
were made retrospectively to the financial statements of H
Shares. The net profit from January to June 2008 was adjusted
upward to RMB9,200,000 and retained earnings at the end of
the period was adjusted upward to RMB76,579,000.

2 FKEMBERBAMDHE

Unit: ‘000 Currency: RMB
B T KR ARE

Amount from the beginning of the
year to the end of the reporting period

FPNEHREHHRRERE
FRBEERE RS -29
Bt -29

3. EAIEFTERER:

Unit: ‘000 Currency: RMB
B Tr BE: AR

Net profit Net asset

AR REE
Amount at the Amount
Amount at the beginning of at the end
previous period the period of the period
L8 LRIE HRE
110,585 2,893,168 2,931,722
127,847 2,960,548 3,008,301

RR(ES (AR EREREZES)
BE+ B NEREHRRRETEN
AR FHIEOSF1-67 F A B AR
9,200F 7T - A AREFREARE
76,579F JT
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Il. Changes in the Share Capital and ST RFTEDRBERENR
Shareholders

(I) Changes in the Shares (=) R E BB R K
During the reporting period, there was no change in the total number AR NN B IR B R A SRR
of shares and share structure of the Company. #i o
() Changes in the Shareholders (D) BREBR
1. Number of the Shareholders and their shareholdings 1v BREHBNEREBR
Total number of the Shareholders as at the end of the reporting e R B
period:
122,126 Shareholders, including 75 Shareholders holding H 122,126 + EHERETEE
Shares
Shareholdings of the top ten Shareholders Mt EBREERER
Increase/
Decrease Number of Number of
during the restricted Shares
reporting circulating pledged or
Nature of the Percentage  Total number period  Shares held frozen
Shareholders Shareholders of shareholding of Shares held BEHR BEERE ERGES
RR£# BRRME BRiA BREH BH  GRERGEE HRNHE
(%) (Shares) (Shares) (Shares) (Shares)
(%) (%) (&) (&) (%)
Tianjin Municipal Investment State-owned Shareholder 54.30 774,984,445 0 664,086,598 Pledged
Company Limited ("TMICL")  EIX i
RETHREBRAA 279,520,000
(ImBREl)
HKSCC Nominees Limited Others 23.68 338,014,900 -2,000 0 Unknown
BETREE(REAN)BRRR B4 A
Zhou Jun Others 0.41 5,862,800 65,545 0 Unknown
RE Bt A
Shenyang Railway Coal Dealing Others 0.21 3,000,000 -41,880 0 Unknown
Co,, Ltd. Eft A
EHSERREBHEERRA
China Southern Securities Co., Ltd. ~ Others 0.19 2,725,000 0 0 Unknown
BRERERRA Efh AA
BOC - Shanghai Shenzhen "300 Others 0.14 2,022,691 -338,300 0 Unknown
Inclex Securities Investment Fund ~ Eft: A

FERT-REER
N0EHEFRLEES

Wang Ming Li Others 0.11 1,565,200 -4,632 0 Unknown

THE Eft 3!

Shuren Timber (Shenzhen) Others 0.09 1,300,085 1,300,085 0 Unknown
Company Limited Efth A

BAKRE (R BRAR

Pan Zhi Hong Others 0.09 1,222,620 220,900 0 Unknown

AEL i il

China Construction Bank - Others 0.08 1,145,809 1,145,809 0 Unknown
Bosera Yuhu Securities £t A
Investment Fund

TERRRT-ERAE

ARAXBRROERATDVO-ZEZNFEHIHRE
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Shareholdings of the top ten non-restricted circulating

Shares Shareholders

Shareholders
RRERB

HKSCC Nominees Limited

TMICL

Zhou Jun

Shenyang Railway Coal Dealing
Co., Ltd.

China Southern Securities
Co., Ltd.

BOC - Shanghai Shenzhen
300 Index Securities
Investment Fund

Wang Ming Li

Shuren Timber (Shenzhen)
Company Limited

Pan Zhi Hong
China Construction Bank —

Bosera Yuhu Securities
Investment Fund

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited ¢ 2008 Interim Report
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EERARGEE (REA) BRAR
MHIRE
FAE

RS EE R KA SH AR AR

M EFARAR

FRERTT— 2 ERF 300 FB ¥
BHIEEES

TR

WAARE ORI BRAT]

EEAL

REERRIT-BRNE
EFNEESD

AT BERERGARORREREE

Number of
non-restricted
circulating
Shares held
BEEREKY
REBRGOEHE
(Shares)

(A%)
338,014,900
110,897,847
5,862,800
3,000,000

2,725,000

2,022,691

1,565,200

1,300,085

1,222,620

1,145,809

Type of Shares
BRHER

H Shares
H &

RMB Ordinary Shares
AR E R
RMB Ordinary Shares
AR E R
RMB Ordinary Shares
AREE B
RMB Ordinary Shares
AR E R

RMB Ordinary Shares
ARBELBER

RMB Ordinary Shares
ARME BT
RMB Ordinary Shares
AR E R
RMB Ordinary Shares
ARBEBER

RMB Ordinary Shares
AREEBIR



Notes on the connected relationship or parties acting
in concert among the above Shareholders

It is not certain whether there is any connected relationship
among the top 10 shareholders.

It is not certain whether there is any connected relationship
between the top 10 non-restricted circulating shares
shareholders and the top 10 shareholders.

(1) According to the register of members of the Company as
provided by HKSCC Nominees Limited, those H Shares
held by it were held on behalf of various clients. There
was no client who owned 5% or more interest in the
total share capital of the Company.

(2) The top ten Shareholders are not strategic investors of
the Company.

At EERERTRBROBRRIFRER
LU IR R BAR B R — AT B BA R AV L A

FIBRERI0BRRZMRAREFERS
BERAIR o

Al % IR B R 1R B AR () AR AN AT + 4
BRRZEARAMREFERMB AR

1. BEFEFREZERBAERA
A(HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED)
RENKREAM - EBFZHERRD
DREZERFPHMFEE - WEEH
&R % P 758 AR &) #RR 485 % 3k A
ot

2. HITRBERHTRARBHEKEK
e
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9



10

Shareholdings of the top ten restricted circulating
Shares Shareholder and the restriction conditions

Names of
restricted
circulating
Shares
Serial Shareholders
No. HBEREHH
B RORRER

1. TMICL
MRRE

Number of
restricted
circulating
Shares held
HEERERY
R #E
(Shares)

09

664,086,598

Listing and trading in
restricted circulating Shares

ARERERDATLTRSZER

Time Number
permitted of Shares
to be permitted
listed and to be listed
traded in and traded
the market in the market
AL HETLHRS
AN BAZE
(Unit: Shares)
(f2)
20 April 2009 664,086,598
2009F4A20R

2. Changes in the controlling Shareholder and the actual
controllers of the Company

During the reporting period, there were no changes in the
controlling Shareholder and the actual controllers of the

Company.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited ¢ 2008 Interim Report

At EERERTROBRRERBERR
Rt

Restriction conditions

RERHE

All the Shares of the Company held by TMICL shall not
be listed, traded or transferred within 12 months
commencing from the date of the implementation of
the Share Segregation Reform Proposal of the
Company.

Upon expiry of the aforesaid commitment period,
the number of Shares sold through SSE shall not
exceed 5% of the total number of shares of the
Company within 12 months and shall not exceed
10% within 24 months.

FRENARRARNERESERESRERZBE
NEARTLHRZAEES -

EREAGHRRRR  BRLRAMBRIHERD -
HEHEEARARDAENLAET —BAATER
AOZh E-TREAARTEBBESZT o

2y ERRRREBEZESIAZERR

AN A TR R BRI AR
BRERE -



Substantial Shareholders’ and other persons’ interests
and/or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company

As at 30th June 2008, the following entity, other than a Director,
Supervisor or chief executive of the Company, had interests and/
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”):

Number and

class of securities class of securities

Name of Shareholder Capacity
RREARE 54 BEHERER
(Note 1)
(5£1)
TMICL Beneficial owner 774,984,445 Shares
MBI E BEmBEAA

Atlantis Investment
Management Ltd.

ISIS Asset Management Plc.

HSBC Asset Management
(Hong Kong) Limited

ELREETE (FE)
BRRA

Note:

Investment Manager
REKE

Investment Manager
RERE

Investment Manager

RERKE

774,984,4450%

29,500,000
H Shares (L)
29,500,000 fi%
HAR (47 &)

17,286,000
H Shares (L)
17,286,000 fi%
Hi% (5 2)

20,000,000
H Shares (L)
20,000,000 %
HAZ (7 2)

1. The letter “L” represents the entity’s long positions in the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, there is no person (other than a Director,
Supervisor or chief executive of the Company) who, as at 30th
June 2008, had an interest and/or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

FTERRREMALTRARARRG REE
BROFHREER KRR

HZE2008%6A30H U TEE (KQFA
BE  EESRSTHRABRIN RAA
AR AR RARR (D P HE B IR IR (5 I 85
EEMY (BAEOFELTE) ([BH R
E&Bl]) FE336 IR EFENELM ERL
BRSNS HKA

Approximate
Approximate percentage
percentage in the total issued

in the relevant share capital of

the Company
RE B E 285 RAQAS#HT
HEAE L ARANBABIL

71.28% 54.30%
71.28% 54.30%
8.68% 2.07%
8.68% 2.07%
5.08% 1.21%
5.08% 1.21%
5.88% 1.40%
5.88% 1.40%

BEE -
1. [HEIEZEBRBROTNGERE -

B bt &SN - 220086 H30H - A
T(RRREE EFARSTHRARR
SN AR BB An R ARRE B {0 R BB AR E
EH R EGDIEIBRREFENER
MR EE R/ HARE -
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M

(m

Directors, Supervisors and the Senior
Management

Changes in the shareholding of the Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management

There was no change in the shareholding of the Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management during the reporting period.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and the Company's chief executives’
interests and/or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations

As at 30th June 2008, the interests and/or short positions of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which would have to be notified to the Company and the HKSE
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or otherwise, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, to be
notified to the Company and the HKSE were as follows:

The Company/

name of
associated
corporations
Name b NN Capacity
%A HEZE AR 4%
Director
=
Wang Zhanying The Company Beneficial
FhAHR RN owner
BEmfEBA
Supervisor
E=x
Nie Youzhuang The Company Beneficial
A AN/N owner
BEaEBEAA

Note:  The letter “L” represents the person’s long positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations.

T EF EFHNERTEA
g

(D ES ESNSREBAEFRED

BEHRRARARESF  EFRAQREEARR
MR BB -

(D) ARFES  EBERESTRAERER
AISEABEZERSD - AERORESS
WERK KRR

MR200846HA30H * ARAIEE - EENES
THABRADRAHERELXE (& RESH
N EAE KB EXVER) BBt ~ B K&
BERHEREES LB EGEEXVEETR
8P HAMERNRNA MM N ER (BEES
MEEKIEEFEREEEEOERS A
) - AREES K EKRIE 352K 870
ZIGPIFTEM SR MR - ERELET
BMABHCETRARESHTELSRIZWIZE
STADME AR RAB R AT EMERS AR
mE

Approximate
percentage

in the total issued
share capital

of the Company/

associated

corporations

Number RARAT

and class 1EEEE

of securities ERTEREATH

EHHBERER BMAED
(Note)
(Af)

6,850 0.00048
domestic
Shares
(non-restricted
circulating Shares) (L)
6,850 RN E IR
(PR & R amAR ()
(2FB)

959 0.00007
domestic
Shares

(non-restricted
circulating Shares) (L)
959 IRIAE iR
(\ERE R RBARLG)
(2F8)

Kiat : FERFBIRBERA L AIKE G EERLY - 48
BR O RAEFEEZTPAFRE -
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Supervisors or chief
executives of the Company, who, as at 30th June 2008, had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which would have to
be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or otherwise, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, to be notified to the
Company and the HKSE.

(111) Recruitment or removal of the Directors, Supervisors and

Senior Management

The term of appointment of Mr. Wang Xiangfei and Mr. Gao Zongze,
both independent non-executive Directors of the Fourth Board of
the Company, expired on 15 April 2008.

At the 16th meeting of the Fourth Board of the Company held on
26th February 2008, the “Resolution on the Nomination of Mr. Xie
Rong and Mr. Di Xiaofeng as Candidates for Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Fourth Board of the Company” was
considered and approved. At the 2008 First Extraordinary General
Meeting of the Company held on 15 April 2008, the resolutions
regarding the election of Mr. Xie Rong and Mr. Di Xiaofeng as
independent non-executive Directors of the Fourth Board of the
Company were passed, with both of their term of employment
starting from 16 April 2008 until 18 December 2009. Upon
consideration and approval by the general meeting, Mr. Xie Rong
and Mr. Di Xiaofeng were also appointed as members of the the
Board’s Nomination Committee, Remuneration and Assessment
Committee and Audit Committee. Mr. Di Xiaofeng is the chairman
of the Remuneration and Assessment Committee and Mr. Xie Rong
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee, their term of
appointment is the same as that of their being independent non-
executive Directors.

On 29 April 2008, the 18th meeting of the Fourth Board of the
Company considered and approved the resolution regarding the
resignation of Mr. Kwan Man Fai as the Company Secretary in Hong
Kong and the appointment of Mr. Lo Wai Keung, Eric as the new
Company Secretary in Hong Kong. The Company Secretary in Hong
Kong, Mr. Kwan Man Fai, resigned due to job transfer and the Board
of the Company has approved the resignation of Mr. Kwan Man
Fai. Pursuant to the relevant requirements and the Company’s needs
in the Hong Kong capital market, the Company has appointed Mr.
Lo Wai Keung, Eric as the new Company Secretary in Hong Kong
from 30th April 2008 until 28th December 2009.

PR EE & SN - N2008F6H30F © R A&
= EFEASSTRABHMERARALEME
MAEE (E& BB 5 RHEGHHEXVER)
MR - ARG REBE ST HEERIERE S
RHEIEPIEXVEETRSD BN EAME R
REIRBRAHNEAEREIORR - HARIER
# M HIE EDIFE 30215 LN RGP TR Z &
Efftrh ziEss  HARBLEHRUEBCED
RAEFETEFRHZBETIDHEAR
B R P 2 (R SRR o

(D) FRABRALATNES  ESREREE

ABHER

RARENEEEFEBIFNTEE TR
HRETFIBEAT2008F4A15FEHER -
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IV. Report of the Board

() An overview of the overall operations of the the Company

and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) during the reporting
period

During the first half year of 2008, the Group recorded income from
principal operations of RMB518,968,000, representing an increase
of 12.38% over the corresponding period of 2007. The increase in
income from principal operations was mainly attributable to the
increase in the Group’s sewage water processing scale as compared
to the same period last year, of which, the volume of charged water
of the Hangzhou subsidiary increased significantly, and the Wendeng
subsidiary and Xi‘an subsidiary both commenced commercial
operation during the reporting period. During the reporting period,
the Group processed a total of 308,629,000 cubic metres of sewage
water, an increase of 17.46% over the same period last year. The
Group's tap water business supplied 19,042,000 cubic metres of
water in the first half of the year, an increase of 15.04% over the
same period last year, maintaining its upward momentum. In the
first half of 2008, the Group's toll road business recorded a revenue
of RMB36,930,000, representing an increase of 5.88% over the same
period last year. During the reporting period, the Group recorded a
net profit of RMB95,643,000, representing an increase of 13.51%
over the corresponding period of 2007.

The decrease in net profit was mainly attributable to the significant
increase in financial costs of the Group by 58.64% over the same
period last year from RMB60,854,000 to RMB96,538,000 during
the reporting period. The increase in financial costs was attributed
to: firstly, the re-measurement of convertible interests according to
the amortised cost method under the new accounting standards in
the first half of last year, resulting in a write down financial costs of
approximately RMB17,000,000, which lowered the financial costs
for the same period last year; and secondly, an increase in the Group’s
bank borrowings in the first half of this year compared to last year;
in addition, the interest rate for bank loans has increased in the first
half of the year.
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In July 2005, the Municipal Government of Tianjin issued the
“Administrative Measures on the Licensed Operation of Municipal
Public Utilities of Tianjin” (“Administrative Measures”). Rule 22
of the Administrative Measures stipulates that: existing municipal
public utilities projects within the required scope can be directly
granted to the original operators for licensed operations after a review
by the municipal construction administrative authority and the
approval by the Municipal People’s Government. The municipal
construction administrative authority will sign a licensed operation
agreement with the operator.

The Company has submitted an application to the Tianjin
construction administrative authority to apply for the licensed
operation of four sewage water treatment plants in the central area
of Tianjin after the implementation of the Administrative Measures
in November 2005. The Company expects that the licensed
operation agreement will be signed in 2008 and the Company will
make announcement according to the relevant requirements in due
course.

The main requirements in respect of licensed operations under the
Administrative Measures are as follow: licensed operators for new
projects are generally determined by way of public tender; the
municipal construction administrative authority is authorised to
organise and implement the licensed operations of municipal public
utility services; licensed operators shall follow the price and service
charge standards for municipal public utility services of the PRC and
Tianjin; the term of licensed operations shall not exceed 30 years ;
existing municipal public utilities projects can be directly granted to
the original operators for licensed operations after a review by the
municipal construction administrative authority and the approval
by the Municipal People’s Government and the municipal
construction administrative authority will sign a licensed operation
agreement with the operator.
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(1) Operations of the principal businesses of the Group

1.

The

principal business by industry

1 EEEBITEBRER

(D) AEMELXEBNEERR

Unit: Thousand dollar

Currency: RMB

Bfy:Fx
WE AR
Increase/ Increase/
decrease of  decrease of Increase/
operating operating decrease of
income as cost as gross profit
compared compared margin as
over the over the compared over
corresponding corresponding the corresponding
period of period of period of
last year last year last year
By industry Operating  Operating Gross profit EXUA R EF S
or by products income cost margin i3 i3 i3
PIEIIER EXHA EXAK RS BHEH EEE S BHEH
(%) (%) (%) (%)
By industry
PikRES
Income from sewage  JSKEEHRA 440,689 198,990 54.85 7.28 13.23 Decreased by 2.37
water treatment percentage points
WP23TEER &
Toll fee income BEWA 36,930 7,404 79.95 5.88 -3.01 Increased by 1.84
percentage points
EMmsEER %
Income from provision  BRKHKMA 18915 12,50 33.89 43.63 64.45 Decreased by 8.36
of tap water percentage points
HD8.I6MEE D
Income from water RKEEERRAKKA 22,434 17,770 20.79 1185.62 188.05 Increased hy 274.31

recycling pipe
connection and
water supply

Note:

M

@

3

During the current period, the total sales revenue of the five largest
customers of the Group was RMB458,500,000, representing 88% of
the Group’s total sales revenue.

During the reporting period, the operating income and operating
costs of the tap water business increased by 43.63% and 64.45%
respectively compared to the same period last year. This was, on the
one hand, due to the supply of 19,042,000 cubic metres of water by
the tap water business in the first half of the year, an increase of
15.04% over the same period last year and on the other hand, due to
the taking up of the water charge by the Qujing subsidiary from 1
January 2008 which has resulted in an increase of operating cost. The
Quijing subsidiary also increased the price of tap water accordingly,
resulting in an increase in both revenue and cost but a decrease in
gross profit.

During the reporting period, the operating income and operating
costs of the water recycling pipe connection and water supply business
increased by 1,185.62% and 188.05% respectively over the same
period last year. The increase was due to the inclusion of the income
from water recycling pipe connection in “income from other
operations” in the unaudited data in the interim report of last year
and its reclassification into “income from principal business” in the
current period in accordance with the opinion on auditing adjustments
made by the auditor last year, which resulted in a higher year-on-
year increase. Compared with the adjusted data of the same period
last year, the operating income and operating costs of the current
period increased by 60.96% and 91.26% respectively from the same
period last year, which was mainly attributed to the significant increase
in the business volume of the water recycling pipe connection business.
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2.

(111) The Company’s investments

1.

Principal businesses by geographical locations

Region

Tianjin
Guizhou
Qujing
Honghu
Wendeng

Hangzhou
Fuyan
Xi‘an

Baoying

Note:

(1)  Operating income of the Hangzhou subsidiary increased by 49.28%
over the same period last year, which was mainly attributed to the
significant increase in volume of its charged water;

(2) The Wendeng subsidiary commenced commercial operation from 1
January 2008; and

(3)  The Xi‘an subsidiary commenced commercial operation from 17 May

2008.

&

RiE
=)
75
P

&

M
505
%

Utilisation of the proceeds

The Company raised proceeds amounted to RMB1,165.39
million by issuing A Share Convertible Bonds in 2004 and
RMB823.902 million was sold back in 2005. All proceeds raised,
totalling RMB341.49 million, was used as at 31 December 2007.

2. FEEXBIBEBERR

Operating
income

LN

381,416
16,174
26,864

3,105
7,328

56,480
14,399
8,106

5,096
i

Unit: Thousand dollar
Currency: RMB

B T
BE:ARY

Increase/
decrease

in operating
income compared
to the same
period last year
BEERA

b £ EE R

(%)

0.45
3.04
31.11
-17.13

No business operations

in the same period
last year

F R HA
REEES

49.28

17.86

No business operations

in the same period
last year
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2. Use of proceeds on project undertaken

Name of project
undertaken

AHIEE BH

Proposed investment
amount
R A S
Any change
in the project
EE®FIEE
Actual investment
amount
ERBASHE
Progress of project

HBEE

Conform to project
progress?

ERNAFEEE

Reasons for not
conforming to
project progress

RIEFFEER

59
Earnings from projects

BB WEER

Construction project
of Xianyanglu Sewage
Water Treatment Plant

RSB 5K EER T REA
62,000

No

=

=
11,712

As of today, a small part of
construction project has not yet
completed and at their final
stage. At the end of 2007,
preliminary estimation were
made to that part of
uncompleted project and a
financial budget was completed.
At present, completion
examination of this construction-
in-progress is still underway.

HEEAMANBY IRRT
T BEEKERE - 2007FK
R E o R TIREITIEM -
TR T PERE - BT > L&
BIRR IR TIEDNEET
q:: °

No

P
[=}

Due to the outbreak of SARS in 2003 and the complicated purchasing procedures of foreign

2

Jizhuangzhi Sewage
Water Treatment Plant
(Expansion) work
(including the water
drainage project near
Dong Nan Jiao)
LEFFRKEER
(ER)IR(ER

X —FHKIE)

32,100
No

I~

[
13,485

As of today, a small part of
construction project has not yet
completed and at their final
stage. At the end of 2007,
preliminary estimation were
made to that part of
uncompleted project and a
financial budget was completed.
At present, completion
examination of this construction-
in-progress is still underway.

BEEHMANEsIRERR
T BEERERE  2007FK
Yz H R TI2EITIENM
TR T MHSRE - BAT UL
BIRRI R ITIEDELET
q:: °

No

Py
=

ABEEEAER

Unit: Ten Thousand dollar
Currency: RMB

B Bx

WE:ARY
Construction
project of Beicang
Sewage Water
Treatment Plant
E&FK Total
REBIEHER &st
14,900 109,000
No —
7:('? —
8,952 34,149

As of today, a small part
of construction project
has not yet completed
and at their final stage. At
the end of 2007,
preliminary estimation
were made to that part
of uncompleted project
and a financial budget
was completed. At
present, completion
examination of this
construction-in-progress
is still underway.
BZREAHEANEBIT -
BARTEL  BEKERE

B 2007 F R LA
RETLRETER @ %
BXTETSRE - BT
HERTRERTIRET
EDEETH -

Yes

=
rE -

invested banks, etc, the progress of construction of the two projects under construction above
experienced delays relative to the planned progress as set out in the share issuing prospectus.
Subsequently, the construction went smoothly without further delays.

20034 SARS ~ SNERTTIRBIEFERETRE ULMETRZRTRNERERLE -
STPENTEEZHBIRE - K12 TRIENETREMHNEIE -

Since three projects under construction have not yet been examined upon completion during

the reporting period, they are charging in accordance with the “Sewage Water Processing Interim
Service Agreement”, therefore cannot be compared to the predicted earnings set on in the

prospectus.
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WE - BT EREEHRBE PR EETHLE

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited ¢ 2008 Interim Report



3. Projects made out of funds other than proceeds raised

During the reporting period, the Company contributed RMB2
million to establish Tianjin Haiying Environmental Engineering
Technology Consulting Limited, the shares of which are 100%
held by the Company. The scope of operations of this company
are: environmental treatment works, civil engineering, town
planning and related consultation projects, surveying design,
tender agency, construction projects management and
technical services.

During the reporting period, the Company increased its
contribution in Jing Hai Capital Water Company Limited by
RMB 10 million for use in construction works.

During the reporting period, the Company contributed
RMB270 million to establish Xi’an Capital Water Company
Limited, the shares of which are 100% held by the Company.
This company has acquired Xian Sewage Water Treatment Plant
and Xian Beishigiao Purification Center by way of open tender.

(IV) Liquidity and financial resources

V)

There were no seasonal changes in the Group’s borrowings
requirement. As at 30th June 2008, there were no outstanding bank
loans and interests nor repayable upon maturity. Details of the bank
borrowings of the Group are stated in the notes to the condensed
consolidated financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2008 of the Company.

In accordance with the Accounting Report prepared in accordance
with the PRC Enterprise Accounting Standards, as at 30 June 2008,
the gearing ratio was 56.21%.

Foreign exchange risk

Main receivables and payable items of the Group are denominated
in RMB. Therefore, there is no material impact on the Group’s
operation resulting from the fluctuations in foreign exchange rates,
and there was no hedge activity made in respect of the foreign
exchange risks.

(V1) Employee and Emolument Policy

As at 30 June 2008, the Company had 556 employees. During the
reporting period, remuneration paid to staff of the Company was
approximately RMB 19,476,000. The Company determined the
income of the management in accordance with their management
skills, the content of the management work completed, the risk and
responsibility borne by the management and corporate economic
effectiveness. The Company adopted a salary-point system for wages.
For operating staff, their incomes were determined in accordance
with their skill level, labour intensity and difficulty and corporate
economic effectiveness. Wages were paid according to their posts
and skills.
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(V) Industry Analysis and Operation Plans of the Company for

the Second Half of the Year

In the first half of 2008, under the impact of various factors, the
austerity macroeconomic adjustment policies of the central
government increased the costs of indirect financing of enterprises.
Inflation also drove up the price of various production elements.
The capital market remained at its low and sudden natural disasters
caused part of the financial resources to divert towards rebuilding.

Competition in the PRC water services market is fierce, with
enterprises of various nature entering and leaving the market. Under
the twofold pressure stemming from competition and the austerity
environment, integration trend of the industry is set to increase;
strategic cooperation, merger and acquisition and reorganization
activities will become more frequent. As the pressure of the central
government on emission reduction increases, local governments
place more and more importance on project efficiency and quality.
Demand for “restructuring towards the service industry” has surfaced
in the industry. Forms of project such as DBO (design-building-
operation) and entrusted operation are reassuming their importance.
This has created better opportunities for development for operators
focusing on technology and efficiency.

The Group's future development strategies and operation plans of
2008 have been described and explained in the 2007 annual report.
In the second half of the year, the Company will go through with its
set operation plans to increase efforts on market development and
to further regulate operations while at the same time operates each
water plants well. It will also ensure quality and quantity in
completing various construction assignments and endeavour to
achieve its strategic goals of becoming a leading domestic and
internationally acclaimed professional water investment company.

(Viil)Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at
30 June 2008.

(IX) Rights of Debt

(X)

(XD

As at 30 June 2008, pursuant to the “Sewage Water Processing
Agreement” and the “Sewage Water Processing Interim Service
Agreement” and “Sewage Water Plants Fee Agreement” entered
into between the Company and Sewage Water Company, total
receivables and long-term receivables of the Company from Sewage
Water Company amounted to RMB1,139,344,000, approximately
13.32% of the total market capitalization of the Company as at 30
June 2008.

Charge on assets

The Group did not charge any assets of the Company or its
subsidiaries as at 30 June 2008.

Acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries

During the reporting period, the Company did not acquire or dispose
any of its subsidiaries.
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V. Major Events

(I) Corporate governance of the Company

During the reporting period, the Company strictly complied with
the requirements under the Company Law, Securities Law of the
PRC, the relevant rules and regulations of the CSRC, the provisions
under the relevant listing rules of SSE and the “Code on Corporate
Governance Practices” as set out in the Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE (the “Listing
Rules”). The Company devoted a lot of effort to improve its
corporate governance structure and established a contemporary
corporate system so as to standardize the operation of the Company.

The Company authorizes the secretary to the Board to disclose
information, handle visits and enquiries from the Shareholders and
investors, and report the relevant matters to the relevant supervisory
authorities in a timely and accurate manner.

During the reporting period, the Company held 7 Board’s meetings
pursuant to the Articles of Association and the Rules Governing the
Procedures of Meetings of the Company. Out of the 7 Board meetings
held, Mr. Xie Rong, an independent non-executive director, was
absent from the 18th Meeting of the Fourth Board held on 29 April
2008 due to business affairs, and have authorised Mr. Ko Poming,
an independent non-executive Director to attend and vote as his
representatives. For the 21st Meeting of the Fourth Board held on
21 August 2008, the Chairman, Ms. Ma Baiyu, and the executive
Director, Mr. Tan Zhaofu were unable to attend due to business
engagement and both have entrusted the Vice Chairman, Mr. Gu
Qifeng, to vote on their behalf. The executive Director, Mr. An
Pindong, was unable to attend the Board Meeting too due to business
engagement and has entrusted executive Director, Ms. Fu Yana, to
vote on his behalf. Mr. Ko Poming, an independent non-executive
Director, was also unable to attend this Board meeting due to a
business trip and he has entrusted Mr. Di Xiaofeng, an independent
non-executive Director to vote on his behalf. Save for the above, in
the other five Board meetings, all 9 Directors attended and voted in
the meetings. Independent non-excutive Directors did not make
any objection against the proposals and issues as considered in the
Board meetings during the reporting period. During the reporting
period, the Company has held two shareholders’ general meeting,
being the first extraordinary general meeting of 2007 held on 15
April 2008 and the 2007 annual general meeting held on 17 June
2008.

The meeting (for reviewing the 2008 interim results) of the Audit
Committee and the Eighth meeting of the Fourth Supervisory
Committee were held on 20 August 2008, to consider and approve
this Interim Report.
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() Implementation of the profit appropriation plan during

the reporting period

In the 2007 Annual General Meeting, the 2007 profit appropriation
plan was considered and approved. The Company made a payment
of RMBO0.04 (including tax) in cash per Share to holders of domestic
Shares and RMB0.04 (equivalent to HK$0.045218) per Share to
holders of H Shares. The Company published an announcement
relating to divided payment to domestic shareholders in the PRC on
28 July 2008. The shareholding registration date was 31 July 2008.
The Company also published an announcement in relation to the
convening of the 2007 Annual General Meeting in Hong Kong on
18 June 2008. The shareholding registration date was 16 May 2008.
Distributions of the dividends to the holders of the domestic Shares
and H Shares have been completed on 7 August 2008.

(lln) significant litigation and arbitration

The Company has no significant litigation or arbitration during the
reporting period.

(IV) Asset transaction

V)

In accordance with the “Resolution regarding the acquisition and
licensed operation of two sewage treatment plants in Xian”
considered and passed at the 14th meeting of the Fourth Board of
the Company, the Company acquired the Xian Sewage Water
Treatment Plant and Xian Beishiqiao Purification Center from Xian
Infrastructure Investment and Construction Company during the
reporting period. Such assets have a book value of RMB233,497,200
and an assessed value of RMB304,996,800. The actual purchase
amount was RMB643,000,000. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement in relation to the Acquisition and Licensed
Operation of Two Sewage Water Treatment Plants in Xian dated 21
December 2007 and the Company’s announcement in relation to
the Discloseable Transaction in respect of the Acquisition and
Licensed Operation of Xian Sewage Water Treatment Plants dated
19 March 2008 which were published in “Shanghai Securities News”.
On 17 May 2008, the acquisition of the above assets was completed.
The net profit contributed to the Company by the assets from the
date of acquisition to the end of the reporting period was
RMB1,820,000.

Significant connected transactions

The Company has no significant connected transactions during the
reporting period.

(VI) Custody

The Company did not provide any custodian during the reporting
period.

(VII) Subcontracting

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited ¢ 2008 Interim Report

The Company did not provide any subcontracting during the
reporting period.

(D) HREMBENFEIEARATER
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(Vlll)Leasing (N) HERER

The Company did not have any leasing matters during the reporting R|EBA - ARFEEEEIE -
period.
(1X) Guarantee (h) BRER

Unit: dollar  Currency: RMB
B B B ARE

External guarantee granted by the Company
(excluding guarantee provided to the subsidiaries of the Company)

ERRHMERER (FREHERFAANER)

Total amount of guarantee granted during the reporting period 0

BEMANERBEEA

Total amount of outstanding guarantee as at the end of the reporting period (A) 0

BEMRERBEAA)

Guarantee provided to the subsidiaries of the Company

ERAHERTFARANERER

Total amount of guarantee provided to the subsidiaries of the Company during the reporting period 7,600
REHRHERFRAAERELRA

Total amount of outstanding guarantee provided to the subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period (B) 88,591.5
FERRYZERT ARERBESH(B)

Total amount of guarantee granted by the Company
(including guarantee provided to the subsidiaries of the Company)

FRARERBERR (ERHERTFAANER)

Total amount of guarantee (A+B) 88,591.5
FERBE(A+B)

Percentage of the total amount of guarantee to the net assets of the Company 30.22%

BEROBEARRAFEEN LA

Of which:
Hep

Amount of guarantee provided to the Shareholders, actual controller and other related parties (C) 0

RER  BREHARERE T REEROEE(C)

Amount of guarantee provided directly or indirectly to the borrowers with gear ratio of over 70% (D) 0

ERSAZEAEEABEBBIONMEERYRIREHNEREREED)

Total amount of guarantee exceeds 50% of net assets (E) 0

EREEHRAFEENSBONTHE)

Total amount of the above three guarantees (C+D+E) 0
T =BEREEAF(C+D+E)
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(X) Trust arrangement

The Company did not make any trust arrangements during the
reporting period.

(XI) Implementation of commitments

Undertakings made by the Company or shareholders holding more
than 5% of the shares during the reporting period or until the
reporting period

Commitment of share reform and implementation:

(1) Pursuant to the requirements under Article 27 of the
“Administration Measures in respect of Share Segregation
Reform of Listed Companies”, all the original non-circulating
Shares shall not be listed, traded or transferred within 12
months commencing from the date of implementation of the
Share Segregation Reform.

(2) TMICL has undertaken that the total number of Shares sold
through the SSE shall not exceed 5% of the total number of
issued Shares of the Company within 12 months after the expiry
of the above restricted period, while the total number of Shares
sold through the SSE shall not exceed 10% of the total number
of issued Shares of the Company within 24 months after the
expiry of the above restricted period.

(3) In the event if the amount of Shares sold through the SSE
attained 1% of the total number of issued Shares of the
Company, an announcement shall be made within two working
days of the occurrence of such event.

As at the end of the reporting period, the relevant shareholders
have implemented all the undertakings in the Share Segregation
Reform.

(XII) Punishments and rectification to the Company, Directors,

Supervisors, Senior Management, Shareholders and Actual
Controllers

During the reporting period, the Company, Directors, Supervisors,
Senior Management, Shareholders and actual controller of the
Company were not subject to any investigation, administrative
punishments, criticisms by CSRC or public reprimand by the SSE.

(X1I)Other major events and analysis on its impacts and solutions

During the reporting period, there were no other major events of
the Company.
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Items

ES|

Announcement relating to

the discharge of the pledge
and the pledge of part of the
shares held by the Company’s

first major shareholder
BRNE—RBEREB D
BEEARERNDE

Announcement relating to
the provision of guarantee
in respect of a loan to
Wendeng Capital Water
Company Limited

BN BB BIRKH
BRRREFRHR
BROQSE

Announcement of the
resolutions passed at the
16th meeting of the
Fourth Board of Directors
EMEEEEETAR

N N
R N

Notice of the 2008
first extraordinary
general meeting

R BF2008F 5 — R
EERRAGH @D

Announcement relating to
usual trade volume of
A shares

ABBER

><\

CHERERBNE

(XIV)Index for disclosable information

Names and pages of the

publishing newspapers

HENRT EBRIRE

Page D56 of

“Shanghai Securities News”

(E/8% %) D56HR

Page A17 of

“Shanghai Securities News”

(EBBEHFRAITIR

Page D14 of

“Shanghai Securities News”

(EBEFHHR)D14MR

Page D14 of

“Shanghai Securities News”

(E/BEFR)D14MR

Page D24 of

“Shanghai Securities News”

(LBEHK) D24

(tE) E R X E R

Dates of
Publication

SE AR

22 January 2008

2008514 22H

28 January 2008

20084 1A 28H

27 February 2008

2008F2H27H

27 February 2008

200852 A27H

5 March 2008

200843 A5H

REAEXR

Website
HENEBABURBERR

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)

FZ A8 www.sse.com.cn
B 32 FT 48 i www . hkex.com.hk
MK AR ARG

http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)

A www.sse.com.cn
B8 <2 BT 48 uhwww.hkex.com.hk
A AR A R
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)
LR www.sse.com.cn
B 32 BT 495 www.hkex.com.hk
MM LB ERD A
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)
A www.sse.com.cn

B 32 T 48 i www . hkex.com.hk
AEHEEDBER DR
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)
A www.sse.com.cn
B <2 BT 48 Uh www . hkex.com.hk
AR EN A IR A R A8k
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
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Names and pages of the

Items publishing newspapers
ES | HENBRTEBRIRE
Discloseable transaction Page D17 of

in respect of the acquisition ~ “Shanghai Securities News”
and licensed operation of

Xian Sewage Water

Treatment Plants

BRI AR (LBEFH)DI7HR
7o %5 KB IR Y
BATRERXHNDE

Announcement relating
to the H shares
of the Company

ARRBHERASE

Date of convening meeting
of the board of directors

EXEeRAHAY

Meeting information
relating to the 2008
first extraordinary
general meeting

R R]20085F % — R
BERRASEHER

Circular relating to the
H shares of the Company

AR B HMR® &
Announcement relating Page A17 of
to the listing of restricted “Shanghai Securities News”

circulating shares

ARERFNRAR (BEBEFWAITIR
FHRE

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited ¢ 2008 Interim Report

Dates of
Publication

SUEA=E:

19 March 2008

200843 A 19H

1 April 2008

2008F4A1H

1 April 2008

200847 1H

4 April 2008

2008F 4 F4H

4 April 2008

20084 4H

14 April 2008

2008547144

Website
HENEBPARERBERRT

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)

F R #uhwww.sse.com.cn
B <2 BT 48 uh www.hkex.com.hk
BB AR A R A8
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)

E BB www.sse.com.cn

B 32 BT #8 uh www.hkex.com.hk
ML EDNBERA B
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)

& 7B 2 T8 I www.hkex.com.hk
AMEHEENBER A RH
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)
R A www.sse.com.cn

B <2 BT 48 0 www.hkex.com.hk
RN BBR D A
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)

F R www.sse.com.cn

B 22 AT 48 uh www.hkex.com.hk
MK AR D R
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)
R www.sse.com.cn

B 32 BT #8 uh www.hkex.com.hk :
AEHEEDNBER A RH
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/



Items

ES

Legal opinion regarding
the 2008 first extraordinary

general meeting

20084 5 — R EGEF
BEASHEZERE

Announcement relating to
postponement of the
publication of the 2007
annual report and 2008
first quarterly report
B AL A T 52007
Eri&iﬂzoo%
EEREHDE

Announcement of the
resolutions passed at the
2008 first extraordinary

general meeting

20084 % — R
BRAGRERE

Announcement in relation

to the transfer of state-owned
assets of the controlling
shareholder of the Company
BRARRRIZERER
HAEERSEEENAE

Annual report of the Company

KRBFR

Names and pages of the
publishing newspapers

HENBET EBRIRE

Page D8 of
“Shanghai Securities News”

(E/§7E 7 3) D8R

Page D8 of
“Shanghai Securities News”

(LB % 3) D8R

Page A49 of
“Shanghai Securities News”

(EBEFHR) AR

Dates of
Publication

SUEA=E:

16 April 2008

200848168

16 April 2008

2008F4716H

16 April 2008

2008547 16H

28 April 2008

200844 F28H

30 April 2008

2008F4 A30H

REAEXR

Website
HENEHARERBRERRT

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)
A www.sse.com.cn
B %2 A 48 uhwww.hkex.com.hk
AR EN A IR A Al Ak
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)

R www.sse.com.cn
B 32 B 49 9k www.hkex.com.hk :
MEVENBARR AL

http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)
XA www.sse.com.cn

B 32 FT 48 i www . hkex.com.hk
AR EBAR R A4
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)
A www.sse.com.cn
B <2 A 48 ihwww.hkex.com.hk
AR EN A IR A R A Uk
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)
R www.sse.com.cn
B 22 BT 48 0k www.hkex.com.hk :
AEMENBARR A
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
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Items

ES

Notice of 2007
annual general meeting

BB F20075
FEBRRAGHEN

Description of the use
of funds by controlling
shareholders and other
related parties

% iR AR 3R e E A B 75
HERESRREERH

First quarterly report

Highlights of annual report

FHRHE

Announcement of

the resolutions passed

at the Eighteenth Meeting
of the Fourth Board

of Directors
FNEEEE
ETN\REFRERE
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Names and pages of the
publishing newspapers

HENBRTEBRIRE

Page D56 of
“Shanghai Securities News”

(L/BE ) D56HR

Page D56 of
“Shanghai Securities News”

(L/E7E 5 3R) D56HR

Pages D55 and D56 of
“Shanghai Securities News”

(/8% %) D55 D56k

Page D56 of
“Shanghai Securities News”

(LB %) D56HR

Dates of
Publication

SUEA=E:

30 April 2008

200848308

30 April 2008

20084 A30H

30 April 2008

200854 A30H

30 April 2008

200848308

30 April 2008

20084 A30H

Website
HENEBPARERBERRT

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)
FZE Y www.sse.com.cn
B <2 BT 48 uh www.hkex.com.hk
RN BB R D R4
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)

E BB www.sse.com.cn
B 32 BT 48 Uk www . hkex.com.hk
MK ENBER A B
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)
ER vk www.sse.com.cn

B 32 BT #8 5k www.hkex.com.hk :
AMEM KB ER A RH
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)
FXE Y www.sse.com.cn
B <2 B 48 5h www.hkex.com.hk
RN BB R D A
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)

R www.sse.com.cn
B 22 BT 48 Uk www.hkex.com.hk :
AR AT EN KA IR A A A8 U
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/



Items

ES

Announcement of

the resolutions passed

at the Seventh Meeting
of the Fourth Supervisory
Committee
FUEEEE
FLREBRERS

Supplemental Announcement
relating to the relevant
matters in the 2007

Annual Report
BN20075 5 ERE
HEZENHERE

Annual report (amended)

FH(ERTHR)

Meeting information
of the 2007 annual
general meeting

2007FFEPRREAE
SHER

Legal opinion regarding
the 2007 annual
general meeting

2007FFEPRREAE
MEREERE

Announcement

of the resolutions passed
at the 2007

annual general meeting

2007FFEPRREAE

RADE

Names and pages of the
publishing newspapers

HENBET EBRIRE

Page D56 of
“Shanghai Securities News”

(L% FH ) D56HR

Page D16 of
“Shanghai Securities News”

(LBEFIR)DI6IR

Page D9 of
“Shanghai Securities News”

(L& %3 DR

Dates of
Publication

T#A S
30 April 2008

200854 A30H

22 May 2008

2008454 22H

22 May 2008

200845 H22H

7 June 2008

20086 H7H

18 June 2008

20084674 18H

18 June 2008

2008467 18H

REAEXR

Website
HENEHARERBRERRT

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)

F R A8 www.sse.com.cn
B 32 FT 48 i www . hkex.com.hk
A K AR A R

http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)
FRFr i www.sse.com.cn

B 32 T 48 i www . hkex.com.hk
TS NBAR R A4
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)
A www.sse.com.cn

B 32 BT #3uh www.hkex.com.hk :
RSB AR R A4
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)
A www.sse.com.cn

B 32 BT #8uh www.hkex.com.hk :
AMEHEEDBER D RH
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)
A www.sse.com.cn

B 32 BT #8Uh www.hkex.com.hk :
AEHEDBER D RH
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/

Website of SSE (www.sse.com.cn);
website of HKSE (www.hkex.com.hk);
website of IFN Financial Press
(http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/)
A www.sse.com.cn

B 32 BT #8uh www.hkex.com.hk :
AEHEDBEER D RH
http://www.ifn.com.hk/ir/tjcep/
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VI. Financial Accounting Report

(unaudited)

(1) Prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

CONSOLIDATED INTERIM BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 30 JUNE 2008

(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Land use rights
Investment in an associate
Available-for-sale financial assets
Trade receivables due after one year
Gross amounts due from customers for

contract work

Long-term loans receivables
Other non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other receivables and prepayments
Current income tax recoverable
Cash and bank balances

Total assets

BE
FRBEE

LESR = &

REME
s I
BaEdhRE

AR ENHEE

RHE S YK
EREF AL
TREFE
R KR
Hih RHIEE

RBEE
&
B 5 MR

H A EU R S IR 5R0R

TasE BTSN
Re MIRTTHER

BEEAR

N BEEHES
(K #& % &)

() REEBVBRELENFER

FETHEERER
K2008%#6 5304

(BRI IR E 2 BEL G BARKETIT)

Note As at
31 December

30 June

2008

Unaudited

i & 20084
6A30H

K&

5 2,185,302
135,902

393,392

6 65,498
4,000

7 697,763

199,487
2,001,038
8 4,455

5,686,837
9,040

7 541,335
162,572

9,317

636,019

1,358,283

7,045,120
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2007
Restated
20074
128318
BEY

2,197,736
137,588
401,134

63,979
4,000
697,763

172,204
1,322,382

23,778

5,020,564

6,634
442,944
136,733

339,971
926,282

5,946,846



Note As at
30 June 31 December

2008 2007
Unaudited Restated
i &t 2008%F 20074
6H30H 12831H
REEET BE
EQUITY &=
Capital and reserves attributable to KA FEHFHE ARG
the Company'’s equity holders BEXR &G
Share capital [z 9 1,427,228 1,427,228
Other reserves H A 613,203 613,203
Retained earnings REEF 967,870 920,116
- Proposed final dividend —HRARHARR R — 57,089
- Undistributed —RHE 967,870 863,027
3,008,301 2,960,547
Minority interests DR RER 126,253 123,241
Total equity AR 3,134,554 3,083,788
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FREBEME
Borrowings EEN 10 2,052,198 1,793,523
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTSHAGE 25,927 22,054
2,078,125 1,815,577
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B RETREMNK 11 382,329 275,070
Current income tax payables BHIFTSHAE — 62,299
Borrowings & 10 1,450,112 710,112
1,832,441 1,047,481
Total liabilities aEsE 3,910,566 2,863,058
Total equity and liabilities ExhEEAE 7,045,120 5,946,846
Net current liabilities REBEEREE (474,158) (121,199)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABAR 5,212,679 4,899,365

AERAXBRROERATVO-SZNFEFIHRE 3



CONSOLIDATED INTERIM INCOME STATEMENT GeETvHERR

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 & F2008%6 5308 1 185 #/
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (BRIEFFFIIERAT B 2 BB E 15 BARKEFT)
Unaudited
REES
Six months ended 30 June
BZ6HA30RLX<MEA
Note 2008 2007
it it 20084 20074
Restated
AR E 5
Revenue SHE WA 4 497,875 465,386
Business tax EEMD (20,159) (20,367)
Cost of sales HEKA (225,796) (189,515)
Gross profit EF 251,920 255,504
Other income EMias —5E 4 3,400 5,666
Administrative costs THER (47,214) (41,316)
Operating profit REREF 12 208,106 219,854
Finance costs BhE AR 13 (66,006) (33,906)
Share of profits of an associate iy /NI PR 1,519 2,499
Profit before income tax BRETBHATRF] 143,619 188,447
Income tax expense Frigti 14 (35,764) (57,990)
Profit for the period YXFEREF 107,855 130,457
Attributable to: Ak
Equity holders of the Company RARERFEEA 104,843 127,847
Minority interests DEIRRER 3,012 2,610
107,855 130,457
Earnings per share for profit HEAEARAEERAA
attributable to the equity holders EiEZERNEREF
of the Company during the (ABRAR T
period (in RMB per share)
- basic —®K 15 RMBO0.07 RMBO0.09

- diluted —8E RMBO0.07 RMBO0.08

Interim dividends FEIRE 16 — —
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CONSOLIDATED INTERIM STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2008
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Balance at 1 January 2008
- as previously reported
- prior period adjustments
in respect of
HK(IFRIC) 12

As restated

Profit for the period
Dividends

Balance at 30 June 2008

Balance at 1 January 2007
- as previously reported
- prior period adjustments
in respect of
HK(IFRIC) 12

As restated

Profit for the period
Conversion of convertible bonds
Dividends

Balance at 30 June 2007
(restated)

20081 B 1 A&8
-MA 25

-5 (B8 (BRuK
RERBZES) 2B)
F 1252 A AR

2E5

ZHRN
fids

2008 £ 6 A 30 B&#

20071 A1 &R
TR

-5 (B% (BRUE
RERBZES) 2B)
F 12 KFE 2 AT RE

2E5
EHRN

TRERENN T BRES

BE

2007 £ 6 A 30 B&#
(BEF)

RETHESEBERR

2, 2200846 30H 117~ 16 A B fA

(BRI IR E 2 BEL G BARKETIT)

Unaudited
KRG
Equity holders of the Company
EAFEBREA
Share Minority
Note capital Reserves  Sub-total Interests Total
lif3 A Hitf#fe CEZ (EL & Y5
1,427,228 1,465,940 2,893,168 114,870 3,008,038
— 67,379 67,379 8,371 75,750
1,427,228 1,533,320 2,960,548 123,241 3,083,789
— 104,843 104,843 3,012 107,855
16 — (57,089) (57,089) - (57,089)
1,427,228 1,581,073 3,008,301 126,253 3,134,554
1,330,666 1,056,192 2,386,858 116,111 2,502,969
— 22,688 22,688 2,516 25,204
1,330,666 1,078,880 2,409,546 118,627 2,528,173
— 127,847 127,847 2,610 130,457
71,971 205,839 277,810 — 277,810
16 — (56,105) (56,105) — (56,105)
1,402,637 1,356,461 2,759,098 121,237 2,880,335

ARAXBRROERATDVO-ZEZNFEHIHRE
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM CASH FLOW STATEMENT HRESEPHESRER

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2008 # 200846 A30A 1 7 18 A HIfS
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (BRIEFFFIIERAT B 2 BB E 15 BARKEFT)
Unaudited
REES
Six months ended 30 June
BZ6HA30RLX<MEA
2008 2007
20084 20075
Net cash generated from/ (used in) ReEE (XR) 238
— operating activities —EEEY 135,782 (13,103)
— investing activities — B EH (704,106) (61,022)
—financing activities —REEE) 840,373 154,765

Net increase in cash and

bank balances RERIBITESRZIENFEE 272,049 80,640
Cash and bank balances at beginning
of the period B & MIRTTAE B2 324,971 718,744

Cash and bank balances at end of

the period* KRR ERBITER 597,020 799,384
* Excluding restricted cash and bank balances of RMB39 million for 30 June 2008,  * T 52008F6A30H PR Hl 2 IRIT4 4 AR % 3,900
representing collateral deposit as guarantee for project bidding (2007: RMB20.3 ST LR BREIRITEASFEBRIZRESR (20075 ¢
million). ANE#2,03087T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL

INFORMATION
(All amounts in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

1

Company profile and principal activities

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited (the
“Company”) was established on 8 June 1993 in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") as a joint stock limited company. The activities
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) include sewage
water processing, tap water supply, production of recycled water and
construction materials and operation of toll roads.

The operation mode of the Group'’s principal activities is described
below:

(a) Sewage water processing

Pursuant to relevant agreements (“Sewage Water Processing
Agreements”), the Group provides sewage water processing
services via the following operating plants:

Contract
Plant Location commencement date
A=+ SR BH
Prior years” agreement still in operation:
WUBTFEZATLATER T A A
Dong Jiao, Tianjin 10 October 2000
RAE R 2000510A10H
Ji Zhuang Zi, Tianjin 10 October 2000
RE WLEF 20009104 10H
Xian Yang Lu, Tianjin 10 October 2000
RAE B 20005 10A10H
Bei Cang, Tianjin 10 October 2000
XKE dE 20009104 10H
Guiyang, Guizhou 16 September 2004
MBS 200459 H16H
Bao Ying, Jiangsu 13 June 2005
TE HIE 20056 H13H
Fuyang, Anhui 18 December 2005
ZH R 20054 12A18H
Qujing, Yunnan 25 December 2005
TR HB 2005412 A 25H
Hong Hu, Hubei 29 December 2005
HE B8 20059 12 A29H
Hang Zhou, Zhejiang 12 November 2006
AL FN 200611 A412H
Jing Hai, Tianjin 12 September 2007
RAE BB 20075 9H12R
Wen Deng, Shandong 19 December 2007
Wik xX=&E 20074 12R19H
Significant new agreement in 2008:
20084F # & ETHY & [A]
Xi An, Shanxi 18 March 2008
PRPT AR 200843 H18H

Xz

B4R & P B R R B A

(BRIEHFRITE AT E £ R E G B ARETT)
1 RABNREERK

KEZRIFERRBROBRAE ([A28E]) 2R
1993F6A8HAEFEARKEME ([FRH])5F
MBI DERAR - AAR REKBA R
([AREE])BEFHEEER T ATt 8 75557K
BRI2 « HARKEIK « ARk - EEM BB UK
BUh¥E -

UTRAEBEIEEBHLEEN

(a) FKREEEHK

REBEBEGHE ([OFXKEEZRFEW
#)]) o AEEBBIAT IS KE IR H
EKERIEBRTE

Customer

EF

Tianjin Sewage Company (“TSC")
REMHRARE (THEKRE])

TSC

BEK A 7]

TSC

BEK A 7]

TSC

BEK A 7]

Guiyang City Administration Bureau (“GCAB")
EEmHTmERR ((EEHER])

Baoying Construction Bureau

BEMRERB

Anhui Fuyang Construction Committee (“AFCC")
ZRERGTRERZES (EHET)

Quijing City Water General Company (“QCWG")
i 35 T 4 T A BE K A B (S HE K A R))
Honghu Construction Bureau

AT RSB

Hangzhou Sewage Company

MM T HEKBR QA

Tianyu Science Technology Park Administration Committee
of Tianjin New Technology Industry Area
REFBEMEXERRXTHREEELZEE
Wendeng Construction Bureau

XEMRED

Xi An Municipal Infrastructure Construction Investment
General Company
PR MERREERELRT]
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The background of principal terms and pricing formula as set
out in the relevant contracts are briefly summarised below:

Dong Jiao:

The Group will have full recovery of actual operating costs,
including depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets,
excluding interest expenses and foreign exchange gains or
losses and at minimum:

(i) earnsareturn of 15% per annum of the average balances
of the monthly net book value of property, plant and
equipment (as defined in the agreement) of the plants;
and

(ii) incentive pricing adjustments will be made for cost saving
and/or when actual processing volume exceeds the
minimum processing volume as stipulated in the
agreement.

Ji Zhuang Zi, Xian Yang Lu and Bei Cang:

Based on the supplementary agreement reached with TSC on
10 March 2006, the Company is entitled to a pre-determined
sewage processing fee from the completion date of
construction to the completion date of inspection of Ji Zhuang
Zi, Xian Yang Lu and Bei Cang plants. Processing fee after the
completion of inspection of these three plants will be collected
from TSC using the same principle as for Dong Jiao plant.

All other sewage processing plants :

Initial sewage water processing prices are predetermined ,
thereafter processing price may be revised after considering
various factors including renovation of equipment, additional
investment, power and energy and labour force, and other
significant changes of government policy;

All sewage processing plants outside Tianjin are guaranteed a
minimum processing volume by their respective customers
except for Gui Yang. If the actual volume is lower than the
guaranteed volume, processing fee will be settled using the
guaranteed volume;

On 6 December 2006, Guiyang Price Bureau confirmed a new
price for the year 2007 which will allow full recovery of all actual
costs, including operating cost, depreciation , income tax and
a return of 8% on budgeted net assets of the plant.

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited ¢ 2008 Interim Report
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(b) Construction of sewage water processing plants

Since, the construction of )i Zhuang Zi, Xian Yang Lu and Bei
Cang was completed in late 2005, the Company did not
generate any sewage water processing plant construction fee.
The background to the relevant agreements of sewage water
processing plants since 2003 is shown below:

Construction Agreement:

Pursuant to an agreement (“Construction Agreement”)
between the Company and TSC dated 24 September 2001, the
Company is to provide construction services to TSC in respect of
three plants of Xian Yang Lu, Ji Zhuang Zi and Bei Cang.

The principal terms of the Construction Agreement are
summarised below:

e  afee will be paid by TSC during the period of construction
as a reward to remunerate the Company for accepting the
responsibility to construct the sewage water processing
plants;

e afeeis payable by TSC in advance on a monthly basis
according to the percentage of completion of the
respective construction projects estimated by the
Company;

e the percentage of completion of each project will be
adjusted on a quarterly basis according to the certifications
issued by qualified independent surveyors or engineers;

e the Company is responsible for the funding of the
construction cost of these plants, and

e upon commencement of operations of the three sewage
water processing plants, the rights and obligations
between the Company and TSC will follow the terms as
specified in the Sewage Water Processing Agreement as
applicable to the Tianjin plants (Note1(a)).

Transfer Agreement:

In addition, on 24 September 2001, respective agreements
(“Transfer Agreements”) were signed whereby, the Company
would be responsible for the construction and management of
the remaining uncompleted portion of the plants. The transfers
were deemed completed on 30 October 2002.

FKEEMEREY

BeET BEBEEERLEA=ZEIEER
2005F KRFELE + KNABREEEMAS
KEEBEZEWA - B2003FF /5K
BEEMELESAEBEESHT ¢

R E 5

RIEA QR 200149 A24 A EHEKA A
FAIMCFKEE (B&) EEIRKER
E) (R BRE]) - AABMBEIKA
AHERERAGE  £HTFAIEAE =
SRR IR AR -

b E R ERMT

o RBWHE - AAFEAEFKEIE
RAEZTIRZRAE - KR FF
EAARBAXNERE  EREE
RARAERRSKEEREET
122 B

s RRERUEWHE HKAFES
ARBARARENEHRESERE
Az KB kA RREX
BERER

. ESEEEEE BEBIASH
KTRFHEERIREIREH
A R %

s ARANEBEGKEEMERZTE
REENEE UK

s KEAQREBKABRITNH
E o ERZE=ESKEE R RE
B8 B MENERLHIZRER
EKEERFEREA AR TIT
(ENPR EE (a) AT L)

MR

IS - IRIEARFIRA2001 49 A24 A EHE
KABIRTNAEBNEERT ([#EH
El)  RREREERETIRNESRRE
oo Bl 7R T2 42 TEE 20024
108308 5K °
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(o)

Co-operative Agreement:

On 25 August 2003, the Company entered into an agreement
with TSC (“Co-operative Agreement”) whereby:

e the Company would be responsible for the overall
execution of the construction of the three plants;

e  TSC would be responsible for making use of the original
loans from two foreign banks (the “Foreign Loans”) to
fund certain property, plant and equipment used in these
plants;

e TSCwill sell to the Company these Foreign Loans funded
property, plant and equipment after their construction
and the receipt of relevant verification reports, at their
carrying value(Note F). The construction fee charged by
the Company pursuant to the above mentioned
Construction Agreement, would include the cost of these
property, plant and equipment as the base; and

e  The Company would be responsible for the repairs and
maintenance of these property, plant and equipment
during the construction period.

Operation of toll road

There is no change of terms in following agreements since
2003, the background is detailed in following paragraphs;

Prior to 2003, the Company owned the right, to set up toll
stations at the junctions between the Tianjin city roads and
expressways leading to the city, and to collect tolls generally
from non-Tianjin registered motor vehicles (other than those
exempted by law) passing these toll stations. The right was for
a term expiring on 28 February 2029.

During 2003, following the reform of the public transportation
network, the Tianjin Municipal Government relocated certain
toll stations, including those of the Company, to the boundary
of the interstate highways surrounding Tianjin. The collection of
tolls from non-Tianijin registered vehicles was then centralised at
a Tianjin Toll Collection Office (“Toll Collection Office”) set up by

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited ¢ 2008 Interim Report
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(d)

TMEB. As a result, the Company’s toll stations were demolished
since 31 May 2003 and TMEB agreed to compensate the
Company principally as follows:

e aone-off cash compensation by TMEB equivalent to the
net book value of the assets of the demolished toll stations
as at 30 June 2003 of about RMB33 million;

e compensation for loss in revenue, during the period from
31 May 2003 to the date of completion of construction of
the new toll stations, equivalent to the revenue received in
the same period of last year of about RMB5.5 million net of
expenses confirmed by the Company in June 2003.

The Company was granted the collection right of six new toll
stations from 1 July 2003 to 28 February 2029. However, the
Company is not allowed to transfer, lease or pledge the right to
other parties without TMEB’s consent.

In tandem, the Company entered into an agreement (“Toll
Collection Agreement”) with Toll Collection Office on 24 July
2003 with following principal terms:

e  the Company engaged the Toll Collection Office to collect
the tolls at the six new toll stations on its behalf for which
it will pay a management fee;

e the Company is to receive the actual tolls collected from
the six new stations for the corresponding period/year,
subject to minimum toll fee for each period/year based on
the forecast traffic flow and tolls for the corresponding
period/year as stipulated in a traffic flow and tolls forecast
report for the six new toll stations issued by a professional
consulting company in July 2003; and

e any shortfall to the Company between actual and the
agreed minimum will be compensated to the Company by
the Toll Collection Office.

Supply of tap water

Pursuant to agreement reached with Qujing City Water General
Company on 25 December 2005, a subsidiary of the Company,
Qujing Capital Water Co., Ltd., provides tap water supply
service to Qujing City via the Yunnan Qujing tap water
processing plant at predetermined pricing.

In addition:

(i)  Supply price as determined above may be revised after
considering various cost factors based on contract terms;

(i) Qujing City Water General Company guarantees a
minimum supply volume. If the actual volume is lower
than the guaranteed volume, supply fee will be settled
based on the guaranteed volume.
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Basis of preparation 2

This condensed consolidated interim financial information for the six
months ended 30 June 2008 has been prepared in accordance with
HKAS 34, “Interim financial reporting”. The interim condensed
financial report should be read in conjunction with the annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007.

(a) Going concern

As at 30 June 2008, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by approximately RMB474 million.

Despite the foregoing, these financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, because the Directors of the
Group believe that the undrawn banking facilities together with
the continuing support of the Group’s bankers are sufficient to
enable the Group to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due.

(b) Standard and interpretations effective in 2008 but not
relevant to the Group

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury share
transactions (effective from 1 March
2007)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined
benefit asset minimum funding
requirements and their interaction
(effective from 1 January 2008)

(c) Standards, amendment and interpretations effective
in 2008 and relevant to the Group:

HK(IFRIC) - Int 12 Service concession arrangements
(effective from 1 January 2008)

UL

EH ZE2008F 64300 LE61E A ~ ¥ F [E i RH 4R
A EN RREB B B HEER (B
TEAER) 3455 P BRBT TS SR S AR &) - AN AR P A7
B SR EEE FR2007F 128312 FE
Bk —WwhE -

(a) BHELERR

HZE2008F6 8308 It - Zliﬁlmiﬁ@j
BHRAERBEENAARELTAET

EECHEAEED KERZ R EMIERT
REBEEAREEZBRETZFESH
ERATRHAEBEEIHES  EAE
EE AR ECERE AR R AR
BB S Rk o

(b) E=BENFERERAEEMEERBHN
A BT RERRE

B8 (HRE 1% BT HAER2
HEREZE D) —£BKAE
—2EN &% 2 5 (/

—EELF
=A— Ak
A )

B (BRI BB AR
#&mu%%iiz\s) )IIF_%U
—2E14 BEZRH -

= IERBFIRE
AREMBEEE
(=TT NF
—A—Hi
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(c) E=BENFOERHEL - BITRERE
I HAMAEEEREE :

iﬁi’é(lf@ f 7% [ AR 745 5 T #E Y
TREZBE) 2] (H=F

uﬁém ZNF—H
—BRAER)

The adoption of the above resulted in material impacton the 4y Ll 2R - BET RABUAEEN T B HREE

financial statements of the Group are separately described in % &

Note 3 of these financial information. it o

(d) Standard, amendment and interpretations to the
existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group

HKAS 1(Revised) Presentation of financial statements
(effective from 1 January 2009)
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HKAS 23
(Amendment)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKFRS 2
(Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

Borrowing costs (effective from
1 January 2009)

Consolidation and separate financial
Statements (effective from 1 July
2009)

Share — based payment — Vesting
conditions and cancellations
(effective from 1 January 2009)

Business combination (effective from
1 July 2009)

Operating segments (effective from
1 January 2009)

Customer loyalty programmes
(effective from 1 July 2008)

BB EEHEAI23
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£
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£ 0

[Bfn 4] — 1718
T E R 1F K2
E

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these standard, amendment and interpretations on
the financial statements of the Group in the initial application
whilst the adoption of above may not have a material impact on
the financial statements of the Group other than disclosure
changes.

Changes in accounting policies 3

The following sets out further information on the changes of
accounting policies for the accounting period beginning on 1 January
2008 which has been reflected in this interim financial information.

(a) Restatement of prior periods and opening balances

The following tables disclose the adjustments have been made
in accordance with the transitional provision of the respective
HKFRSs to each line items of the consolidated income statement
for the six months ended 30 June 2007 and consolidated
balance sheet at 31 December 2007 as previous reported.
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(i) E_EEFNA=FHIESNE

(i) Consolidated income statement for the six months ended 30

42

June 2007 AZiFEarBmik
Six months Effect of
ended HK(IFRIC) 12 Six months
30 June (increase / ended
2007 (decrease) 30 June
(as previous in profit for 2007
reported) the period) (as restated)
BZ (&8 ERUH BZE
20074 BEREBZER 2007
6H30H B)RE)F12% 6A430A
IEREAR 28 HREF WEREAR
(fn Ay 2 3]R) #m (B)) (BEH)
Revenue e 473,316 (7,930) 465,386
Business tax BENE (20,367) — (20,367)
Cost of sales SHE A (201,346) 11,831 (189,515)
Gross profit EX 251,603 3,901 255,504
Other income Efhizs — FE 5,666 — 5,666
Administrative costs 1T E A (41,836) 520 (41,316)
Operating profit e T 215,433 4,421 219,854
Finance costs B R AN (60,817) 26,911 (33,906)
Share of profits of an associate ~ FE{LEf A R & F 2,499 — 2,499
Profit before income tax RRATSBL AT BRI 157,115 31,332 188,447
Income tax expense PSR (47,747) (10,249) (57,990)
Profit for the period YEFRF 109,374 21,083 130,457
Attributable to: PEAh:
Equity holders of NAFMER
the Company BFBA 110,585 17,262 127,847
Minority interests VYA RS (1,211) 3,821 2,610
109,374 21,083 130,457
Earnings per share for profit HRE AL B#ER
attributable to the equity FHAEGEETIN
holders of the Company BRERN (UK
during the period AR TE)
(in RMB per share)
- Basic — &K RMB0.08 RMBO0.01 RMBO0.09
AE#0.08 AR#0.01 AE#0.09
- Diluted —#E RMB0.08 — RMBO0.08

AR 0.08
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ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Investment property
Land use rights

Investment in an associate
Available-for-sale financial

assets

Trade receivables due after

one year

Gross amounts due from
customers for contract work

Long-term loans receivables

Other non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories
Trade receivables

Other receivables and

prepayments

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

EQUITY
Capital and reserves

attributable to
the Company'’s
equity holders
Share capital
Other reserves
Retained earnings

— Proposed final dividend

— Undistributed

Minority interests

Total equity

(i)  Consolidated balance sheet at 31 December 2007

BE

FRBEE
YES Y ]
REME

T A
BEhERE
AHHENHEE

RHE 5 EUGK

EREFEH
THFIA
R HAFEUROE
Hi REEE

RBEE

&
) T 6N
HAbEM K
JBINRIR
RE MIRTTHESR

BEERR

R
ARBESEFAEA
BEERR#E

[N

Hib e

REEM
—HORREIR R
—RNEC

DBRRER
ERBE

(ii)

31 December

RoEFLE+=A=+—A2k

AEERMEX

Effect of
HK(IFRIC) 12

2007 (increase / 31 December
(as previous (decrease) in 2007
reported) net assets) (as restated)
(B (BB %
BERBZEES)
—E2ELE RBEE12¥Z —BELHF
+=A=+—H HE(FEE +=-RA=+—-H
(MAT2%k) &M AD)) (BEF
3,261,450 (1,063,714) 2,197,736
137,588 — 137,588
676,912 (275,778) 401,134
63,979 — 63,979
4,000 — 4,000
697,763 — 697,763
— 172,204 172,204
— 1,322,382 1,322,382
118,698 (94,920) 23,778
4,960,390 60,174 5,020,564
6,634 — 6,634
442,944 — 442,944
136,733 — 136,733
339,971 — 339,971
926,282 — 926,282
5,886,672 60,174 5,946,846
1,427,228 — 1,427,228
613,203 — 613,203
852,737 67,379 920,116
57,089 — 57,089
795,648 67,379 863,027
2,893,168 67,379 2,960,547
114,870 8,371 123,241
3,008,038 75,750 3,083,788

ARAXBRROERATDVO-ZEZNFEHIHRE
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LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings
Deferred income tax liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Current income tax payables
Borrowings

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities
Net current liabilities

Total assets less
current liabilities

&8fE
FRBAE

B

BEEFTSHEE

RBAE
B RETRENK
EHMEHAE

&

BEAE

EEkAEAHE

RBEEFE

HEERRBAE

31 December
2007

(as previous
reported)

+=A=
(Al 2

1,793,523

1,793,523

312,700
62,299
710,112
1,085,111
2,878,634

5,886,672

(158,829)

4,801,561
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Effect of
HK(IFRIC) 12
(increase /
(decrease) in
net assets)
(BB (R
BERBZEES)
RE)E12%R 2
HE(FEE
#m,/ (R))

22,054

22,054

(37,630)

(37,630)
(15,576)
60,174

37,630

97,804

31 December
2007
(as restated)

TR
r_\_
m

i
o
=

1,793,523
22,054

1,815,577
275,070
62,299
710,112
1,047,481
2,863,058

5,946,846

(121,199)

4,899,365



(b) Estimated effect of changes in accounting policies on

the current period

The following tables provide estimates of extent to which each
of the line items of the consolidated income statement and
balance sheet for the six months then ended 30 June 2008 is
higher or lower than it would have been had the previous
policies still been applied in the year, where it is practicable

make such estimates

(i)  Estimated effect on the consolidated income statement for the

six month ended 30 June 2008

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Administrative costs

Operating profit
Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the period

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to the equity
holders of the Company
during the period

- Basic and diluted

HE
SHERA

ER

TREA
meEBR

AE KA
BRETBHATER
igEs

FEERRN

FEfh
ARREEREA
D BB R

HEARLF
BEFEA
i gl )
BRER

—EARMEE

REAEXR

(b)

BN BRRSBHAPB 2 AHEE

T%ﬁﬁllfﬁj*“ﬁifﬂﬁim RABEGETIK

E+7—r j:—? 7)\&/\H +E|JJ:/\
1IH,%W\T§ R RBEERBERAZEERR
B - AIBEIBMNER D 2 AT 28 (Wt E
R SEBERT) -

(i) #HEZ=
A 24

EEN\EXA=+AULAE
ng ﬁ

Estimated effect of
HK(IFRIC) 12
(increase /
(decrease)
in profit for
the period)
(BE (BBRTH%
BERBERS)
2. g1292
28 (WRER
@, Ofd))

(25,042)
11,661

(13,381)
890

(12,491)
27,981

15,490
(3,872)

11,618

9,199
2,419

11,618

RMBO0.64cents
AREE0.64 5

RROBERLAAG-ZZTNEFEFNHRESE
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(i)  Estimated effect on the consolidated balance sheet at 30 June

2008

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights
Gross amounts due from
customers for contract work
Long-term loans receivables
Other non-current assets

Total assets

EQUITY
Capital and reserves
attributable to the
Company’s equity holders

Retained earnings
Minority interests
Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current liabilities

Total assets less
current liabilities

BE

FFREBEE

M - BB R
-
EREFEH
TREFIE
RHIEUEE
Hi REEE

BERE

Rz

AR R
R AR
BEAXR#E
REERM

LEBRRER

A

=N

FRBEE
BEPTSTHEE

REAE
B METRENR

BERE

EERkAERE

RBEEFE

HEERRBAR
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(i) H—FENFNA=FAHGEEE
BEXRZIGGTZE

Estimated effect of
HK(IFRIC) 12
(increase /
(decrease)

in net assets)

(B # (BB B 75
HEREZESE)
RE)E12% 2
g (EETFH
B GRA))

(1,756,463)
(274,068)

199,487
2,001,038
(93,220)

76,744

76,579

10,790

87,369

25,927

(36,522)
(10,595)
76,774

36,522

113,296



(c) Service concession arrangements (HK(IFRIC) 12: Service

concession arrangements)

In prior years, the Group recognised plant property and
equipment of certain of its build-operate-transfer (“BOT") and
transfer-operate-transfer (“TOT"”) arrangements as plant
property and equipment or other non-current assets.

Apart from above, the Group recognised toll road exchanged
from the controlling shareholder of the Company by the
Company'’s previous controlling shareholder as plant property
and equipment. Toll road was depreciated on an units-of-usage
basis which was based on actual traffic volume for a particular
period over the projected total traffic volume throughout the
periods for which the Group was granted the right to operate
the road.

With effective from 1 January 2008, in accordance with
HK(IFRIC) 12, the BOT and TOT arrangements of the Group,
such as sewage water processing projects outside of Tianjin, tap
water processing projects and tolls road, are service concession
arrangements under HK(IFRIC) 12. Infrastructure within the
scope of HK(IFRIC) 12 is not recognised property, plant and
equipment or other non-current assets as control of the
infrastructure of the projects remain in public hands but the
Group is responsible for construction or upgrade activities, as
well as for operating and maintaining the public sector
infrastructure.

As a result, the Group accounts for revenue and costs relating to
construction or upgrade services of infrastructure in accordance
with HKAS 11, Construction contracts. In accordance with HKAS
11, when the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue from construction services is
recognised using the percentage of completion method,
measured by reference to the percentage of contract costs
incurred to date to estimated total contract costs for the
contract. When the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Construction contracts in progress at the balance sheet date are
recorded in the balance sheet at the net amount of costs
incurred plus recognised profits less recognised losses and
progress billings, and are presented in the balance sheet as the
“Gross amounts due from customers for contracts work” (as an
asset) or the “Gross amounts due to customers for contract
work” (as a liability), as applicable. Progress billings not yet paid
by the customers are included in the balance sheet under
“Debtors, other receivables, deposits and prepayments”.

REAEXR

(c)

BT EEERY (B8 (BRYBR

EREESE)RB) 125 - [RBSF
RERERE]D

WBEEE  ARBRREST 21—

—#%] (BOT)) R[5 — B —
#7) (ITOT)) RH T HWE - B R&
- RRAME BB RREIA
AP -

B batE SN - REBIEERRQ BRI
RANA A B AR R P B H A 3E BE ) IR
BUHRARDE  BELRE - BREK
But 2 ETVRBBREIE R - Hi%
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬁz,@-ﬁ KRB EL AN ERXZ

PR A REHAR 2 TRRT SBAARE Z LD
.:HE °

BE-ZTENGF—A—HE BREGESE
BEBERERBEEG) BB 1252
WE - REBBOTRTOTRLHE » K2
SNESKERIBIER - B AROKHIKIER FiE
BRI EBIIE B HE(ES (BRV RS
REZES)RB)E1N2HRTHREER
R g o fECEE (BIE ﬁﬁ’%&:.ﬁ%ﬁ
éé\A)é%ﬁ 125 EEI N E T2

REME  BERE f%&ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ
é? A AH FTE B A B R i A 120 i hE
DEARFIE  EAEEAFEREREE
I URELEREBREQAHXERS
i

Bt - REBERB(EEGTERDE
K- REGNI R TERERERZE
ESBUE RGPS Bz e B AR © ARBER
(BBGTEADENS  EREEGHZ
PSR T LART SR TR - BEARTS 2 s
ERBTILLERE  KESRIEEESE
ZE R AMEREH A BB R 2 LBt
HEER - BRESHZBHRARGEF AT
S H&m/@'\@&aﬁizm,mﬂz$274&
BB {5 HERR - PNEEE B mEETTh 2 T2
ST E\'J&EEEZ&$)JDLET:€E%\ZE
A AREDHERBEREERTZ
FEAREEAESX  TREEBERT
2 RIEKEFEHIIERERATE] (F
REE)SENEPEHIEHRIALE]
(EREE) BREER) - EFHAX
1‘1‘21@*;”@&%{%%1\%#(}%”&5%
o EAbREWCRIE e RIENFRIEIA
BE o

BROERLATO-_ZZENEEFERE
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Considerations received or receivable by the Group for the
construction or upgrade services are recognised at their fair
values as financial assets (for sewage water processing projects,
tap water processing projects and tolls road). For financial assets
recognised, they are reduced when payments, being a portion
of the sewage water processing revenue, tap water processing
revenue, and tolls revenue are received. Finance income on the
financial assets is recognised using an estimate of the service
concession grantors’ incremental borrowing rate of interest.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction and upgrade
services are not capitalised and are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively
with comparatives restated. The adjustments for each financial
statement line affected for accounting periods beginning on 1
January 2007 and 2008 are set out in notes 3(a) and 3(b).
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Revenue and segment information 4 EEERIBER
An analysis of sales and contributions to operating profit for the year INTREETEXBINEEXBENREDT
by principal activities is as follows:
(a) Analysis of the Group's turnover and other income (a) AEBMEXEREMBAFRIN
Unaudited
RGEST
For the six months ended
BZ6H308LX<EA
30 June 2008 30 June 2007
20084 20074
Restated
BE
Turnover e
— Construction revenue — @A 28,383 23,438
- Sewage water processing (Note1(a)) —VSIKEEIRERS (A2FE 1(a)) 402,127 368,329
—Tolls (note(i)) —BREKEL (FE) 23,157 27,691
— Tap water processing — B2RKHIK 17,825 11,127
— Water recycling and
pipeline connection —HKERIE KB E 22,434 13,224
— Construction materials — MR — 1,210
— Others —HAt 3,949 20,366
497,875 465,386
Other income HAA - FFE
—Rental income from
investment property —REWMEETEA 3,400 2,546
— Subsidy income N — 1,340
— Others —E b — 1,780
3,400 5,666
Total FEVON 501,275 471,052

ARAXBRROERATDVO-ZEZNFEHIHRE
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(b) Business segment analysis

Revenue

Sewage water processing projects
construction and operation (NoteT(a))

Tolls road operation (note(i))

Tap water processing operation

Water recycling and pipeline connection

Construction materials

Others

Segment results

Sewage water processing projects
construction and operation (Notel(a))

Tolls road operation (note(i))

Tap water processing operation

Water recycling and pipeline connection

Construction materials

Others

Share of profits of an associate

Profit before income tax
Taxation

Profit for the period

note:

(b)

HEHE

JE7KIRIETE B
BENEE (FFE 1(a)
BRI EES ()
B RKEKGE &
KRR R EEEEK
EEME

HAb

PEELE

KRR B

BERIEE (i 1(a)
B R ERES (FFEI)
B K HEKE &
ROKERIE R EEER
EEME

Hth

i) NI

BRATEHAT R R
FriSTi & A

FEERR

0] The tolls income of RMB37 million (2007: RMB33 million) represented
the minimum toll fee guaranteed under the Toll Fee Collection

Subcontracting Agreement (Note 1(c)).

(i) Pursuant to the PRC tax rules, the Group is subject to PRC business tax
levied at 5% of operating revenue and government surcharges levied
at 10% of the amount of business tax. The business tax and
government surcharges related to revenues derived from the Group
during the period from 1 January 2008 to 30 June 2008 amounting to

RMB20 million (2007: RMB20 million).
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E3 Sk

Unaudited
RGEST
For the six months ended
BZ6H30HIEREAR

30 June 2008 30 June 2007
20084 2007
Restated

KES

430,510 391,765
23,157 27,694
17,825 11,127
22,434 13,224
— 1,210
3,949 20,366
497,875 465,386
110,347 146,585
17,190 25,904
11,236 9,279
4,354 (8,727)
(388) (1,187)
(639) 14,094
142,100 185,948
1,519 2,499
143,619 188,447
(35,764) (57,990)
107,855 130,457

2

()  WITERAARES7008T (2007 : AR
¥3,3008 T) RRITTEZ MR ERT
NEREBITERA (1) °

(i) REPEBE  AEEMNCEEBAHNE
CENES R ENEET RIREER X
10%5H & B BUT BT hn &t - & = 20084 6 A
0B IL¥FEM L EH RBAMH M A A

R # 20008 7T (2007 : A R #2,0008
TT) e



Other segment items included in the income statement are as

follows:

Depreciation

Sewage water processing projects
construction and operation (NoteT(a))

Tap water processing operation

Water recycling and pipeline connection

Sale of construction materials

Others

Amortisation

Sewage water processing projects
construction and operation (NoteT(a))

Water recycling and pipeline connection

Sale of construction materials

Others

e

JEIKIRIETE B
BEREE (7 1(a)

B RKKE &

KRR E B

SHE MR

HAth

#e

JEIKRIETE B
BEREBYE (i 1(a)

FOKEEMEEER

SHE BN

HAb

HpEBSERTIRERNDBMAEEMT

Unaudited
REGEST
For the six months ended
B Z6H30BIEAEAR
30 June 2008 30 June 2007
20084 20074
Restated
KES
49,118 37,549
286 632
4,114 4,113
592 941
1,350 8,180
55,460 51,415
4,246 5,606
9 _
20 —
141 40
4,416 5,646

ARAXBRROERATDVO-ZEZNFEHIHRE
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The segment assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2008 and capital
expenditure for the period then ended are as follows:

M2008F6 A0 Z D EPEEMEBEUR
HEZBLEANERHBEZEARMIMT

Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2008 2007
REGEF BREL
2008 20074
6H30H 12A31H8
Restated
KE
Total assets nEE
Sewage water processing projects JaKERIRIE R
construction and operation (Notel(a))  EiERiBEE (7 1(a)) 5,564,135 4,572,502
Tolls road operation (note(i)) ERRWEEE (1) 394,631 342,970
Tap water processing operation B RKERKES 317,148 271,597
Water recycling and pipeline connection  F7KEE IR RIS 38 52 X 416,339 425,947
Construction materials EEMR 35,966 3,149
Associate SN 65,498 63,979
Unallocated R EB 251,403 266,703
7,045,120 5,946,847
Total liabilities =R
Sewage water processing projects JaKERIRIE R
construction and operation (Notel(a))  EiERiEE (7 1(a)) 3,355,758 2,345,262
Tolls road operation (note(i)) ERERWEIES () 19,607 19,789
Tap water processing operation B AR EKEE 187,163 158,638
Water recycling and pipeline connection A7k R IEFIE &5 5L 334,087 323,979
Construction materials EEMR 2,504 2,136
Unallocated VAR 11,447 13,254
3,910,566 2,863,058
Unaudited
REEG
For the six months ended
HZ6H30H1LA<EA
30 June 2008 30 June 2007
20084 20074
Restated
KED
Capital expenditure EAXRX
Sewage water processing construction VYNGR =
and operation (Notel(a)) BEREE (7 1(a) 39,601 38,653
Tap water processing operation B RKEKEE 73 —
Water recycling FROKBRFE 222 11,516
Unallocated R 2,822 2,233

No geographical segment analysis is presented since all of the
Group's operations are in the PRC.
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42,718

52,402
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5  Capital expenditure 5 BAHX

Unaudited
For the six months ended
REQES
BZ6 A30HLAEA
30 June 2008 30 June 2007

Restated
2008 £ 2007 &
BE
Net book value, at beginning of period HRWIHE 2,197,736 2,223,690
Additions in construction in progress
in respect of: FERIIREM
— sewage plant construction projects Eﬁ‘ﬂ&%ﬁﬁ@ & 12 — 1,805
— water recycling project of subsidiaries NEFKERTIZ 37,693 1,697
— others *Eﬁﬂ 1,482 1,958
Acquisition of sewage water process plant 55K B IR 2,138 —
Additions of other property, Hih - #eERk
plant and equipment BB 1,405 46,942
Disposals REE (1,067) (1,549)
Depreciation e (54,085) (51,585)
Net book value, at end of period IR HE 2,185,302 2,222,958
6 Investment in an associate 6 MeELERE
Unaudited
2008
RGE
2008
Beginning of the period HRY) 63,979
Share of net profits of associate JE{k 22 A 1,519
End of the period HiR 65,498
The Group has a 45% interest in an unlisted associate, incorporated REBMP - KPP BRFZMAZEIE ETHE
in Tianjin, PRC. ENRTAHBLS5 %
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7 Trade receivables

Details of the trade receivables are as follows:

Due from TSC for: FEWHERAT]
— Water processing services —KER IR IR
- Construction of plants — KRR R

Less: Portion deemed non-current (note (e))

Due from others

Current portion

(@

(b)
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Hitb
KRR

Under the Co-operative Agreement (Note 1(b)), TSC agrees to
sell to the Company certain of its property, plant and equipment
upon completion of their construction and receipt of relevant
verification reports, at their carrying value. On 17 April 2004,
TSC confirmed its intention to settle its debt due to the
Company with these mentioned assets.

The construction of these assets was completed in late 2005,
and based on the construction verification reports dated 27
December 2007, the Tianjin Finance Bureau approved the
verified value of these completed assets which amounted to
about RMB698 million (2006: The estimated carrying value
then was RMB750 million, which included about RMB50 million
exchange loss now absorbed by TSC in 2007).

On 17 April 2007, Tianjin Construction Administration
Committee (“TJCAC” ) (REMEHREEEZEEF), the
government body overseeing the management of construction
and operation of infrastructure in Tianjin, reconfirmed that the
Tianjin Municipality has agreed to the settlement of the
Company'’s debts in manner as agreed by TSC in (a) above. In
addition, the remaining debt outstanding after such assets
settlement will be settled by way of cash.

In January 2008, the Company has requested TJCAC to
accelerate the settlement of the Company’s debts. The final
settlement is still pending relevant governmental authorities
approvals, the timing of which is not totally within the
management’s control.

o BRI (iEFE(e))

EZEWR

B SR AENT
Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2008 2007
REGEF 2R EL
20084 20074
6A30H 12A31H
689,609 616,043
466,185 466,185
1,155,794 1,082,228
(697,763) (697,763)
458,031 384,465
83,304 58,479
541,335 442,944
(a) WEARRAEPKAREITNEERTE

(b)

(c)

(FsE1(0) - BEKARIRBEEHBEEER
FREBR IS BIHRE % - ASEAREE
(EEEEAAANNT] - FA2004F4 8178 »
KARERERFA LM EEEERRAAR
AR FRIE

KB R 3 FR R 20054 R E AR A -
RIE2007F12 4278 H AN KR EMH
BREENT G RERS - L EERE
B8 A ANRE6.98(8T (20064 : fH5t
FEEHEAARKTILRET  HBBEHK
NE2007FEEMIEKIBZELHARECS
BJr)

TR AR RMNE LT EE B
FA-XEmBRRERz8e ([mEZX])
R2007F4 3178 HEEFE R - BRI
fFE R E BEK A R M (a)H Bt 9 5 (&
BERNARARNER  AEHSAES

iy

2008F 1A  ARAIMMEZRIERTE
B i R RERT B R RS - SARE N T BE
FRNERISMANEL  BETEE2SR
AEES
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(d) On 8 April 2008, TJCAC confirmed that there will be no legal (d) 2008F4A8H - MEZ AR
obstacle to the above mentioned assets settlement.

= Fat IAE E

BEEBNRZ T FEEE HEREHE

(e) On the basis that the assets settlement will eventually be (e) ERLMNEEBEBBNRZSTLEHN

finalised, about RMB698 million due from TSC as at 30 June
2008, representing the verified cost of the assets, has been
reclassified to non-current trade receivables (2007: RMB698

million).

Based on the above information and confirmations on hand, the
Directors believe that the amount due from TSC is eventually fully

recoverable.

The Group in general grants a credit period range from 30 to 90 days.
Management considered trade receivables les than one year past due
are not impaired as all trade receivables are due from government
bodies of the PRC. Aging of trade receivable is as follows: 1 E’] A

Within one year
Over two years

Other non-current assets

Restricted bank deposits (note (i)
Others

notes:

& ) e W B 3K

JEULHE R 22

SR E ZE 200846 A308 #ARB %IL
BHEERE %’EZ@%)\EMG 981E

' 1

NEE E%ﬁm&m(zow
F: AR®6. 981 L) ©

R L ERAREREAARRL - EFHE
BIRIERA e 2 AR E -

AEEKRKTHHENEZEBHRA30E90K - B
ﬁwtﬁ FREHOE S RRFTRERED
- BB BT B e UL 5K I8 A e IR AP B BT A

o B S EUGRAERERINT
Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2008 2007
RIS ET 2RE
20084 20074
6H30H 12A31H
14 LA 541,335 442,944
2L 697,763 697,763
1,239,098 1,140,707

8 HtRHEE

Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2008 2007
Restated
REEET 2R EG
20084 20074
6A30H 12A31H
KE
ZRERITIFR (FEEE) — 19,770
Hth 4,455 4,008
4,455 23,778

I

(0]

These deposits represent collateral deposited with a financial institution as
guarantee for the issuance of the Company’s convertible bonds stated at fair

value.

REAEXR

(i) *@fﬂgﬁﬁ‘l,ﬂﬁﬁ’]?%f RIE TR & BB 1
RARTNAIHABEFEROENR -
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Share capital

Issued and fully paid up capital E#{TRAZKRE

A shares with par value of RMB1:
— Circulating shares
— Restricted circulating shares

—SRER,
— R &I MR

H shares with par value of RMB1:

Circulating shares outside China ~ #F BIZSNR AR

“A” share represent shares listed on the Shanghai Securities Exchange
and “H" shares represent shares listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong. All the “A” and “H” shares rank pari passu
in all respects.

The restricted circulating “A” Shares is in respect of the shares held by
TMICL, whereby TMICL can only sell a maximum of 10% of its total
shares within 3 years after the stock reform in March 2006.

During this period, about 66 million restricted circulating shares were
become non-restricted and none share belonging to TMICL was sold.
As at 30 June 2008, TMICL's equity interest in the Company were
remained as 54.3% by end of period.
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BREERARE 1 TTZ AR :

BREERARE 1 TTZ HEL

1,427,228

LEN

Number of Unaudited Audited
shares 30 June 31 December
(‘000) 2008 2007
REGCEF 2REL

B4 20084 20074
FR] 6H30A 128318
423,142 423,142 356,608
664,086 664,086 730,620
1,087,228 1,087,228 1,087,228
340,000 340,000 340,000

1,427,228 1,427,228
ABRIEHE LBESHFR Z EMRRL - MH
BREEEEBORZM EMORD - FAEA
BEHRES T EAZH RS -

IEBR S B RIER R R K ETRIEE A
RARHEHE 2BRG  ERKREN2006F3 A K
ERERKE - FRARZ A HEERMFEERD
210% °

NHAR A #) A K H 6,600 5B 7t 1B B {0 &
BRI BB AR R AT A MR8

A EH - #1-2008F6 8308 - KEMHKE
BEBEBRABMDEARRFHERNL AE4.3% °



10

Borrowings

Non-current:
Long-term bank borrowings
Loans payable

Less: Current portion

Current:
Current portion of long-term
bank borrowings
Short-term bank borrowings
Loans payable

note:

(a)  Long-term bank borrowings

Borrowings from:

State Development Bank

Industrial Commerce Bank of China
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
Agricultural Bank Of China

China Construction Bank

China CITIC Bank

China Everbright Bank

Bank of China

10 EBR

Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
note 2008 2007
RECEF 2REL
6H30H 12831H
T 20084 20074
~E
REFIRITE N @) 2,359,915 2,062,500
FER AR ©) 176,073 147,273
2,535,988 2,209,773
B« KZEIES 7 (483,790) (416,250)
2,052,198 1,793,523
ZH
REFIRITE A
SRR (@) 483,790 416,250
FEHEERTTER (b) 844,890 155,000
FERHE R (@) 121,432 138,862
1,450,112 710,112
2R
(a) EHRITER
Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
note 2008 2007
REET BEET
20084 20074
T 6A30H 12A31H
BEReE -
B R AR T [0) 404,000 471,000
A TR RTT (i) 699,000 399,000
SRR ERTT (iii) 320,000 320,000
PR ERTT (iv) 622,540 300,000
AR ERTT v) 214,375 222,500
B FIRIT — 200,000
PR R ERTT (vi) 50,000 95,000
FREIERTT (vii) 50,000 55,000
2,359,915 2,062,500

ARAXBRROERATDVO-ZEZNFEHIHRE
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These borrowings mature as follows:

Within one year —F LA

In the second year E_FN

In the third to fifth year E=FZERFR

After the fifth year HFAR

notes:

(i)  Secured by TMEB's guarantee together with certain of its fee collection
rights.

(i)  Includes RMB541 million secured by the Company’s guarantee while
remaining RMB158 million is unsecured.

(i) Includes RMB20 million secured by the Company’s guarantee while
remaining RMB300 million is unsecured.

(iv)  Includes RMB498 million and RMB60 million secured by the guarantee
of Tianjin Municipal Infrastructure Construction Investment Group Co.,
Ltd and the Company, respectively. The remaining balance of about
RMB65 million is secured by the Company’s guarantee during the
construction period of a subsidiary together with certain of the
subsidiary’s property, plant and equipment.

(v)  Includes RMB180 million secured by the right to receive tap water and
sewage water processing fees. The remaining balance of about RMB34
million is secured by the Company’s guarantee.

(vi)  Secured by TSC’s right to receive sewage water processing fees
together with TMICL's guarantee.

(vii)  Secured by the Company’s guarantee.

These long term bank borrowings are all interest bearing with weighted
average effective interest rate at the balance sheet date of 7.5% (2007: 6.9%).

Bank borrowings which are exposed to interest-rate changes and the

contractual repricing dates are as follows:

6 months or less
6 — 12 months

6 18 A RHEAR
6% 12187

As at 30 June 2008, the fair value of the long-term fixed-rate bank borrowings
is RMB158 million (2007: RMB158 million).
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R

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

HZEEFRARETDRNOT

Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2008 2007
RGETT 2RE
20084 20074
6H30H 12A31H
483,790 416,250
863,790 476,790
491,220 791,820
521,115 377,640
2,359,915 2,062,500

HERRERETRBREEERL AR EE
TERER

ZEREZTARKAEITHARRTHRMER -
BTHARE58EILHEREEIFER -

ZEREEARKO2ETHARTRMER - #
THARKIBTHRERBEMER -

ZEREEARKL98ETHMARK0GEITHRK

RMBRERERRMARBDRIREER - B TH

AR¥6,5008 TTHFEL — R E R R M 2R DR

MARBREERT AZMBEARNYDE - #s
REERER

EHBEARBSEITMER - A8 RKIRARE
FERERMAEERER  BREHARKES400
BTHEARARHER -

ZEREFRARREHRSKEEERERERE
BUARRZETBIREBR A REHRER -

ZERBARRREEER -

EERBRITEFINEERERANMEFTHERFIR
57.5% (20074F : 6.9%) °

BEREAREMNSFTHOHARMBERTERNAT

Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2008 2007
KGR 2RE
20084 20074
6H30H 12A31H
883,000 627,000
835,125 861,250

B ZE2008F6A30H Ik« EEFERBEITER
NAREBEHAEARE18ET (2007F : AR
#1.6887T) °



(b)

Short-term bank borrowings

Borrowings from: BERERAT
China Construction Bank B RR IR T
Bohai Bank BERIT

China Minsheng Bank PEIR A RTT
China CITIC Bank I (ERIRTT
China Zheshang Bank AR EDITRSRTT

notes:
0} Guaranteed by TMICL.

(i)  Guaranteed by Tianjin Expressway Investment and Construction
Development Company.

(iii)  All short-term borrowings bear interest ranging from 6.6% to 8.2%
(2007: 6.1% to 7.5%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of short-term bank borrowings approximate their fair
values as at 30 June 2008 either due to their short-term maturity or because

(b)

HHIRITE K

Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
note 2008 2007
RQETT ERE
20084 20074
B 6A30H 12A31H
(i) 499,890 100,000
(ii) — 55,000
100,000 —
200,000 —
(i) 45,000 —
844,890 155,000

R

(i) ABARETBRREGRAAEMBER -
(i) WMRETSERABRREERERAFIRMRE
R o

(i) FTARHAEROFNENT6.6%E8.2%
(20074 : 6.1%E7.5%) °

#1-20084F6A308 + B A £ BAfE A B H
BRI TISF RS - MEKREEEAUR

they bear interest at prevailing market rates throughout their maturity period.

Loans payable:

Long-term

Due to:
- TMEB (note(i))
- TFB (note(ii))

Short-term
Due to:
- TMEB
e Current portion of long term loan (note(i))
® Others (note(iii))
- Tianjin Municipal Government (note(iv))

AT

(©) EHEX

RAE

FELT -
—KEMHB (FE()
—FKEVHB (i)

AaH
FEfT
—KETWHB
o RHAERMB BN (1)
o Bty (FEEE(iii)
—RETMEN (F#(v)

Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2008 2007
RGETT ERE
20084 20074
6H30H 12A31H
147,273 147,273
28,800 —
176,073 147,273
16,364 32,727
94,455 95,522
10,613 10,613
121,432 138,862

ARAXBRROERATDVO-ZEZNFEHIHRE
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notes:

(i)  ARMB180 million loan was taken from TMEB during 2005 specifically
for construction of sewage water processing plants. The loan is
repayable in equal instalments over eleven years from 2007. The loan
bears interest at 5% per annum for the first two years. From 2008 to
maturity, the interest will be based on the one-year deposit plus 2%
premium.

(i)  Amount due to Tianjin Finance Bureau (TFB) is specifically for
construction of two recycling water processing plants.

(iiiy  Amount due to TMEB of RMB94 million (2007: RMB96 million) is
specifically for the same purpose and under same terms as the loan
described in Note (iv) below.

(iv) The RMB11 million (2007: RMB11 million) was borrowed from a
Tianjin Municipal Government body for the construction of the
Group’s water recycling plant. The loan is interest free and the method
and date of repayment which is supposed to be determined after the
completion of the said plant has yet to be finalised.

The repayment scheme for the RMB94 million and RMB11 million loans
mentioned in (iii) and (iv) above is still being negotiated. As the terms are
uncertain, these loans have been classified as current liabilities.

All loans payable are deemed government assistance and are measured at the
amount of loans received. The fair value of the long-term loans payable
amounted to RMB96 million (2007: RMB105 million)

(d)  Asatyear end, the Group has the following committed undrawn banking

facilities:
Floating rate: SEENFR
— Expiring within one year — 1 FUAREE]
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B

(i) HBRETHREBZEMERARE8E
TLA2005F S KEEHMERERAEES
& - BEEERK2007F LD 1NEYEHE
i o EREF RA25 A5%  #2008F 2
ZEH - FRRBIFHRERFEN2EE

DE o

(i) BRETHBBESNEEES  AR2E
BAEKBOIRER -

(i) RERETERBEHRBIARKEL,4008
7 (20074 : 9,600&7T) + E{EFKE BFIE
FAE A T GV BT ©

(ivi  AR®1,17008 7T (20074 : 1,100870) A&
BEREMMBAEMIBT - ARI5KE R
TRER - U EBR T B BEERA B
FEREBEEREEE -

LA BRI Gv) P 7 REY A R 69,4008 JT AN
AREE1100B THEBFERTEWMERSP - B
REABEERDR GLERCLEHEIEE
HBEE -

FiT A FE A {8 5139 B8 BT 1R 4E 4R B 3 A W B 89 18 5K
CHANE BEEMNEBEROAABEHNBARE
96/ &t (20074 : ARM105BET) °

HIEFE X ARQRFAEOTREBHRITRER
B

Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2008 2007
RGBT 2B
20084 20074
6H30H 12A31H
189,000 505,000



11 Trade and other payables 11 EZENNREMEMN

Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2008 2007
Restated
REGE BEE
6A30H 12A31H
20084 20074
KE
Advances for pipeline connection RN EEERER 155,510 143,092
Construction costs payable JEA B AR BN 97,921 56,377
Advance receivable from TSC TEUBEK A RIRIA — 27,385
Advance receivable from Project Hangu FEWoR A TR B FUR 27,909 —
Trade payables = ANEN 14,617 12,469
Accrued expenses JEIREH 10,811 5,317
Others Hi 75,561 30,430
382,329 275,070
As at 30 June 2008, the majority of trade payables are aged within one EL1E200856 30 « AEbH B B M ER
year. BRIE—FUR -
The carrying value of trade and other payables approximates their fair MRS REERNEIE - L EENERREEE
value due to their short-term maturities. NROREEELIURERAREE -
12 Operating profit 12 REERA
Operating profit is stated after (crediting)/charging the following: KEBNEFFARMNBETHNIER ¢
Unaudited
For the six months ended
REGETT
BZ6 A30HIEXEAR
30 June 2008 30 June 2007
Restated
2008 £ 2007 £
BEF
Crediting: WA
Rental O (4,642) (4,632)
Interest income on bank deposits IRITIERFTEEF BUA (2,829) (1,935)
Interest income on financial assets ©BhEE FTEE AR B (27,981) (29,539)
Charging: S
Depreciation and amortisation expenses e R HE A 59,876 57,061
Staff costs BTARA 35,330 13,501
Raw materials and consumables used M B B RE A 15,275 12,382
Repair and maintenance expenses 1BRE 10,834 8,050
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13 Finance costs 13 WERXE
Unaudited
For the six months ended
KREGE
BZ6 A30HLLAXMEA
30 June 2008 30 June 2007
Restated
2008 F 2007 &
KE
Interest expense on: MEER:
— bank borrowings —IRITERF B 99,792 64,381
— liability component of convertible bonds —BEBAFIRNATERES — 999
— Capitalized interests B AT S (2,976) —
96,816 65,380
Less: Interest income on bank deposits B RITERFTEER SMA (2,829) (1,935)
Interest income on financial assets SRIEREEF BMA (27,981) (29,539)
66,006 33,906
14 Income tax expense 14 FEHER

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group has no
assessable profit in Hong Kong (2007: Nil). PRC income tax has been
charged at 25% on the respective assessable profits of the Company
and its subsidiaries (2007: 33%).

Tax charge comprises: FRSTIER AT -
Current PRC income tax &P TSR
Deferred income tax EIEFTIS L
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A A& B & £ 200846 4 30H 1-61E B & fH
W E R B ME R ERT AN (20074F -
/) FTUAAHBMESEMEH - FEAFNZ
BRAERARE REMB AR ABESAME
SHERTR AN IZR25% B R E (20074 -

33%) °
Unaudited
For the six months ended
REQES
BZ6H30AHIEAREA
30 June 2008 30 June 2007
Restated
2008 F 2007 F
KES
31,892 47,114
3,872 10,876

35,764

57,990



15 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated based on the profit attributable
to equity holder of the Company of RMB105 million (2007: RMB128
million) and weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,427
million shares in issue during the period (2007: 1,367 million shares).

Diluted earnings per share is calculated using the same bade as
described above for calculating basic earnings per share after
adjusting for the Company’s Bonds during the six months ended 30
June 2007 , which were fully converted to ordinary shares or

15

BREN

EREAZFRFEADEBRREHBFARE
1.05187C (2007F « ARKE1.28B7L) © UK
FREETRM14.27EM (20074 : 13.6718

B FE o

ERBBARMNNDRE EMAAREEES L
20076 A30R IE &R ERRRIESF BT
H . ZSEHFCR2007FEETHERALR
fReiiEl -

redeemed during 2007, as follows:

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company
Finance costs on convertible debt (net of tax)

Profit used to determine diluted
earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue (million)

Adjustments for — assumed conversion of
convertible debt (million)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for diluted earnings per share (million)

Diluted earnings per share (RMB per share)

ARREFHE ARG AT

AEBRESHNSER (NEBRHE)

FAAETE S 2N e &

BBRITE BRI
(B&:)

TEE — R AT R E S B
(B&:)

SHEESREERN TR
nEFaE (585

BhEgRN (BRARET)

Unaudited
For the six months ended
RGBT

HZ6 A30HIAEA
30 June 2008 30 June 2007
2008 £ 2007 &
104,843 127,847
— 1,484
104,843 129,331
1,427 1,367
— 24
1,427 1,391
0.07 0.08

ARAXBRROERATDVO-ZEZNFEHIHRE
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16 Interim dividends 16 HHKRE

Unaudited
For the six months ended
REQES
BZ6 A30HLEAEA
30 June 2008 30 June 2007

2008 F 2007 &
2007 final, declared of RMB0.04 2007 FfE - EEKE
(2006 final, paid of RMB0.04) per share AR 0.04 TER
(2006 & » ZHRLE
AR 0.04 TTER) 57,089 56,105
No interim dividend was proposed by the Board of Directors of the RABEEERE 200846830 IE/XE A
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2008 (2007: nil). EARIL R B AR R (20074 « M) o
17 Commitments 17 AESHE
The Group's capital commitments at the balance sheet date in respect REER B TKEERERNERERENT
of construction projects are as follows: Frz
Contracted but Authorised but
not provided for not contracted for
EENRBE EBEREND
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
REET 2B REGEF 2B
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007
20084 20074 20084 20074
6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H

RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million
ARWBET ARKEET ARKHEET ARKBEET

Sewage water processing VIKEIERRIER ¢
plants in:
- Hang Zhou — M 341 341 — —
—Wen Deng —X& 60 96 — —
- Jing Hai —58 37 43 — —
— Chi Bi —TREE — 12 — 7
~XiAn A% — — — 643
-E Zhou — 36N — — — 95
Recycled water factories: FRIKRR
- Dong Jiao — R 32 50 59 59
—Bei Chen —dtR 12 14 58 59
— Xian Yang Lu — B B 4 10 49 50
486 566 166 913
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18 Related party transactions

The majority of the business activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries are conducted with state-owned enterprises (thereafter
“SOE”). The Company and its subsidiaries have established
procedures to determine, to the extent possible, the identification of
the ownership structures of its customers and suppliers as to whether
they are SOE. Management believes that all material related party
balances and transactions have been adequately disclosed.

In addition to the related party information shown elsewhere in the
financial statements, the following is a summary of significant related
party transactions entered into in the ordinary course of the business
between the Company and subsidiaries and their related parties
during the year and balances arising from related party transactions
at the end of the year.

(a) Transactions with TMICL and its supervisory entities:

18

BuRZ

ARBREFRBIZIEBEADHREES
X ([EARE])ET ARABRETFRAD
BRI EMEBEE 2 EARBREF BHEER
EARBEELE BEEEMEMEERREL
M T BRERRXZECRE RO

BT ENRAREEMA PR Z @7 &
S TXEBRM T ARRREF AR R

EARBEEZRBIFARBEETZEKR
IR SMARBE X FEL 2 HIREREE

(a) BEXETBEREARARNLEGITEREN

25 -
Unaudited
For the six months ended
RSB
BZ6 A30HIEXEAR
30 June 2008 30 June 2007
20084 20074
RMB’million RMB’million
AR HET N
Revenue earned from TSC for sewage FEEK A RIRRER 2 U A
water processing services and — KRR RS E X
construction of sewage plant (note) EUNCEET TR ON
— Directly —EiE — 311
— Indirectly (note) —HE (GFE) 322 -
322 311
Rental income HERA 4 3
note: /Ejffﬁf .

In September 2005, Tianjin Municipal Government implemented the
Principles of Concession Services Arrangements of Tianjin Municipal Public
Utilities (the “Principles”). In accordance with these Principles, the Directors
regard TJCAC as the Company’s ultimate customer effective September 2005.

200659 A - RKEMBAFHBER(RETTHERA
REERFELEEERD (BBIE)) - RIEX
(BEEMENME  EFRSE2006F97 1
RETEREBZEGURARANRKES -

ARAXBRROERATDVO-ZEZNFEHIHRE
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(b) Transactions and balances with other SOE: (b) BRI SREER

Unaudited
For the six months ended
REQES
BZ6H30AHIEAREA

30 June 2008 30 June 2007
20084 2007
RMB’million RMB’million
AREEET AREEET

Drawdown of long-term loan XERAER 608 350
Drawdown of short-term loan XEVEEIE K 700 234
Interest expenses FEZ 100 64
Payment for plants construction X E R E 42 44
Purchase of property, REBYX - BB NERE
plant and equipment 1 —
Purchase of raw materials and RIS R K R B
accessories 8 —
The period end balances with TMICL and other state-owned ERREF  ERETBRREGRIER
enterprises are included in the financial statements as follows: HEERXEZSFRBEN AT
Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2008 2007
RGE BRET
6H30H 12A31H
20074 2006
RMB’million RMB’million

AREBET AREBET

Current liabilities RBEE
Balance held Trade and other payables % 5 R E fh e FUIBH B &% 534 100
(c) Key management compensation for the period ended 30 June (c) ZOBEREEZEMN20085F6A30H Ik
2008 is summarised as follows: BHE AT -
Unaudited
For the six months ended
RIQETT
HZ6 A30HIEAEA
30 June 2008 30 June 2007
20084 20074
Salaries and other short-term TERGHE T
employee benefits 3,443 2,741
Other long-term benefits H & i@ A 432 460
3,875 3,201
19 Comparative figures 19 LBRHF
Certain comparative figures have been adjusted or reclassified as a MRS BERAMER  METHREFEE
result of the changes in accounting policies. Further details are RENENOE - E—HFHBEHNMES -

disclosed in Note 3.
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(2) Prepared in accordance with the PRC Accouting

Standards

BALANCE SHEETS
AS AT 30 JUNE 2008

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and bank balances
Trade receivables
Prepayments to suppliers
Other receivables
Inventories

Total current assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade receivables due after one year
Long-term equity investments
Investment property
Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Intangible assets
Long-term prepaid expenses
Restricted bank deposits

Total of non-current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

BE

RBEE
SRS
HERYHK
FER

RBEER

FRBEE
R
RS
KEMRE
ET&E
ERIRE
BRAE
REGEER
TRERES

FRBEEAF

BEA

Notes

fifzt

VAN

No

AAAAA
=D =

@
O
@
®
®
(10)
an
(@)

(D) REPHESTRAUGFH

BEGER
2008 F6 H30 A
Group
R

Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2008 2008
ABET oRET
R20085 R2007%
6A30H 12A31H8
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

Company
NN

Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2007 2007
ABET oRET
R20085 R2007%
6H30H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

636,019 339,971 157,475 86,633
541,335 442,944 476,551 401,905
81,757 57,964 50,072 12,984
80,815 78,769 435,614 82,459

9,040 6,634 3,221 3,034

1,348,966 926,282 1,122,933 587,015
697,763 697,763 697,763 697,763
69,498 67,979 1,006,751 724,751
135,902 137,588 94,090 95,305

3,682,406 3,068,320 2,010,175 2,064,881
259,359 193,130 66,005 30,257
669,239 677,667 557,987 564,114
95,896 98,173 - -

- 19,770 - 19,770

5,610,063 4,960,390 4,432,771 4,196,841

6,959,029 5,886,672 5,555,704 4,783,856

ARAXBRROERATDVO-ZEZNFEHIHRE
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LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term borrowings
Trade payables
Advances from customers
Wage payables
Taxes payable
Interest payable
Dividend payable
Other payables
Current portion of
long-term borrowings
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term borrowings
Specific payables
Long-term payables

Total long-term liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital
Capital reserves
General reserves
Undistributed profits

Capital and reserves
attributable to the
Company'’s equity holders
Minority interest

Total shareholders’ equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

BERRRER
RBAE
RHER
FEfTIRR
YR
JETE TN
EXHE
FERFIS
FEARR
HEEAR
— R
RAER
Hiwr#asE

RBREST

FRBAME
REE
BREEMK
REEARK

FRBEBE
BEAF
RRER

AR

BALHE

YN
AR EHE

BRRFLF
RREZ AT
DR RS

RREHEE

BERRRERAT

(12)
13)
4

1s)

(16)
a7

19
(18)

(19)
(20)
@n

@2)
23)
@4

(25)

Group Company
aff AF

Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007
REE 2RET REE 2B
H20085F 20075 20085 20075
6830H 12A31H 68308 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ~ ARETT  ARMTT  ARETT
844,890 155,000 799,890 155,000
14,617 12,469 7,382 6,139
187,566 171,341 31,877 28,099
5,136 6,674 4,539 5,753
(2,376) 69,727 (7,839) 61,642
— 660 — —
57,894 842 57,894 842
146,697 113,286 155,160 100,957
483,790 416,250 434,000 334,000
121,432 138,862 16,364 32,727
1,859,646 1,085,111 1,499,267 725,159
1,876,125 1,646,250 976,000 1,035,000
28,800 — 28,800 —
147,273 147,273 147,273 147,273
2,052,198 1,793,523 1,152,073 1,182,273
3,911,844 2,878,634 2,651,340 1,907,432
1,427,228 1,427,228 1,427,228 1,427,228
383,338 383,338 380,788 380,788
229,865 229,865 229,865 229,865
891,291 852,737 866,483 838,543
2,931,722 2,893,168 2,904,364 2,876,424
115,463 114,870 — —
3,047,185 3,008,038 2,904,364 2,876,424
6,959,029 5,886,672 5,555,704 4,783,856
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INCOME STATEMENTS

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2008

Income from principal operations

Less: Cost for principal operations
Business tax and surcharges
Administrative expenses
Financial expenses - net

Add: Investmentincome

Including: Share of profit of
an associate

Operating profit
Add: Non-operating income
Less: Non-operating expenses

Including: Loss on disposal of
non-current assets

Total profit
Less: Income tax

Net profit

Attributable to
Equity holders of the Company

Minority interests

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to the equity
holders of the Company
during the year (in RMB yuan)

Basic

Diluted

£ ON

o BERK
BERSRMM
ERER
BHER-FE

e REE

He o HEEDEN
BB

EEAH
0+ BRI
A B
s SERDAE
REBK

BB
W FTEHRER

B8

BEREDFIRRY
RNE

DEBRRIBH

shRiE (AR¥R)
EAXgRYE
wESRkE

Notes

3

VAN

(28)

(29)

(25)

(30)

EIbEES

2200846 A30H 1F61EA
Group Company
i NG|
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Six months Six months Six months Six months
Ended 30 Ended 30 Ended 30 Ended 30
June 2008 June 2007 June 2008 June 2007
REET RECEG REET RICET
Bz Bz Bz Bz
2008 2007 & 2008 £ 2007 F
6A30H 68300 6A30H 6A30H
LE6{ER 1E6{ER LE6{ER L6{ER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
527,559 474,882 366,478 367,700
(238,699) (198,262) (132,711) (123,489)
(20,159) (20,367) (19,744) (20,014)
(46,046) (41,799) (30,485) (30,081)
(96,538) (60,854) (69,969 (41,302)
2,051 2,499 — —
2,051 2,499 — —
128,168 156,099 113,569 152,814
292 1,352 4 6
(331) (336) (200) (46)
128,129 157,115 113,373 152,774
(31,893) (47,741) (28,343) (45,372)
96,236 109,374 85,030 107,402
95,643 110,585
593 (1,211)
0.07 0.08
0.07 0.08
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2008

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from rendering of
goods and services
Tax levies refund received
Cash received relating to other
operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid for goods and services

Cash paid to and on behalf of
employees

Taxes paid

Cash paid relating to other
operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash flows from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from disposal of investments
Cash received from returns on investments
Net cash received from disposal of

fixed assets
Cash received relating to other

investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid to acquire fixed assets and
other long-term assets
Cash paid to acquire investments
Cash paid relating to other
investing activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash flows from
investing activities

- REFEBELNRERE

HERm - 'R
WEmRE
WEIMHBRE
WEIMECELLES
BENRE

BEEHRERANG

BEAm  EXBH
E A

IR RIAR
RBIXNNRE
XANEERE
XANETRELEE
BENRE

REERERA /N

BEEDELEN
RERERR

Z-RERHELNEERE

WEREFEINE
BEREREWEINES
REBETEERDNS

WEIE B EIRE)
BEARRE

RERBRERANG

BRETEEMEMRY
BEFMXNNRE
RAMXNHRE
IRHEMER AR
BEARRE

RERGRASRL G

REEHEEN
REREFH

RERER
HZE2008F6H30H 1F61EA
Group Company
& ARF
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Six months Six months Six months Six months
Ended 30 Ended 30 Ended 30 Ended 30
June 2008 June 2007 June 2008 June 2007
REE REE REE RICEG
BZ BZ BZ BZ
2008 & 2007 F 2008 & 2007 &
6H30H 6H30H 6H30H 6A30H
H61EA 1H6fEA H6fEA 1E6fEA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFIL ARBTFIL ARBTFIL ARETFIL
413,448 289,961 258,206 153,441
— 340 — —
111,344 16,304 159,573 6,764
524,792 306,605 417,779 160,205
(116,629) (92,077) (53,584) (52,025)
(34,036) (27,396) (17,843) (15,242)
(129,795) (77,701) (118,892) (70,239)
(25,528) (54,903) (13,257) (41,835)
(305,988) (252,077) (203,576) (179,341)
218,804 54,528 214,203 (19,136)
2,885 — 400 —
800 — — —
87 121 4 97
64,707 17,227 62,186 17,135
68,479 17,348 62,590 17,232
(854,920) (141,701) (518,023) (98,358)
— — (282,000) (48,000)
(688) (4,300) — —
(855,608) (146,001) (800,023) (146,358)
(787,129) (128,653) (737,433) (129,126)
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Group Company

& ARF
Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited Unaudited
Six months Six months Six months Six months
Ended 30 Ended 30 Ended 30 Ended 30
June 2008 June 2007 June 2008 June 2007
REET REET REET REET
BZz Bz Bz Bz
2008 & 2007 F 2008 & 2007 &
6A30H 6HA30H 6HA30H 6HA30H
t6fEA t6fEA t6fEA t6fEA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT

Cash flows from financing activities = EEZTHEENELSRE

Cash received from borrowings NGk 1,367,890 403,000 1,007,890 313,000
Cash received relating to other WeB E fh B4R 5 B
financing activities EBmRs 37,020 37,933 25,576 21,933
Sub-total of cash inflows EBEHRLMA e 1,404,910 440,933 1,033,466 334,933
Cash repayments of amounts borrowed BREBMXNNES (382,388) (210,125) (322,000) (197,000)

Cash payments of interest expenses BNMBZTRRE (143,084) (75,201) (111,391) (55,831)
Cash payments relating to other SN MBEEEE)

financing activities BRERNRE (39,065) (842) (30,003) (842)

Sub-total of cash outflows ERRHREML/ G (564,537) (286,168) (463,394) (253,673)
Net cash flows from EETHELEN

financing activities REREBRE 840,373 154,765 570,072 81,260
Net increase/(decrease) in cash CBEF (HY) /e 272,048 80,640 46,842 (67,002)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY - UNAUDITED
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2008

Balance at 31
December 2007
Add: Changes in
accounting principles
Restatements on
accounting errors
of prior periods

Balance at
1 January 2008

Six months ended
30 June 2008
Profit for the period
Profit appropriation
— Appropriation to
statutory common
reserves

- Dividend
appropriation to
shareholders

Balance at
30 Jun 2008

2007128 31R
FRAE

- EEERE

AR E IE

2008 1R 1R
FABE

2008 16 A
EREBR
gl
MEDE

RMBHLE

HERMDE

20086 A 30 B
MR

AHFAEERERDR - REEH

# Z2008%6 H30H 1618 A
Unaudited
REE
Current period amount
FHER
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BERAAARRES
Capital General Undistributed Minority
Share capital reserve reserve profit Interests Total
e EN BHRAE  ROENE JSBRREZE RREZSH
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
1,427,228 383,338 229,865 852,737 114,870 3,008,038
1,427,228 383,338 229,865 852,737 114,870 3,008,038
— — — 95,643 593 96,236
— — — (57,089) — (57,089)
1,427,228 383,338 229,865 891,291 115,463 3,047,185

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited ¢ 2008 Interim Report




Balance at 31
December 2006

Add: Changes in
accounting
principles

Restatements on

accounting errors
of prior periods

Balance at
1 January 2007
Six months ended
30 June 2007
Profit for the period
Conversion of
convertible bonds
Profit appropriation
- Appropriation to
statutory common
reserves
- Dividend appropriation
to shareholders

Balance at
30 June 2007

2006 % 12 A 318
FREGE

0 BEHERER

FIHEEEE

2007%1A18
F6GE

2007 % 1-6 A
HHEDE
FHE

RRBHLE

HERRADE

20076 A 30 A
HRERE

Unaudited

REET
Last year comparative period figures
LERMEE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BERARARRES
Capital General Undistributed Minority
Share capital reserve reserve profit Interests Total
TN EFOR BHAR  AOENE SBREREZE RREZSH
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTE  ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETI
1,330,666 101,297 220,356 734,539 116,111 2,502,969
1,330,666 101,297 220,356 734,539 116,111 2,502,969
— — — 110,585 (1,211) 109,374
71,971 205,840 — — — 277,811
— — — (56,106) — (56,106)
1,402,637 307,137 220,356 789,018 114,900 2,834,048
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY OF THE COMPANY - UNAUDITED
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2008

Balance at 31 December 2007
Add: Changes in accounting principles
Restatements on accounting
errors of prior periods

Balance at 1 January 2008

Six months ended 30 June 2008
Profit for the period
Profit appropriation
- Appropriation to statutory
common reserves
- Dividend appropriation
to shareholders

Balance at 30 Jun 2008

Balance at 31 December 2006
Add: Change in accounting principles
Restatement on accounting
errors of prior periods

Balance at 1January 2007

Six months ended 30 June 2007
Profit for the period
Conversion of convertible bonds
Profit appropriation
- Appropriation to statutory
common reserves

- Dividend appropriation to shareholders

Balance at 30 June 2007

2007 &£ 12 B 31 BEKRE
m: eFERe

AIHEERIE

2008 1 B 1 REERE

2008 £ 1-6 R R EBE
EHE
FEAE
REESBAE
BRI

2008 £ 6 A 30 A REAE

2006 £ 12 B 31 BEKREE
m: eHHEER

AIHIESERIE

2007 £ 1 A 1 RENEE

2007 & 1-6 ALHBBE
FRIE
BBk
FIEARE

ROABLE

HIRRODE

2007 £ 6 B 30 BHIREAE

FRRAMAEREREDR - REET

# 220086 H30H 1-618 A
Unaudited
REET
Current period amount
rHEH
Share Capital General  Undistributed
capital reserve reserve profit Total
2 RS BHAR APENE  RRERAT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
1,427,228 380,788 229,865 838,543 2,876,424
1,427,228 380,788 229,865 838,543 2,876,424
— — — 85,029 85,029
— — — (57,089) (57,089)
1,427,228 380,788 229,865 866,483 2,904,364
Unaudited
REEH
Last year comparative period figures
LERHER
Share Capital General  Undistributed
capital reserve reserve profit Total
R BRDR BHLAR AIBNE  RREHAEE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
1,330,666 101,297 217,734 748,458 2,398,155
1,330,666 101,297 217,734 748,458 2,398,155
— — — 107,402 107,402
71,971 205,840 — — 277,811
— — — (56,106) (56,106)
1,402,637 307,137 217,734 799,754 2,727,262
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COMPANY PROFILE AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited (the
“Company”) was established on 8 June 1993 in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"”) as a joint stock limited company. The
Company'’s registered address is No. 45 Gui Zhou Lu, Heping District,
Tianjin, the PRC, and the office address is TCEP Building, 76 Weijin
South Road, Nankai District, Tianjin, the PRC. Tianjin Municipal
Investment Company Limited (“TMICL") is the Company’s ultimate
holding company.

The prevailing operating activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) include sewage water processing, tap water supply,
production of recycled water and operation of toll roads.

The operation mode of the Group'’s principal activities is described
below:

(a) Sewage water processing

Water Processing Agreement:

Pursuant to relevant agreements, the Group currently provides
sewage water processing services via following plants:

Plant Location Contract Date

vE SR HH

Prior years’ agreements still in operation

BT F R Z AT IERITE A A -

Dong Jiao, Tianjin 10 October 2000
RAE R 20005 10A10H
Ji Zhuang Zi, Tianjin 10 October 2000
RE WLETF 20009104 10H
Xian Yang Lu, Tianjin 10 October 2000
RAE  BEE 2000510A10H
Bei Cang, Tianjin 10 October 2000
XE dE 20009104 10H
Guiyang, Guizhou 16 September 2004
BM ES 20049 H16H
Baoying, Jiangsu 13 June 2005
TE HIE 20056 H13H
Fuyang, Anhui 18 December 2005
ZH R 2005512 A 18H
Qujing, Yunnan 25 December 2005
TR HiB 2005412 A 25H
Honghu, Hubei 29 December 2005
i | =97 2005912 A29H
Hangzhou, Zhejiang 20 November 2006
AL N 2006411 A20H
Jing Hai, Tianjin 12 September 2007
RAE BB 20079F9H12R
Wen Deng, Shandong 19 December 2007
iR xX=&E 20074 12R19H

— > REEXER

KEZRIFERRBROBRAE ([A28E]) 2R
1993F6A8HAEFEARKEME ([FRH])5F
Mz D BR AR « AA A M A E
KR TR EMNEEAG5R - At AFREX
ETMHEAEAEEE7ICHAIEREANE - X2
MEEEARAR (MRIEE]) AEAQR T
ENCIR

ARRARET AR (ARRE) 0 OHEE R
BIESKEIE - BAKBUK - RRRERKE
PR

UTRAREEEXBHLERN

(a) FKREEEHK

SSKEEETGE
KRS AEBBBANTITKER
RIR M5 KRR AR 7S
Customer
TR

Tianjin Sewage Company (“TSC")
REMHKRRE ([HKRDF])

TSC

BEK A E]

TSC

BEK A E]

TSC

BEK A E]

Guiyang City Administration Bureau (“GCAB")
ESHTERER

Baoying construction Bureau (“BCB")
BREEERR

Anhui Fuyang Construction Committee (“AFCC")
EEmEREER

Quijing City Water General Company (“QCWG")
HhIE T L HE KR A

Honghu construction Bureau (“HCB")
HMTERB

Hangzhou Sewage Company (“HSC")

MM T BEKBR 2 A

Tianyu Science Technology Park
Adminstration Committee

of Tiajjin New Techology Industry Area
REFEMEXEARRTHMREEREZES
Wendeng Construction Bureau

NEMERD
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Plant Location Contract Date

vE BRI HH

Significant new agreement in 2008:
20084F # FETHY A 6] -
Xi An, Shanxi 18 March 2008

pr7g % 200843 H18H

The principal terms and the pricing formula as set out in the
relevant contracts are briefly summarised below:

Dong Jiao:

The Company will have full recovery of actual operating costs,
including depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets,
excluding interest expenses and foreign exchange gains or
losses and at minimum:

(i) earnsareturn of 15% per annum of the average balance of
the monthly net book value of fixed assets (as defined in
the agreement) of the plants; and

(i)  incentive pricing adjustments will be made for cost saving
and/or when actual processing volume exceeds the
minimum processing volume stipulated in the agreement.

Ji Zhuang Zi, Xian Yang Lu and Bei Cang:

Based on the supplementary agreement reached with TSC on
10 March 2006, the Company is entitled to a pre-determined
sewage processing fee from the completion date of
construction to the completion date of inspection of Ji Zhuang
Zi, Xian Yang Lu and Bei Cang plants. Processing fee after the
completion of inspection of these three plants will be collected
from TSC using the same principle as for Dong Jiao plant.

Other sewage processing plants:

Initial sewage water processing prices are predetermined. In
addition:

(i) processing price as determined above may be revised
pursuant to the price adjustment formula agreed in the
contract after considering various factors including
renovation of equipment, additional investment, power
and energy and labour force, and other significant
changes of government policy;

(ii)  except for Guizhou, customers in their regions guaranteed
a minimum processing volume. If the actual volume is
lower than the guaranteed volume, processing fee will be
settled based on the guaranteed volume;
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(ii)
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(i) following the official operation of the Guizhou Sewage
Water Processing Plant for two years, the initial price will
be determined by both parties using the price
determination formula stipulated in the relevant
agreement. The price determination formula allows the
actual operating costs to be covered in full by sewage
water processing operations, including operating cost,
depreciation, income tax and a return of 8% on budgeted
net assets of the plant.

(b) Construction of sewage water processing plants

The construction of |i Zhuang Zi, Xian Yang Lu and Bei Cang
was completed in late 2005. The Company did not incur
sewage water processing plant construction fee since 2006. The
background to the relevant agreements of sewage water
processing plants since 2003 is detailed below:

Construction Agreement:

Pursuant to an agreement (“Construction Agreement”)
between the Company and TSC dated 24 September 2001, the
Company is to provide construction services to TSC in respect of
three plants of Xian Yang Lu, Ji Zhuang Zi and Bei Cang.

The principal terms of the Construction Agreement are
summarised below:

e afee will be paid by TSC during the period of construction
as a reward to remunerate the Company for accepting the
responsibility to construct the sewage water processing
plants;

e  Afeeis payable by TSC in advance on a monthly basis
according to the percentage of completion of the
respective construction projects estimated by the
Company. The percentage of completion of each project
will be adjusted on a quarterly basis according to the
certifications issued by qualified independent surveyors or
engineers;

e the Company is responsible for the funding of the
construction cost of these plants, and

e upon commencement of operations of the three sewage
water processing plants, the rights and obligations
between the Company and TSC will follow the terms as
specified in the Sewage Water Processing Agreement as
applicable to the Tianjin plants (Note 1(a)).

(iii)
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RIBEAR QT R2001F9H24 H EEEKAF]
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bR EY E EERAT
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(o)

Transfer Agreement:

In addition, on 24 September 2001, respective agreements
(“Transfer Agreements”) were signed whereby, the Company
would be responsible for the construction and management of
the remaining uncompleted portion of the plants. The transfers
were deemed completed on 30 October 2002.

Co-operative Agreement:

On 25 August 2003, the Company entered into an agreement
with TSC (“Co-operative Agreement”) whereby:

e the Company would be responsible for the overall
execution of the construction of the three plants;

e TSCwould be responsible for making use of the original
loans from two foreign banks (the “Foreign Loans”) to
fund certain property, plant and equipment used in these
plants;

e TSCwill sell to the Company these Foreign Loans funded
property, plant and equipment after their installation and
the issuance of verification reports, at their carrying value.
The construction fee charged by the Company pursuant
to the above mentioned Construction Agreement, would
include the cost of these property, plant and equipment as
the base (Note 14); and

e the Company would be responsible for the repairs and
maintenance of these property, plant and equipment
during the construction period.

Road toll stations

There are no changes of terms in the following agreements since
2003, the background is detailed as below:

Prior to 2003, the Company owned the right, to set up toll
stations at the junctions between the Tianjin city roads and
expressways leading to the city, and to collect tolls generally
from non-Tianjin registered motor vehicles (other than those
exempted by law) passing these toll stations. The right was for
a term expiring on 28 February 2029.
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During 2003, following the reform of the public transportation
network, the Tianjin Municipal Government relocated certain
toll stations, including those of the Company, to the boundary
of the interstate highways surrounding Tianjin. The collection of
tolls from non-Tianijin registered vehicles was then centralised at
a Tianjin Toll Collection Office (“Toll Collection Office”) set up by
TMEB. As a result, the Company’s toll stations were demolished
since 31 May 2003 and TMEB agreed to compensate the
Company principally as follows:

e aone-off cash compensation by TMEB equivalent to the
net book value of the assets of the demolished toll stations
as at 30 June 2003 of about RMB33 million.

e compensation for loss in revenue, during the period from
31 May 2003 to the date of completion of construction of
the new toll stations, equivalent to the revenue received in
the same period of last year of about RMB5.5 million net of
expenses.

Company was granted the collection right of six new toll
stations from 1 July 2003 to 28 February 2029. However, the
Company is not allowed to transfer, lease or pledge the right to
other parties without TMEB’s consent.

In tandem, the Company entered into an agreement (“Toll
Collection Agreement”) with Toll Collection Office on 24 July
2003 with following principal terms:

e the Company engaged the Toll Collection Office to collect
the tolls at the six new toll stations on its behalf for which
it will pay a management fee;

e the Company is to receive the actual tolls collected from
the six new stations for the corresponding period/year,
subject to minimum toll fee for each period/year based on
the forecast traffic flow and tolls for the corresponding
period/year as stipulated in a traffic flow and tolls forecast
report for the six new toll stations issued by a professional
consulting company in July 2003; and

e any shortfall to the Company between actual and the
agreed minimum will be compensated to the Company by
the Toll Collection Office.
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(d) Tap water processing

Pursuant to agreement reached with Qujing City Water General
Company on 25 December 2005, a subsidiary of the Company,
Qujing Capital Water Co., Ltd., provides tap water supply
service to Qujing City via the Yunnan Qujing tap water
processing plant at predetermined pricing. In addition:

(i)  Supply price as determined above may be revised after
considering various cost factors based on contract terms;

(i) Qujing City Water General Company guarantees a
minimum supply volume. If the actual volume is lower
than the guaranteed volume, supply fee will be settled
based on the guaranteed volume.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group adopted the China Accounting Standards promulgated by
the Ministry of Finance on 15 February 2006, its application
guidance, interpretations and other related regulations promulgated
subsequently (collective as “CAS"), effective from 1 January 2007.

As at 30 June 2008, the Group and the Company’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets amounted to approximately RMB511
million and RMB376 million respectively. Despite the forgoing, these
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,
because the Directors of the Company believe that the undrawn
banking facilities are sufficient to enable the Group and the Company
to meet their respective liabilities as and when they fall due.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE OF CAS

These financial statements present fairly, the financial positions of the
Group and the Company as at 30 June 2008, and of its respecting
financial performances and its respecting cash flows for six months
ended 30 June 2008 in accordance with the relevant requirements of
CAS.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATE

CEESTREMEF A

(1) Financial year (1) BFHEE
The financial year is from 1 January to 31 December of each 2 FEALABIATBREEI12A318
calendar year. 1Ee

(2) Reporting currency (2) REEARMLHE
The reporting currency is Renminbi (“RMB"). AL RARE -

(3) Foreign currency translations (3) HEIFEHE
Foreign currency transactions are translated into RMB at the HNEE 22 512 22 5% H A ) BN ARGE = 8 oM s
spot exchange rates stipulated at the transaction dates. CHEITERARBEAR -
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the REEBEXRR IMEEBHEBRAE
balance sheet date are translated into RMB at the spot exchange EBBEXRANPEXNESARE - i
rates at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising EENTEEZERT RBERENAENEE
from these translations are expensed, except for those A E E T (8 A B ME HPIERE
attributable to foreign currency borrowings that have been EERERIZEMCNRAEEN - B
taken out specifically for the construction of fixed assets, which Rt NS BER - B LKA E/INE
are capitalized as part of the fixed asset costs. Non-monetary JEEMMIER  RNEEBEBEXRAKRARS
items denominated in foreign currency that are measured in BHEAMMEERTHE o
terms of historical cost are translated into RMB at spot exchange
rates at its respecting transaction dates on the balance sheet
date.

(4) Cash and cash equivalents (4) RERBELZEEY
For the purpose of cash flow statements, cash represents cash in FIRRIRERERTPHNRCEEEFRS
hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash equivalents LA BERARINNTER  ReSEYe
represent investments with short-term highly liquid, easy ERAEHNERE  REtE  HRERE
converted to cash and low risk on changes in its value. EHeRe REEZHRERRENE

& o

(5) Financial assets (5) *WMEE

Financial assets include receivables, which are non-derivative CREERBWGIE BT ERMST

financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market, which include trade receivables and

other receivables (Note 4(6)).

Financial assets are recognised at fair value when the G

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument. The related transaction cost of other financial assets
are included in the initial recognition amounts except that the
related transaction cost of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are included in the income statement. A financial

asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to the

RAERE - C e B R E R A EE A IENT
HEREE BRI E & Y
% (P3EM(B))

TREERAKERSERTASRN—
TR BAREBEEEEEABRAER o
TREENRERZEAANLERS
B BERACREEWIRERENER
ENERIEEZEREEMBR LT
FENRBRMBMCEREEATH - &
IFHERZETMEE °

roup

cash

flows of the financial asset expire or all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are substantially transferred to

the transferee.

Receivables and held-to-maturity investments are measured at

amortisation cost using effective interest method.

R RS B B AR A A
Eik - ABBRR AR o

ARAXBRROERATDVO-ZEZNFEHIHRE

81



82

(6)

The Group assesses the impairment for financial assets at each
balance sheet date, the impairment provision is made when
there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired.

When there is impairment for those financial assets measured at
amortisation cost, the impairment loss is recognized for the
amount by which the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit loss yet occurred) of the asset is
lower than its carrying amount. If subsequently there is
objective evidence of a recovery value of the financial asset
which is objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previous recognised
impairment loss is reversed in the income statement for the
period.

Receivables

Receivables include trade receivables and other receivables. The
Group'’s trade receivables arising from sale of goods and
rendered services are initially recognized on the amount for the
fair value of contracted amount with customers. The trade
receivables are presented at amortised cost using effective
interest method less provision for doubtful debts.

For those receivables with significant amount, the provision is
made against differences of present value of its estimated future
cash flows lower than its carrying value as a result of separate
impairment test, when there are evidences to indicate that the
Group is unable to collect all the outstanding balances
according to the term of receivables.

For the remaining receivables, together with those receivables
without impairment risk as a result of separate impairment test
described as above, are divided into certain groups according to
its respecting feature of credit risk. The provision is made
according to respecting groups’ percentages of provision for
doubtful debts, which are determined based on current
circumstances and the actual loss rate of its respecting groups
with same or similar feature of credit risk during previous
periods,
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(8)

Inventories

Inventories comprise raw materials, finished goods, spare parts
and consumables, which are state at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is determined on the weighed average basis. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an allocation of all production overheads
incurred based on normal operating capacity.

Provision for declines in the values of inventories are determined
on the differences between the carrying value of the inventories
higher than their net realisable value. Net realisable value is
determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds less
estimated distribution and selling expenses.

The Group adopts perpetual inventory system to maintain its
inventories.

Long-term equity investments

Long-term equity investments comprise the Company’s
investment in subsidiaries and associate and other investments
without control, jointly control or significant influence to
investee, without quotation in an active market and its fair value
cannot be measured reliably.

(a) Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company is able
to control, and the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights of convertible bonds or exercisable
warrants that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. In the Company’s separate financial
statements, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost, which are changed to equity accounting when the
consolidated financial statements are prepared.

The investments in subsidiaries are recognized at initial
cost under cost method. The cash dividends or profit
declared by the investee are recognized as investment
income in the declared period. The recognized investment
income are not exceeded the appropriation of
accumulated profit of investee since investment made, any
excessive portion as above are regarded as return of initial
investment cost.

(7)

(8)
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(b)

©

Interest in joint ventures and investment in associates

Joint ventures are all entities jointly controlled by the
Group and other parties. Associates are all entities over
which the Group has significant influence on the financial
and operating policies.

Interests in joint ventures and investment in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost. If the cost of investment is
exceeded the investor’s share of the fair value of the
associate’s identifiable net assets, the differences are
included in the cost of the investment. Any excess of the
investor’s share of the fair value of the associate’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment is
excluded from the carrying amount of the investment and
is instead included in the income statement.

Under the equity method, the Group's share of the profit
or loss of the investee is recognised in the investor’s profit
or loss. If an investor’s share of losses of an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, the investor
discontinues recognising its share of further losses, unless
the Group has obligation to undertake any additional loss
according to the criteria of provision under the relevant
accounting standard of contingency. Otherwise, the
carrying amount of the investment and other long term
equities in the investee is reduced to the extent of zero.
The changes of investee’s equity other than net profit are
directly recognized as capital surplus according to the
investor’s share in the investee if it remains unchanged,
distributions of cash dividend or profit declared by an
investee reduce the carrying amount of the investment to
the extent of investor’s share. Unrealised gains or losses on
transactions between the Group and its investee are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, the investment income (loss) are recognised
accordingly. Unrealised losses are not also eliminated if the
transactions between the Group and its investee provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Other long-term equity investment

Other investments without significant influence to
investee, without quotation in an active market and its fair
value cannot be measured reliably are stated cost.
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(d) Impairment for long-term equity investment

The carrying value of long-term equity investment is
reduced to its recoverable amount when its estimated
recoverable amount is lower than its carrying value (Note

(d REIBRERERE

EREMBRERENTKRE S EER
HEmEER  REBERLER
Yeml & 58 (MR (14) o

4(14)).
Investment property (9) REMEME
The investment property represents leased buildings, and is BREMEFEMESD HENEEY - UER
stated at cost model initially. The subsequent expenditures RAEITIIAETE - BRREMEIMESH
relating to investment property are recorded in cost of B& B - AR ETIRRATEER
investment property when it is probable that the relevant ABEBEBEKAREAA ENETER - 5t
economic benefit will flow to the Group and the cost can be AREERHERSE « BRI - EEHERGT
measured reliably, otherwise, are recognized in the income NE BB -
statements as incurred.
The Group adopts cost model to measure all the investment REERARAEXEFARE LS HE
property. The investment property are amortised or depreciated EITRESNE - REARGERSS ROFE
according to its respecting estimated useful lives and residual EXHREYFHEFT ERBHNT
value as follows:
Depreciation/

Estimated Estimated (amortisation)

useful lives residual value rate rate per annum

A EASES R ERER FHE (B =
Buildings 25-50 years 5% 1.9% to 3.8%
e ) 25-504F 5% 1.9%%3.8%

For a transfer of investment property to own-occupied property,
the investment property is reclassified as fixed asset or intangible
asset on the date of change in use. For a transfer of own-
occupied property to earn rental or capital appreciation, the
fixed asset or intangible asset is reclassified as investment
property on the date of change in use. The carrying value of an
asset before and after the change in use remains the same.

The estimated useful lives, estimated residual value and
depreciation (amortisation) method are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

The investment property is derecognized when it is disposed or
no economic benefit arsing from ceasing use permanently or
disposal. The gain or loss on disposal of investment property is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the income
statement. The investment property’s carrying amount is
written down immediately to its recoverable amount if its
estimated recoverable amount is lower than its carrying value
(Note 4(14)).
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(10) Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets include road, buildings and structures, machinery
and equipment, motor vehicles and others. Fixed assets
purchased or constructed by the Group are recorded at cost.

The subsequent expenditures relating to fixed assets are
recorded in cost of fixed assets when it is probable that the
relevant economic benefit will flow to the Group and the cost
can be measured reliably, the carrying value of replaced portion
is derecognized and all other subsequent expenditures are
recognized in the income statements as incurred.

Depreciation of the road in relation to the toll stations business
are calculated to write off their cost on a units-of-usage basis
whereby the depreciation are provided based on the share of
estimated traffic volume for a particular period over the
projected total traffic volume throughout the period of 30 years
for which the right to operate the road is granted.

Depreciation of buildings and structures is calculated to write off
their cost less their estimated residual value at 5%, on a straight
line basis over their expected useful lives. The periods adopted
for depreciation range from 10 to 50 years. Pipelines network
laid outside the plant are included in structures with estimated
useful lives of 25 years.

Depreciation of other tangible fixed assets are calculated to
write off their cost less estimated residual value at 5%, over their
estimated useful lives on a straight line basis. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Machinery and equipment 10-20 years
Motor vehicles and others 5-15 years

The fixed asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if its estimated recoverable amount is
lower than its carrying value (Note 4(14)).

The available-for-sale fixed assets are presented at lower of its
carrying value and its fair value less cost to sell. The amount of
fair value less cost to sell lower than carrying value is recognized
as impairment loss.

The fixed asset is derecognized when it is disposed or no
economic benefit arsing from expecting use or disposal. The
gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the income statement.
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(11) Construction in progress (“CIP")

Construction in progress is stated at cost. Cost comprises
original cost of plant and equipment, installation, construction
and other necessary costs which include borrowing cost allowed
capitalisation, prior to the date of reaching the expected usable
condition. Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets
when the asset has been substantially completed and reaches
the expected usable condition and commenced its depreciation
from the following month.

The CIP’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its estimated recoverable amount is lower
than its carrying value (Note 4(14)).

(12) Intangible assets

Intangible assets mainly include land use rights, which are stated
at cost.

(a) Land userights

Amortisation of land use rights in relation to the toll
stations business are calculated to write off their cost on a
units-of-usage basis whereby the amortisation are
provided based on the share of estimated traffic volume
for a particular period over the projected total traffic
volume throughout the period of 30 years for which the
right to operate the road is granted. Amortisation of land
use rights, other than those in relation to the toll stations
business, is calculated to write off their cost, on a straight
line basis over the period of land use rights of range from
25 to 50 years. The cost of land use rights and buildings
are included in the fixed assets if it is difficult to allocate
reliably between land use rights and buildings.

(b) Impairment for intangible assets

The intangible assets’ carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if its estimated
recoverable amount is lower than its carrying value (Note
4(14)).

(c) Periodical review of estimated useful lives and amortisation
method

The estimated useful lives and amortisation method of
intangible assets with definite useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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(13) Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses include 30-year asset beneficiary
right and other prepayments that should be amortized over
more than one year. Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized
on the straight-line basis over the expected beneficial periods
and are presented at actual expenditures net of accumulated
amortisation.

(14) Impairment of assets

The impairment test is performed for the goodwill separate
presented in the financial statements annually, irrespective of
whether there is any indication of impairment. The impairment
test is performed for fixed assets, intangible assets, investment
property under measured at cost and long-term equity
investments, when there is an indication of impairment on the
balance sheet date. An impairment loss is recognized for the
amount by which the assets’ recoverable amount is lower than
its carrying amount as result of impairment test. The recoverable
amount of an asset is determined at the higher of its fair value
less cost to sell and its expected discounted future cash flows.
Provision for asset impairment is provided on the individual
asset, if it is difficult to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, its recoverable amount is determined by the
recoverable amount of its assets group which the individual
asset belonging. Assets group is at the lowest levels for which are
separately identifiable cash-generating units.

The impairment provision above is recognized and can not be
reversed, even the value of an asset is resumed in the future
periods.

(15) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred in connection with the acquisition or
construction of an asset necessarily takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
costs of the assets beginning when the capital expenditures and
borrowing costs have been incurred and the activities to enable
the assets to reach their expected usable condition have
commenced. The capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
the construction in progress has reached the asset’s expected
usable condition. Borrowing costs incurred thereafter are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
If the activities of acquisition or construction of an asset are
suspended unusually and suspended period over three months,
the capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased until the aforesaid
activities is resumed.
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(16) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

(17) Employee benefits

Employee benefits include wages, salaries, allowances, subsidy,
welfare, social security contributions, housing fund, union fee,
staff education fee and other expenditures relating to in
exchange for service rendered by employees.

Employee benefits payable are recognized and either as cost of
relevant assets or expenses according to their respecting
beneficial parties during the period of service rendered by
employees.

(18) Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds are divided by liability component and
equity component at inception. The liability component is
initially recognized at discounted future cash flows, the equity
component is net of liability component and total proceeds. The
liability component of convertible bonds is subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(19) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. A
deferred tax asset is recognised for the carrying forward of
unused tax losses allowed by tax laws to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax losses can be utilised. The deferred tax
liability is not provided on temporary differences arising from
initial recognition of goodwill. The deferred tax assets or
liabilities are not provided on those temporary differences arsing
from initial recognition of assets or liabilities of non business
combination and at the time of transactions, affects neither
accounting profit nor taxable income (deductible tax loss).
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled on the balance sheet date.

(16)

(17)

(18)

(19)

e
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TP SRR (R TIRINE1R) M3FR R A 6
MR SHPELNEEX A BENVIRERTY
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A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
obtained by the Group will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilised,

A deferred tax asset and liability is recognized for all taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates, and interests in joint ventures, except
that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

(20) Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value-
added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminated
sales within the Group.

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic
benefit associated with the transaction will flow to the Group,
the relevant revenue can be measured reliably and the criteria of
respecting specific operating revenue can be met as follows:

(i) Revenue from sewage water processing and tap water
supply services is recognised when services are rendered.

(i) Toll fee income is recognised on cash basis from toll road
users. Compensation from the Toll Collection Office is
recognised on accrual basis.

(iii) Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are
transferred to the buyer, the Group retains neither
continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the
goods sold, and it is probable that the economic benefit
associated with the transaction will flow to the Group and
the relevant revenue and costs can be measured reliably.

(21) Dividend distribution

Cash dividend to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as
a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the general meeting of the Company’s shareholders.
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(22) Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements

The consolidated accounts, including the accounts of the
Company and its subsidiaries

From the date of obtaining the effective control on a subsidiary,
the Company begins to consolidate the subsidiary’s revenue,
cost, profit, and will cease the consolidation from the date of
losing effective control. All significant inter-company
transactions and balances are eliminated in the consolidated
financial statements. Minority interests represent the portion of
the equity interests of the subsidiaries which are presented in
shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements
separately.

When there is inconsistency in accounting policies or
accounting period between the subsidiaries and the Company,
they will be adjusted according to the Company’s accounting
policies or accounting period when preparing consolidated
financial statements necessarily.

(23) Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged
in providing products or services that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments.

(24) Critical accounting estimate and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group’s principle estimate and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next year is as follows:

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group determines the impairment of trade and other
receivables based on objective evidence of impairment and
historical loss experience of the respective individual balances.
Management believes that trade and other receivables as at 30
June 2008 are not impaired.

(22)

(23)

(24)
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5 TAXATION o HIE
The applicable taxes and tax rates of the Group are mainly presented AEBARFEEANEEVEREB KRN
as follows: N
Tax by category Tax rate Basis of tax
wnE B=E HE
Enterprise income tax 25% Taxable income
BEMEH 25% JE 4N 5t P15 58
Value Added Tax (VAT) 17% Taxable value added amount (which is calculated as 17% of taxable sales,
net of deductible input VAT)
HEW 17% JEMT L ERE (RN IR BT I B RRVE AN R R E At
ME IR Z BB )
Business tax 5% Gross service income
BEM 5% JRE 4R T & 2 AR
City construction tax 7% and 3% The amount of business tax or VAT
and education surcharge
SRR e BB BB AN 7% 3% EEN I ENE
6  NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS N BBEHRREEHME
(1) CASH AND BANK BALANCES (1) E¥ES
Group Company
&t AT
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007

REW  DEBH  REET  CEEH
20085 R2007%F R2008%5F R20074F

6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H
Cash on hand B"e 149 327 28 105
Cash in bank RITER 635,870 359,414 157,447 106,298
636,019 359,741 157,475 106,403
Less: Restricted bank deposits ~ J& : RIERBNEE
included in non-current assets ~ FI'RAI PR ERTTIF 3K — (19,770) — (19,770)
636,019 339,971 157,475 86,633
Including: Erp
-Special funds for construction 7Ei T2 HF
in progress (note (a)) & (itF(a)) 81,030 58,116 59,803 29,877
-Bank deposits (note (b)) RESE (F# b)) 39,000 15,000 30,000 6,000
note: R
(@)  The special funds for construction in progress represent the unutilised (a) HEREIREAESFZRIKEEBERZHE
balances of the special loans for sewage water processing projects. FERP WA EAMIRITEREGRE -
(b)  The bank deposits represented deposits of RMB39 million (2007: RMB15 (b) REZA—FANINHMNBEERERESHTAR
million) for project bids due within one year. #39,000F 7T (20074 : AK%15,000F7T) °
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(2) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

(2) BWERR

Details of accounts receivable are as follows: JEW AR FRBRAR AT ¢
Group Company
a6t ¥ N
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007
REEG EREs REEG eEREs
R2008%F A2007F R2008%F A2007%
6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H

Due from TSC for: JEYHEK A 7]

- Water processing services —5KBEFR YA 689,609 616,043 689,609 616,043

- Construction of plants — KB IE R R B A 466,185 466,185 466,185 466,185

1,155,794 1,082,228 1,155,794 1,082,228

Less: Portion deemed - RABFENR

non-current (note (e)) (itH#(e)) (697,763) (697,763) (697,763) (697,763)
458,031 384,465 458,031 384,465
Others Hih 83,304 58,479 18,520 17,440
541,335 442,944 476,551 401,905

note: R

(@  Under the Co-operative Agreement (Note 1(b)), TSC agrees to sell to the (a) WBAARBEHKARRITNA ERHE (TE—
Company certain of its property, plant and equipment upon completion of (b)) + BEKARIRAEEAARE E KBRS &R
their construction and receipt of relevant verification reports, at their carrying WipdEe  SEUNREBEERGALQA - 1B
value. On 17 April 2004, TSC confirmed its intention to settle its debt due to 2004F 48178 » BEKARIER BB L& E
the Company with these mentioned assets. ERERARRRHRIEA
The construction of these assets was completed in late 2005, and based on KRR 2005 F REARTTK - 1R152007
the construction verification reports dated 27 December 2007, the Tianjin F12R27HAE = HEMNERETH BB E
Finance Bureau approved the verified value of these completed assets which MRIMBRERS  LEEREESTRA
amounted to about RMB698 million (2006: The estimated carrying value then R¥56.98187T (20065 : (At BREB/ARETS
was RMB750 million, which included about RMB50 million exchange loss BT - P BIEHKA R 2007 F & E R E N 18
now absorbed by TSC). @mHAREOBETT)

(b)  On 17 April 2007, TMCAC ( K ETEREIRE S ), the government body (b) REMEMRBHEESZANELHBRFTEEIT——
overseeing the management of construction and operation of infrastructure RETEREEZES ([TRZE])N2007F4A
in Tianjin, reconfirmed that the Tianjin Municipality has agreed to the 178 A& K - R BUNE RE# KA R LA
settlement of the Group’s debts in manner as agreed by TSC in (a) above. In (a)F Pt 5 N ERERSARRNER - =
addition, the remaining debt outstanding after such assets settlement will be BORESWE
settled by way of cash.

(c)  InJanuary 2008, the Company has requested TMCAC to accelerate the (c) 2008F 18 AARIMMREZIREIMEIREN Lill
settlement of the Group’s debts. The final settlement is still pending relevant RPRETEIERE o BB 2Bk T BUR B 730
governmental authorities approvals, the timing of which is not totally within FIEE - BRTT 2 AR RHES
the management’s control.

(d)  On 8 April 2008, TMCAC confirmed that there will be no legal obstacle to the (d) 2008F48  r MEZAHELMUEEBTEERBED

above mentioned assets settlement.

RHTFEEE AR
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(e)  On the basis that the assets settlement will eventually be finalised, about

RMB698 million).

Within one year
Over two years

(e) EREFLUMNUBEBFEBEBNRZZREEHTK -
RMB698 million due from TSC as at 30 June 2008, representing the verified B E2008F6 A30RHANBEEEBNEERE
cost of the assets has been reclassified to non- current trade receivables (2007: BHAARYG6.98E T - HHENEKERES
ERHEUYGR(2007F : ARMK6.98(87T) °
Based on the above information and confirmations on hand, the Directors RIEFMEEREMEMBE®RRAR  EEHEE
believe that the amount due from TSC is eventually fully recoverable. WHE K A RIFRIH A AR BE S 2 H 4 [a] »
The aging of the total accounts receivable before reclassification is as follows: EHBRHEBIRRIREOT -
Group Company
st A H
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007
RGE eRE RGE eREt
A20084F A20074F A20084F A20074F
6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H
1F AR 541,335 442,944 476,551 401,905
2F LA E 697,763 697,763 697,763 697,763
1,239,098 1,140,707 1,174,314 1,099,668

(f)  Asat 30 June 2008, there were no accounts receivables from any of the
Company’s shareholders who hold 5% or more of voting shares.

(9) Asat 30 June 2008, the top 5 trade debtors balances amounted to
approximately RMB1,199 million, which are accounting for 97% of total trade
receivables. The ageing of these receivables are classified as within one year
and over two years of RMB541 million and RMB698 million respectively.

(3) PREPAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS

Prepayment for recycling
water facilities project
Prepayment for acquisition

of sewage water

processing plant
Prepayment for

construction equipment

HIREUER KT B EAEES% (55%) L L&
IRAERAD B IR A KK -

HABUEFRMABEFEARRSEATAAR
11998 BT - MEUIR KB RERO7% o H 1
FURNHNAREMBET 20U EHARYE
698EE T °

(3) ENXKE

Group Company
&6 AT
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007
REGES gREs REGEF 2B
A 20085 A2007 % A 20085 A2007%F
6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H
TR FKEETIZR
21,075 20,103 — —
TR S S 7K B IR (B K
— 24,000 — —
BN TERERE
60,682 13,861 50,072 12,984
81,757 57,964 50,072 12,984

The ageing of majority of prepayments to suppliers are aged within
one year and there were no prepayment to any of the Company’s
shareholders who hold 5% or more of voting shares.
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(4)

(3)

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Within one year
One to two years
Over two years

Including:

Project deposits

Other receivables
from customers

Others (note)

note:

Balance of the Company includes receivables from subsidiaries of RMB403,400

1 FLAR
1-2 F
2F A E

Hb g :
HREEERERRES

REPRBER

Hity (2F)

thousand (2007: RMB33,958 thousand).

As at 30 June 2008, the ageing of majority of other receivables are aged within one
year and there were no other receivables from any of the Company’s shareholders
who hold 5% or more of voting shares.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Finished goods
Spare parts and consumables

Less: Provision for declines
in the value of inventories

RATH
RS
TEHAMEE SRR

B FERBEER

(4) HAbFEWRK

Group Company
&5t AT
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007
RECEF 2RES RECEF 2REL
20084 A2007F 20084 A2007F
6A30H 12A31H 6A30H 12A31H
64,003 70,144 422,114 47,633
16,500 8,292 13,500 34,826
312 333 — —
80,815 78,769 435,614 82,459
30,550 35,500 26,050 30,500
13,554 19,836 1,000 10,810
36,711 23,433 408,564 41,149
80,815 78,769 435,614 82,459
TR

HARARFEMERKT EERTFRFARBENARE

403,400F 7T (20074 : AR#¥33,958F 7T) °

Hip BRI ERE—F AR - BIRBEPEF AR
A AEL% (B5%) A LR RER A 8 BIRAOR IR -

(5) &
Group Company
=Xt b NN

Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007
REEET 2B RGEG 2B
720085 A2007%F 720085 A2007%F
6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H
8,063 5,186 3,127 2,931
3,768 3,768 — —
209 680 94 103
12,040 9,634 3,221 3,034
(3,000) (3,000) — —
9,040 6,634 3,221 3,034
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(6) LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS (6) REIRERE

Group Company
a6t ¥ NN
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007

RGBS CRER RIECEST CRER
720084 20074 720084 200745

6A30H 12831H 6A30H 12A31H
Investment in subsidiaries FRARE (iF#(a)
(note (a)) _ — 1,024,751 742,751
Investment in an associate Bt e (FTEE(b))
(note (b)) 62,312 60,793 _ _
Other long-term equity HEe RARERE
investments (note (c)) (i1 #(c)) 7,186 7,186 4,000 4,000
69,498 67,979 1,028,751 746,751
Less: Impairment provision B RERERELEE
for investment in subsidiary — — (22,000) (22,000)
69,498 67,979 1,006,751 724,751
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(a) Investment in subsidiaries

(b)

The Company’s subsidiaries are registered and established in China
other than Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection (Hong Kong)

Co., Ltd, which is registered in Hong Kong.

Quijing Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Water Recycling Co., Ltd.
Guizhou Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Capital Environmental

Protection (HK) Co., Ltd.
Fuyang Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Chibi Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Baoying Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Capital New

Materials Co., Ltd.

Honghu Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Hangzhou Tianchuang

Water Co., Ltd.
Wendeng Capital Water Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Jinghai Capital Water Co., Ltd.

Xian Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Kaiying Environmental
Engineering Technology

Consulting Co., Ltd.

The Group does not expose to significant restriction on recovery or

Investment

cost

NpReE

B

HFAIZKBERAF 108,081

K2 KERAT 98,000

BNBIEKBEBRAR 95,000
KERERR (B5)

BRAF 62,988
BIERIZEKBERAR 44,100
RERIZEKBERAR 33,250
BERIZKBERAEAF 26,600
KEREENBRAF

26,500
M A KB ERAT 18,020
MM REIKBERAF
180,212
XEEIFEKEBRAF 48,000
REFGRIEKBEERAT 2,000
AREIFEKEBRAF 270,000
KR HERETR
RirAABRAR
2,000

remittance of return on long-term investment.

Investment in an associate

The movement of the Group's investment in TIMC are as follows:

Tianjin International
Machinery Co., Ltd. (“TIMC")

Investment
cost
DIk
REHK
REEBERBRAR
54,000

(a) FRAEIERE

ARBFAFRREREREEAF
BIXRR (FR)ARAREETEEMI KT
FRARGERBIRAEMRL

Carrying Value
IREEE

Audited Unaudited
31 December 30 June
2007 2008
RS RIBET
®2007%  Additions R2008F
12A318 ARHIE 6H30H
108,081 — 108,081
98,000 — 98,000
95,000 — 95,000
62,988 — 62,988
44,100 — 44,100
33,250 — 33,250
26,600 — 26,600
26,500 — 26,500
18,020 — 18,020
180,212 — 180,212
48,000 — 48,000
2,000 10,000 12,000
— 270,000 270,000
— 2,000 2,000
742,751 282,000 1,024,751

AEETMFERARESERPUREERNER

BRI o

(b) BMELERE

REBHRZEEMRMBR D FNKEZSHN
™

Audited

31 December Share of profit

BAFH
R2007%F
12A31H

Cash

2007 of associated dividend
company paid

BERL 2
HENFER BeRA

1,519 —

60,793

Interest
Held
Frib S
%

BA (%)

90
98
95

100
99.9
99.75
70

71
90

100
100
100

100

Unaudited
30 June
2008
ARG
20085
6A30H

62,312
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(c) Other long-term equity investments

)

Tianjin Baotong Qinjiliao
Co., Ltd. (note (i)

Tianjin Northern Human
Resources Co., Ltd. (note (i)

Total - Company
Others

Total - Group

note:

(c)

(i) The Company has no significant influence on these entities. (i)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Cost
At 31 December 2007
Additions

At 30 June 2008

Accumulated depreciation
At 31 December 2007
Charge for the period

At 30 June 2008
Impairment provision
At 31 December 2007

Impairment charge

At 30 June 2008

Net book value
At 30 June 2008

At 31 December 2007

HeRERERE

Interest held Audited Unaudited
in registered 31 December 30 June
capital of 2007 2008
Investment investee BEE REBET
cost MHHRENT R20075 Disposal 20085
RERT HMERLH 12A31R KEEH 6A30H
REMEBEEH
BRAR (;HE() 2,000 4.9% 2,000 — 2,000
K& A AT RS
BRRA (GE) 2,000 6.1% 2,000 — 2,000
AEIAF 4,000 — 4,000
Hity 3,186 — 3,186
Yik=E) 7,186 — 7,186
o
ADEHEBEAFE
(7) REMEME
Unaudited
K&
Group Company
&6t AT
RE
2007 12 A 31 B#r#E 152,751 102,279
ZSEE N — —
2008 £ 6 A 30 H#%E 152,751 102,279
e
2007 4 12 A 31 B#r#E (10,163) (6,974)
ARERETER (1,686) 1,215)
2008 £ 6 A 30 H#%E (11,849) (8,189)
RIEERE
2007 4F 12 A 31 B#rHE (5,000) —
ZSERE N — —
2008 £ 6 A 30 H#%E (5,000) —
FE
2008 %F 6 A 30 B ##E 135,902 94,090
2007 £ 12 A 31 H#REE
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Cost
At 31 December 2007

Additions

Including: Transfers from CIP
Other reclassifications

Disposals

At 30 June 2008

Accumulated depreciation

At 31 December 2007

Charges for the period
Disposals

At 30 June 2008

Impairment provision
At 31 December 2007

Charges for the period

At 30 June 2008

Net book value
At 30 June 2008

At 31 December 2007

(8) FIXED ASSETS AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

8 BEEEERRIFE

Unaudited
RISER
Group
=i
Motor
Buildings & Machinery & vehicles
Road structures  equipment & others Total
EER EREH
B BEY WaERE ke &t
e
2007 &

12 A 31 B%%E 185,418 2,970,801 627,466 124,526 3,908,211
AREE N — 673,958 20,143 5,897 699,998
Hi: ARIREA — — — — —

HinBH%E — — — — —
KERD — — (489) (1,464) (1,953)
2008

6 A 30 B#%E 185,418 3,644,759 647,120 128,959 4,606,256
ZEME — — — — —
2007 &

12 A 31 BE%E (54,807) (498,720) (216,746) (64,618) (834,891)
AEBE N (5,726) (50,134) (21,297) (7,688) (84,845)
KERD — — 2 884 886
2008 £

6 A 30 B4 (60,533) (548,854) (238,041) (71,422) (918,850)
AR
2007 &

12 A 31 BE% — — (4,068) (932) (5,000)
AEER — — — — —
2008 £

6 730 B#E — — (4,068) (932) (5,000)
FE
2008 FF

6 A 30 A4 124,885 3,095,905 405,011 56,605 3,682,406
2007 &

12 A 31 BE%E 130,611 2,472,081 406,652 58,976 3,068,320
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Unaudited

REER
Company
EN
Motor
Buildings & Machinery & vehicles
Road structures  equipment & others Total
EER BEKR EREH
B REN  BERS REE it
Cost RE
At 31 December 2007 2007 &
12 A 31 BE4E 185,418 2,314,482 204,987 80,001 2,784,888
Additions AREE M — — — 1,405 1,405
Including: Transfers from CIP Hep: ERTREA | — — — — —|
Disposals KEREL — — (473) (704) (1,177)
At 30 June 2008 2008
6 A 30 B 185,418 2,314,482 204,514 80,702 2,785,116
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE
At 31 December 2007 2007 F
12 A 31 BE (54,807) (457,343) (159,214) (48,643) (720,007)
Charges for the period AREEM (5,726) (36,581) (8,741) (4,244) (55,292)
Disposals KERD — — — 358 358
At 30 June 2008 2008
6 A 30 BErEE (60,533) (493,924) (167,955) (52,529) (774,941)
Net book value HE
At 30 June 2008 2008 F
6 A 30 B 124,885 1,820,558 36,559 28,173 2,010,175
At 31 December 2007 2007
12 A 31 BAE 130,611 1,857,139 45,773 31,358 2,064,881
(a) Allof the Group’s road, buildings and structures and plants are
located in the PRC.
(b) Of the Group’s net book value of property, plant and equipment (a) AEENMEER  FENEEYIEE
as at 30 June 2008, about RMB230 million (2007: RMB205 BURPBIREA -
million) relates to the Company’s subsidiary, Tianjin Water .
) bany Y, o (b) #ZE2008%6A30H + KRR ZFRAK

Recycling Co. Ltd., which has been incurring accumulated
losses since commencement of its operations. As at 30 June
2008, the accumulated loss is approximately RMB14 million
(2007: 15 million). However, given the promising prospects of
water recycling industry as encouraged by the PRC
government, the Directors of the Company believes there is no
indication at the current stage that these assets may be
permanently impaired.
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9

(c) Ownership of certain purchased assets included fixed assets with (c)
cost of RMB494 million (2007: RMB476 million) has yet to be or
is in the process of being transferred to the Group. As these
assets are supported by legal sale and purchase agreements, the
Directors of the Company believe that the titles will be received
in due course without additional significant cost to the Group,

if any.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Project name

IRERAR

Dong Jiao Water Recycling project
RABEK

Bei Chen Water Recycling project
JERFK

Others

g

Total - Company
AATAH

Xian Yang Lu Water Recycling project
R KERIE

ChiBi
FRESKEER

Others
£

Total - Group

s

Including: Capitalised borrowings cost

Ed: EREREAER
- Company
—ARF
- Group
=i

Budget cost

BEY

129,072

97,000

141,000

97,000

REVEIARA ©

(9) EEIR

Audited
31 December Transfersto  Unaudited
2007  Additions fixed asset 30 June 2008
BB RGBS
2007% 20085
128318 ABgm  KHEE 6A30A
15,344 29,194 — 44,538
14,639 6,218 — 20,857
274 336 — 610
30,257 35,748 — 66,005
85,243 2,281 — 87,524
76,942 23,809 — 100,751
688 4,391 — 5,079
193,130 66,229 — 259,359
4,254 2,976 — 7,230

Sources of funds

EERR

Self-raised fund
BEERBAIER
Self-raised fund
BEERBAIER

Bank borrowings and
self-raised fund
BERRTER
Bank borrowings and
self-raised fund
BERRTER

EEEEMLTHEREPRERRAAR
¥4 9418 7T (20074F « AR®4.76187T)
WINBEE  HERERFESRNENR
EERIEP o B EAiSNEE EH KB
BEAMEET  ARREEREEERE
ER I FEEMEEER b IAgEAS

Incurred costs to
budget costs ratio (%)

IRRAEREHLA%

35

22

62
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(10) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Land use rights i RE
Others Hity
Land use rights T AR
Others Hfth

(11) LONG-TERM PREPAID EXPENSES

30-year asset beneficiary
right-Fu yang
Others Hfth

(10) BLEE

31 December

Unaudited
REE
Group
At

30 June Accumulated

Cost 2007  Additions Amortisation 2008 amortisation
200746 20084

RE 12A31H REEM PiNCE £ 6A30F RifE#E

807,362 676,912 — (9,452) 667,460 (139,902)

2,856 755 1,910 (886) 1,779 1,077)

810,218 677,667 1,910 (10,338) 669,239 (140,979)

31 December

Unaudited
REET
Company
a7

30 June Accumulated

2530 F s
e (58

Cost 2007  Additions Amortisation 2008 amortisation
2007F 20084
RE 128318 AREE rEEBE 6A30F ERiEH#EE
680,703 563,359 — (6,989) 556,370 (124,333)
2,684 755 1,738 (876) 1,617 (1,067)
683,387 564,114 1,738 (7,865) 557,987 (125,400)
(1) REAGEER
Unaudited
REE
Group
&
31 December 30 June Year of
Cost 2007 Addition Amortisation 2008 Unamortized
Ria 20075 H KH 20084 Eo)a3 !
BEH 12A318 g BuEE 6A30H FR
102,004 94,921 — (1,701) 93,220 27
4,250 3,252 — (576) 2,676
126,254 98,173 — (2,277) 95,896

Pursuant to the agreement reached between the Company’s
subsidiary - Fuyang Capital Water Co., Ltd.(“Fuyang Water”) and
Fuyang Construction Committee on 18 December 2005, RMB102
million was paid to Fuyang Construction Committee for a 30-year

right to operate Fuyang sewage water plant.

BEAARZ T RARIERBAIZKEERA R
([BMKE)) BB MERZE B €1 2005F
12A18B &I 8:E - BEKBEIEREMS
KEERIOFHMEELS D RTER - WAL
STRARE102BTHEE -
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(12) SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

China Minsheng Bank
China CITIC Bank

Bohai Bank

China Construction Bank

Total (Company)

Zheshang Bank
Tianjin Branch

Total (Group)

PEIRARTT
hEIRTT
HBIRTT
HERIRTT

E NS
WrRAT
REHTT

Unaudited
30 June
2008
RQETT
720084
6A30H

100,000
200,000

499,890

799,890
45,000

844,890

(12) EHfE R

Audited
31 December Guarantor
2007
ERE
7200745
12A31H EHRA
55,000 —
100,000 —
155,000
— Tianjin Municipal Investment
Company Limited (“TMICL")
RKAETHHREFRAA
(PR E]D)

155,000

The above short-term borrowings bear interest rate ranging from

6.56% to 8.22% per annum.

(13) ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

ot r2 H
8.22% °

(13) B RRX
HIREMNRFIRR I BE —FARNBERMNR

As at 30 June 2008, the ageing of majority of accounts payable are
aged within one year and there were no accounts payable to any of
the Company’s shareholders which hold 5% or more of the voting

shares.

(14) ADVANCES FROM CUSTOMERS

Advances for recycled water

pipeline connection services

Advances from TSC
Advances for Project Hangu
Others

AW KE

BERE
FEWHIK R RIFRIR
EEIRE TH

HE

R FHENEKZ656%E

BARRAS% (B5%) LA EFRIRER 7 H) IR R &

FRIE °
(14) W IR
Group Company

a6t ¥ N
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007
REES EREs REEG EREs
120085 120075 120085 120075
6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H
155,510 143,092 — —
— 27,385 — 27,385

27,909 — 27,909

4,147 864 3,968 714
187,566 171,341 31,877 28,099

As at 30 June 2008, the ageing of majority of advances from
customers are aged within one year and there were no advances from
any of the Company’s shareholders which hold 5% or more of voting

shares.

ARAXBRROERATDVO-ZEZNFEHIHRE
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(15) TAXES PAYABLE

Income tax BRI EFTER
Business tax and others EREEHLREY

(16) DIVIDEND PAYABLE

Adividend in respect of year ended 31 December 2007 of RMB0.04
(gross tax) per share, total shares of 1,427 million shares as at 31
December 2007, amounting to a total dividend of RMB57 million, is
proposed at the Annual General Meeting on 17 June 2008 (2007:
RMBO0.04 (gross tax) per share, amounting to a total dividend of

RMB56 million).

(17) OTHER PAYABLES

Construction costs payable FERT R AR
Payable for purchase of JETRE B EIE
fixed assets BERIA

Others He

Total

As at 30 June 2008, the ageing of majority of other payables are aged
within one year and there were no other payables to the Company’s

shareholders which hold 5% or more of voting shares.

(1) ERXBE

Group Company
&6 KAF
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007
RGBS 2RES RESEF 2RES
20084 20075 20084 20075
6A30H 12A31H 6A30H 12A31H
(9,317) 62,299 (12,101) 56,334
6,941 7,428 4,262 5,308
(2,376) 69,727 (7,839) 61,642
(16) BB F

NARN2008F6 A17HBHMBEASRB
R AE E2007F 128318 1F 2 @K
142718 AES  BRIREHRSOAFNARE
0.04T (B8 TRE » £ ARMB0OE7ET
(20075 : BRIRFRSLF ARK0.047T
(B®/) FIRE - Hit AR¥0.56187T) °

(17) H At FE S K
Group Company
ant ¥ NN
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007
RBFES ERES REEE ERES
20085 120075 20085 120075
6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H
97,921 56,377 88,503 45,562
39,710 39,710 — —
9,066 17,199 66,657 55,395
146,697 113,286 155,160 100,957

HAREMEMNREREEE—FUARNBERES
BERRAIS% (B5%) A ERRER D ERRE
RIFRIE o
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(18) OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

(18) Hitt B EE
Group Company
=X ¥ N
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007
EN S ERE K& 2RET
20085 720075 20085 720075
6A30H 12A31H 6A30H 12A31H
Specific purpose fund EEES 121,432 138,862 16,364 32,727
Including: Specific fund Hep : X2
granted by BEEA
Tianjin Municipal B®
Engineering (it#(a))
Bureau (note (a)) 94,455 95,522 — —
Specific fund RAETBA
granted by other H th FRFT
authorities of BIEES
Tianjin Municipal (it#(b))
Government
(note (b)) 10,613 10,613 — —
Loan of state treasury —FEREEH
bonds due within EEREES
one year (Kt5£75(20))
(Note 6(20)) 16,364 32,727 16,364 32,727
121,432 138,862 16,364 32,727
note:
T

(a) Specific purpose fund granted by TMEB to the Company’s subsidiary Tianjin
Recycled Water Co., Ltd. for the construction of Tianjin Jizhuangzi Sewage
Water Recycling Project.

(b) Specific fund obtained from other authorities of the Tianjin Municipal
Government mainly for the construction of Tianjin Jizhuangzi Sewage Water
Recycling Project.

The specific payables described in (a), (b) above are interest free as
at end of the period and the date and method of repayment will only
be determined after the completion of the construction project. The
repayment scheme for those loans mentioned above is still under
negotiation. As the terms are uncertain, these loans have been
classified as current liabilities.

(a) ARFBZFRABREFRKERABERENED
ESNERES  ARLHEFISKEBIRER

[

(b)) WRETBRFEMIAFPIESHNERES  T2A
W FISKEBITRER -

JA E(a) ~ (o) Ptz EIEEN B ES 2 B
REXRFRTFE - URARBEEBEE TXE
TREBEEERBYNTE - D RHAAEN
ERET B ER R o m R AR R R i R
E bdENFRBEEEARBEIE -
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(19) LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

AR
Company

AT
Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2008 2007
REEF ERES
R2008%F R2007F
6H30H 12A31H

790,000 434,000

186,000 601,000

976,000 1,035,000
434,000 334,000

1,410,000 1,369,000

404,000 471,000
158,000 158,000
300,000 300,000
498,000 190,000
_ 200,0(5
50,000 50,000

(19) REER
The borrowings mature as follows:
REVERAREE
Group
&t
Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2008 2007
RGETT BB
A 20084 A20074%
6A30H 12A31H
Payable after one year —FU XA
Payable in the second year E-FRNZ 863,790 476,790
Payable in the third year BE=FEFERFAXNM

to fifth year 491,220 791,820

Payable after the fifth year AFUAEBESA 521,115 377,640
1,876,125 1,646,250

Payable within one year —F AR 483,790 416,250
2,359,915 2,062,500

Including: HpaE

State Development Bank BIRFASRTT (71 (a))

(note(a)) 404,000 471,000
Industrial Commerce REITERTT (7 Db))

Bank of China (note(b)) 699,000 399,000
Shanghai Pudong FEBRERRT (i)

Development Bank (note(c)) 320,000 320,000
Agriculture Development B RZERTT (&)

Bank of China (note(d)) 622,540 300,000
China Construction Bank RREIRRIRTT (7))

(note(e)) 214,375 222,500
China CITIC Bank F{EIRTT — 200,000
China Everbright Bank (note(f)) FEIXKRIT (FFE(f) 50,000 95,000
Bank of China (note(g)) REIERTT (:7#(g)) 50,000 55,000

2,359,915 2,062,500

1,410,000 1,369,000
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note :

(@)

(b)

(d)

(e

®

(9

This borrowing is secured by TMEB’s guarantee together with certain of its fee
collection rights. The interests are paid every three months and the principal
shall be repaid in 4 instalments before 28 June 2011.

This borrowing includes RMB541 million borrowed by the Company’s
subsidiary, Hangzhou Capital Water Co., Ltd., secured by the Company’s
guarantee. The remaining balance of about RMB158 million is an unsecured
borrowing. The interests are paid every one month and the principal shall be
repaid in 2 instalments before 1 February 2010.

This borrowing includes RMB20 million borrowed by the Company’s
subsidiary, Tianjin Recycling Water Co., Ltd., secured by the Company’s
guarantee, the remaining balance of about RMB300 million is an unsecured
borrowing. The interests of borrowings of RMB20 million are paid in three
months and the principal shall be repaid in 4 instalments before 27 June 2013,
whilst the interests of borrowings of RMB300 million are paid in every three
months and the principal shall be repaid before 27 June 2009.

These borrowings are borrowed by the Company and its two subsidiaries,
Chibi Capital Water Co., Ltd. and Fuyang Capital Water Co., Ltd. The balance
includes RMB498 million and RMB59.54 million secured by the guarantee of
Tianjin Municipal Infrastructure Construction Investment Group Co., Ltd and
the Company respectively. The interests of borrowings of RMB498 million are
paid every three months and the principal shall be repaid before 2011, whilst
the interests of borrowings of RMB59.54 miillion are paid in every one month
and the principal shall be repaid before 2 August 2019. The remaining
balance of about RMB65 million is secured by the Company’s guarantee
during the construction period of a subsidiary together with the subsidiary’s
certain fixed asset after completion of its construction. The interests are paid
in one month and the principal shall be repaid in 9 instalments before 20
January 2017.

The balance includes RMB180 million secured by the right to receive tap
water and sewage water processing fees. The remaining balance of about
RMB34 million is secured by the Company’s guarantee. The interests of
RMB180 million borrowings are paid every three months and the principal
shall be repaid in 11 instalments before 6 May 2018. Whilst the interests of
RMB34 million borrowings are paid every month and the principal shall be
repaid in 20 instalments before 22 December 2013.

This borrowing is secured by the TSC’s right to receive sewage water
processing fees together with TMICL's guarantee. The interests are paid every
three months and the principal shall be repaid in 2 instalments before 30 April
2012.

This borrowing is borrowed by the Company’s subsidiary, Baoying Capital
Water Co., Ltd., secured by the Company’s guarantee. The interests are paid
in three months and the principal shall be repaid in 11 instalments before 15
March 2018.

These long term bank borrowing are all interest bearing with
weighted average effective interest rate at the balance sheet date of
7.5% (2007: 6.9%).

T

(e)

(9)

ZERBRETRBRERFERRALBEAE
BRHOHBIWBEELAREN - FEBEFTEXN—
W RNEER2011F6 28R o WEREE -

Hh ARMB5A1BBITARRRF A AN KREIK
BAERAFZER  AARRIREREER - 7
BEAYN—IK  A&ER2016F11A22HATH
NEEE  BIMIARBIGBEETALARAZE
BEZ  FIBEAXNMN—K  KEMERN201052
B1BoRo —HEE -

HPp ARE20EEBTAARAFRARAIKERKE
BETARZMER  BRETRIREBR DRI
HRJER FEEFEIMN K KAEER
20136 A27ARI D WHIEE + BINIARKES00
BETAARRRIZERAER  FESFEIHN—
R ARE ER2009F 6527 RIERE ©

ZERBADNBRFRARINREREKEERRAA]
MEBGAIEKBERARZER - ARRARE
A8EBEXRABEERRMRIFER  MEEE
SR REER2011EFEREE - FREAIEK
BERARNARKSES THEREBEESRS
HAARIRMRFER  BEELHBREAARIR
HIBRINABEE R E T EERMEFER -
FMEFBALMN—X - AL EMR2017F1 8208 A]
ANEBEER  BBAIZEKBERARARESI.4
BETHERBAARRBRELER  FIEFA
Sk REER2019F8A2HATEE »

Hh AR 180E BT EFIAKR QR F A AIHIE
Bl F KT A R A B ) 8 SRR WA RE RS 7K R 12
ANEEALGH FEEBFEIN—K  AE&ER
2018F5A6HAT D 11HIER - BINMIARMBEIAE
ETERABARRFRAAEMAIZEKEERAT
BAQARHRAREBFRR  FESFAXMF—K &
£ EMN2013F 128228 81D —+X(EE -

ZiERABKABRRMISKEEEREBREERE
AR RREMREEAERDBIRBRELR -
MEBFEXN—R AL ER20129F4A30R
Al —HEE -

ZERRARRFRARAIBEEAEKBEEREEIR
AZER - AXDARBRBER  FEEFE
T —k A& ER2018F 3815881 H +— 8

e -

ZERBRTEFRETZAZT BN NETHE
BT 5% (20074 : 6.9%) 5T & °
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(20) LONG-TERM PAYABLES (20) RERFE(S X

Group and Company

EHRADT
Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2008 2007
REEG ERE
720084 20074
6H30H 12A31H
Specific fund granted by Tianjin Municipal RETBREERES (i)
Engineering Bureau (note) 163,636 180,000
Current portion of long-term W BIARBEEN —FARHTER
payables (Note 6(18)) (Ktaz7~(18)) (16,363) (32,727)
147,273 147,273
note: R
The RMB180 million from TMEB taken during 2005 is specifically for construction of FR2006FEARNRBRETHRESEEREES AR
Sewage Water processing plants. The loan is repayable in equal instalments over M1 .88 - ARISKERIERER - ZERE2007F 1
eleven years from 2007. The loan bears interest at 5% per annual for the first two DNEFEHEERE - ERFFER2FB5% - #£20085F
years. From 2008 to maturity, the interest will be based on the one-year deposit plus EBRNEAEFREAPEARBITIAMGH —FHERE
2% premium published by the People’s Bank of China on the effective date. FEmM2% °
(21) SPECIFIC PAYABLES (21) BEENARK
Group Company
ant ¥ NN
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007

RACEG ERE RECES ERE
A 20084 200745 A 20084 200745

6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H
Specific construction HIERRESBR (TE)
fund (note) 28,800 — 28,800 —
note: AR
Specific construction fund was granted to the Company for construction of two RERBERETHRBESHERES  ARRIE
recycling water processing plants from Tianjin Finance Bureau. A KRN R B A KB TA2 2 A% ©
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(22) SHARE CAPITAL (22) RA

The changes in share capital are set out below (unit:"000 shares)

BRABBIERMT (B - T -

Group and Company
GOHEARADTF

Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2008 2007
REET 2&EG
120085 120075
6A30H 12A31H
Restricted circulating shares PR ) 1 7 A% 664,086 730,620
-TMICL —REMBIREBRAA] 664,086 730,620
- Enterprise Legal Person shareholders —EABRRER — —
Circulating A shares i A B 423,142 356,608
Circulating H shares i H R 340,000 340,000
Total shares R D 4858 1,427,228 1,427,228

“A” share represent shares listed on the Shanghai Securities
Exchange and “H” shares represent shares listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. All the “A” and “H” shares
with nominal value of RMB1.00 each rank pari passu in all respects.

note:

In respect of the restricted circulating “A” Shares held by TMICL, TMICL can only
sell a maximum of 10% of its total shares within 3 years after the stock reform in
March 2006. During this period, about 66 million restricted circulating shares were
become non-restricted and none share belonging to TMICL was sold.

ABIERRARELBESZ S EWEOE -
HEERARAREZERBHARZABARAR LR
FHERE - SREABESAREITHAEAR
MHEESTHHAZBR SRS -

SR

BRREMBURE BB A AIATH A KR G 1R BARK -
KEMHILEER A AE2006F3 8 KR ENE TR %
=SFARZAHEEMBARMHNI0O% - XEH6EE
BEREHFEHORBRBA LIEFRFAMBERS R
HEM 2HBERRETBREERAA -
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(23) CAPITAL RESERVE (23)EXRE

Unaudited
RQET
Group
=X
31 December 30 June
2007 Additions Reductions 2008
20074 #2008
12A31R R Pl KER D 6A30H
Share premium A (B 380,788 — — 380,788
Other capital surplus — HhEARNTE—
Transfers in according to REIEERRBEBA
Old Accounting Standards 2,550 — — 2,550
383,338 — — 383,338
Unaudited
RBFES
Company
¥V
31 December 30 June
2007 Additions Reductions 2008
20074 20085
12A31H AN HA 52 0 RER D 6H30H
Share premium MA@ (B 380,788 — — 380,788
380,788 — — 380,788
As at 30 June 2008, capital reserve represents share premium arising BARNEHZE2008F6 A0 AT AEITRMD
from the issuance of shares, and it can be utilised to offset prior years’ BIRRZAm (B - AT AR RO S 4k LA AU SF S 4R s hn
losses or for issuance of bonus shares. N
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(24) GENERAL RESERVES

Statutory Common Reserve
EEEBRLBSE

At 31 December 2007
Additions/(Reduction)

At 30 June 2008

(24) B8R DN TE

2007 612 A 318
A, WD

2008 6 H 30 A

According to the Company Law of Peoples’ Republic of China, the
Articles of Association of the Company and the resolution of the board
of directors meeting, it is required to transfer 10% of the net profit of
the Company as shown in the accounts prepared under PRC
accounting regulations to the statutory common reserve (until the
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital). The statutory common
reserve shall only be used to make up losses or to increase the capital

of the Company.

(25) MINORITY INTERESTS

Unaudited
REEEE
Group and Company

BHRARQT

229,865

229,865

BE(FEAREMEARE) « ARFIERR
EEGHRE  ARRIREEFFNEN10%IE
BEERBAES  BEETRABAESRNE
ER R AME0% A LR - Al REIRE c SAEA
AT EHER AT AR EMEE - &N
N

(25) LEIR R ERE

Minority interests attributable to respecting subsidiaries’ minority

shareholders are set out as below:

Hangzhou Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Baoying Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Quijing Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Guizhou Capital Water Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Capital New Materials Co., Ltd.

Honghu Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Water Recycling Co., Ltd.
Chibi Capital Water Co., Ltd.
Fuyang Capital Water Co., Ltd.

MM REKEER AR

BRI KBBEREEAR

IS AR AR AR
BMBIRKBERAR
REBEEMERAA]
HATAIZKBEER AT
RAEFKBRAT]
FREERIFKBBRAR
RBRIRKBERAR

BENSFRRLBERN D HIRRER

Group
A Bt

Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December
2008 2007
REEG ERES
20085 120075
6H30H 12A31H
81,128 80,582
12,497 12,538
11,146 11,150
5,749 5,598
1,837 1,951
1,952 1,911
1,088 1,075
58 58
8 7
115,463 114,870
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(26) INCOME FROM AND COST FOR OPERATIONS

Income from principal
operations
Other operating income

FERBUEA

HAdRBUEA

(@) Income from and cost for principal operations

Sewage water
processing income

Tolls income

Tap water supply income

Water recycling supply
and pipeline
connection income

Sales income of
construction materials

112

EVNEELON

BITHBUA
EEVICY PN
K E B
TR A

HHEREM A

(26) BRI ATE ERAE

Unaudited
RQET
Group Company
a6t ¥ N
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended ended ended ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2008 2007 2008 2007
B ZE20085F #E2007F #E2008F HE2007F
6H30H 6H30H 6H30H 6H30H
t6fE A +6fE A t6fE A t6fE A
518,968 461,804 358,982 363,893
8,591 13,078 7,496 3,807
527,559 474,882 366,478 367,700

(a)

Unaudited
RGBT

Group
& B

Six months ended
30 June 2008
B Z2008F6H30RA L6 A EZE200756H30H LL6{E A

TEEBWAME L EBKE

Six months ended
30 June 2007

Income from Cost for Income from Cost for
principal principal principal principal
operations operations operations operations
TEEBBA TEEBRE TEEBRA ZTEEBRE
440,689 198,990 410,799 175,734
36,930 7,404 34,880 7,634

18,915 12,505 13,169 7,604
22,434 17,770 1,745 6,169

— — 1,211 1,121

518,968 236,669 461,804 198,262
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Unaudited
REEE
Company
ARTF
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2008 30 June 2007

B =2008%6A30H L6/ A E=E200756A30H k6@ A
Income from Cost for Income from Cost for
principal principal principal principal
operations operations operations operations

TEEBBA FTEEBRE TEEBRA TEEBRE

Sewage water NS ES N
processing income 322,052 123,303 329,013 115,855
Tolls income BITHRBIA 36,930 7,404 34,880 7,634
358,982 130,707 363,893 123,489
The total revenue of the Group’s top 5 customers are amounting APAREENABREFPHENBMALRERA
to RMB458,500 thousand for six months ended 30 June 2008, R#458,600F 7T » th AN E 2= FPHE R AK
which are accounting for about 88% of the Group’s total 88% °
revenue.
(b) Income from and cost for other operations (b)  EL b SR UL AN E A 2 75 B AR
Unaudited
RQETT
Group Company
=i ARTHE
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 2008 30 June 2008
B Z£2008%F6H30H B Z£2008%F6H30H
-6fE A 1I+61E A
Income Cost for Income Cost for
from other other from other other
operations operations operations operations
Hith Ht Hith Ht
ES 3N EBRA ES 3 ON EBRA
Rental income GERAON 4,642 1,242 4,642 1,242
Others Hi 3,949 788 2,854 763
8,591 2,030 7,496 2,005
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(27) BUSINESS TAX AND SURCHARGES

Business tax
City construction fee
Education fee surcharge

(28) FINANCIAL EXPENSES - NET

Interest expenses of bank
borrowings
Less: Capitalised interest

Net interest expenses
Less: Interest income
Others

BEM

YT AR B

HEEHIM

fEM B
B BAMER S

GBS anpe it
B ABHA
HE

(27) BB & K M0

Unaudited

REEES
Group
&t

Six months

ended 30 June

Company
AT
Six months

ended 30 June

2008 2008

HZ=2008% HZ=2008%

6A30H 6A30H

E6{E A 1E6{E A

18,177 17,949

1,376 1,256

606 539

20,159 19,744

(28) I E R
Unaudited
RSB
Group Company
&6t VNN

Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended 30 ended 30 ended 30 ended 30
June 2008 June 2007 June 2008 June 2007
BZE2008F HEZ2007F HZE2008F HZE2007F

6A30AH 6H30H 6H30H 6H30H

1618 A 1E61E A 1E61E A 1E61E A
(99,792) (62,753) (67,901) (42,436)
2,976 — — —
(96,816) (62,753) (67,901) (42,436)
2,829 1,935 461 1,158
(2,551) (36) (2,529) (24)
(96,538) (60,854) (69,969) (41,302)
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(29) INCOME TAX (29) RSB E M

Unaudited
RQETT
Group Company
&6t ¥ N
Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended 30 ended 30 ended 30 ended 30
June 2008 June 2007 June 2008 June 2007
B ZE20085F #E2007F #ZE2008F HE2007F

6H30H 6H30H 6H30H 6A30H
618 A 6fE A 618 A 6@ A
Current income tax EHIFEH 31,893 47,114 28,343 44,745
Deferred income tax RIEATISH — 627 — 627
31,893 47,741 28,343 45,372
(30) EARNINGS PER SHARE (30) 5 1R W 3%
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit EXEREENEBNARFTRRIRRNE
attributable to shareholders and weighted average number of PHRFEBR AR 2 81 8 1TSS WmAREY i
ordinary shares in issue. HAHEH -
Unaudited
RGER
Group
=X
Six months Six months
ended 30 June ended 30 June
2008 2007
B Z2008%F B Z2007%F
6H30H 6H30H
1618 B L61E A
Profit attributable to equity BENAA R EER
holders of the Company PRI ) & GF % F) 95,643 110,585
Weighted average number BTN E WAL Ik
of ordinary shares in issue FHE (B8k)
(million shares) 1,427 1,367
Basic earnings per share EXxgkles (AEET)
(In RMB Yuan) 0.07 0.08
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(31) NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

BNREREBRMWE

Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities

V)

Reconciliation of net
profit to cash flows
from operating
activities

Net profit

Adjust for:

Depreciation of
fixed assets

Amortisation of
intangible assets

Losses on disposal of
fixed assets

Amortisation of long-term
deferred expenses

Finance expenses, net

Investment income

Decrease/(increase) in
inventories

Increase in operating
receivables

Increase in operating
payables

Net cash flows from
operating activities

Net (decrease)/
increase in cash
and bank balance

Cash at end of period

Less: cash at beginning
of period

(i) #BFEREHR
REFFHHNRERE

pEalbE
ms G
BTEERE

BB EBH

REBEEEFEK

R HEREH

BB MFE

KA W

FERARD, (4Em)

YRR
H3E N

R ENIRR
3N

REFHELEW

Re% (D) /
SEMER

(ii

REMFRGBR
B R FSRER

Net (decrease)/increase

in cash and bank
balance

BReE (B
g

RRENERS REERRRERE

Unaudited
RGEST
Group Company
&6t RAF

Six months Six months Six months Six months
ended 30 ended 30 ended 30 ended 30
June 2008 June 2007 June 2008 June 2007
B Z2008F BZE2007F BZE2008F HZE2007F

6A30H 6A30H 6A30H 6A30H

1E6{@E A 1E6{@E A 1E6{@ A 1-61E A
96,236 109,374 85,030 107,402
86,531 91,719 56,507 61,277
10,338 10,759 7,865 7,478
120 269 “4) 46

2,277 — — —
97,134 62,753 67,841 42,436
(2,051) (2,499) — —
(7,376) 1,101 (160) 223
(176,093) (244,864) (99,424) (225,758)
111,688 25,916 96,548 (12,240)
218,804 54,528 214,203 (19,136)
597,019 799,384 127,475 534,133
(324,971) (718,744) (80,633) (601,135)
272,048 80,640 46,842 (67,002)
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Cash and bank balances include the following for the purposes of the FRREERERNRE B
cash flow statement:

Group Company
&t AT
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007

RIEET BT RIEET BT
20084 20074 20084 2007

6H30H 12A31H 6H30H 12A31H
Cash and bank balances BERES
(Note 6(1)) (KtaE~(1)) 636,019 339,971 157,475 86,633
Less: Restricted bank deposit & : fRiE® 39,000 (15,000) (30,000) (6,000)
Cash and bank balance shown FIRRIRERERHIRES
in the cash flow statements 597,019 324,971 127,475 80,633
SEGMENT REPORTING + - 2EHE
(@) Segment information as at and for six months then ended 30 (a) 20084 6A30H %MD HIE L
June 2008
Unaudited
RBEG
Recycled
Sewage water water and
processing Road Construction  pipeline Tap water
services toll stations  materials connection supply Others Group
HkEE
BREE  ERKE  ENEE EERMK EPYS it EXi
Income from operations EEON 440,689 36,930 — 22,434 18,915 8,591 527,559
Operating expenses HEER (334,789) (19,516) (388) (18,080) (18,946) (9,723)  (401,442)
Segment profit HEFE 105,900 17,414 (388) 4354 31) ,132) 126117
Operating profit LT 107,911 17,454 (388) 4,354 31) (1,132) 128,168
Segment assets PEHBE 5,565,584 364311 35966 416339 269,244 307,575 6,959,029
Total assets EESE 5,565,584 364,311 35,966 416,339 269,244 307,575 6,959,029
Segment liabilities NEEE 3,385,914 12,027 2,504 334,087 175,183 2,129 3,911,844
Total liabilities BESE 3,385,914 12,027 2,504 334,087 175,183 2,219 3,911,844
Depreciation and amortisation 1TE R EH (80,484) (7,990) (612) (4123) (4,446) (1,491)  (99,146)
Assets impairment loss EERERX — — — — — — —
Capital expenditures BEAfZ (763,110) — — (222) (73) (2,822) (766,227)
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(b) Segment information as at and for six months then ended 30 (b) 20076 A30H X757 &1z 5
June 2007
Unaudited
REET
Recycled
Sewage water water and
processing Road Construction  pipeline Tap water
services toll stations  materials connection supply Others Group
RKEE
BREE  ERKE  BMER BERREK BRK it EXi
Income from operations EEBA 410,799 34,880 1,211 1,745 13,169 13,078 474,882
Operating expenses 2XER (284,177) (12,385) (2,398) (10,472) (11,850) —  (321,282)
Segment profit DEF 126,622 22,495 (1,187) (8,727) 1,319 13,078 153,600
Operating profit BEFH 126,622 22,495 (1,187) (8,727) 1,319 15,577 156,099
Segment assets PEEE 4,931,388 322,798 31,868 368,897 238,564 272,535 6,166,050
Total assets BERE 4,931,388 322,798 31,868 368,897 238,564 272,535 6,166,050
Segment liabilities ABEE 2,884,029 10,244 2133 284,566 149,216 1,814 3,332,002
Total liabilities BEeE 2,884,029 10,244 2,133 284,566 149,216 1,814 3,332,002
Depreciation and amortisation 1TER&$ B (80,892) (3,270) (941) (4,113) (5,042) (8,220)  (102,478)
Assets impairment loss EERERX — — — — — — —
Capital expenditures EARMESH 72,400 — — 11,516 — 2,233 86,149
The geographical segment analysis is not applicable since all of BMRAEEAEEBHERBEA - Bt
the Group’s operations are in the PRC. THEBRME S HES -

118 Tianjin Capital Environmental Protection Company Limited 4 2008 Interim Report



8 RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS N -BEIERERERS
(1) RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS (1) BB FERR

(a) Related parties that have controlling relationship (a) FHEZEHIBEENEBS

Place of Relationship with  Type of Legal
Name of related party registration Principal activities the Company enterprise representative
BELEH gt TEEH ERLARE BEnE EERARA
Tianjin Municipal Investment Tianjin, Development, Controlling Limited Ma Bai Yu
Company Limited (“TMICL") the PRC construction and shareholder of company
management of the Company
municipal infrastructures
RETMHRAERAA nmERE AR R 2R AR SBXE
(MHRE) RERER
£«< .L* -4 E
Tianjin Urban Infrastructure Tianjin, Investment and Ultimate holding Limited Wang Zhou Xi
Construction Investment Group ~ the PRC construction of urban company of the company
Co., Ltd. ("TUICIG") environmental Company
infrastructures, market
establishment
development services,
lease private properties,
and development and
operation of public
facilities projects
RERTERRE hERE BHRRERRE REERAT BRAF IRE
BRBEEE WiE BR
BRAF mERRARRE
(R&EE) 'BEREHE
ERFERER
RARBER
REEES
Qu Jing Capital Water Co., Ltd. Qujing, Sewage water processing Subsidiary of the Limited Zhang Wen Hui
the PRC and supply of water Company company
BRIk E AKEE TR AR KX E
ERDA T BRKHEK
Gui Zhou Capital Water Co., Ltd. Guizhou, Sewage water processing Subsidiary of the Limited Gu Qi Feng
the PRC Company company
EMEEABERAA BB AKEE TR BRAT B
Fu Yang Capital Water Co., Ltd. Fuyang, Sewage water processing Subsidiary of the Limited Zhang Wen Hui
the PRC Company company
EBAEKBERAA hmEER KRR TR AR RXIE
Bao Ying Capital Water Co., Ltd. Baoying, Sewage water processing Subsidiary of the Limited Lin Wen Bo
the PRC Company company
%%%%Kﬁ hEEE AKEE TR AR R
BREAR

REAEXR
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Name of related party
BELEH

Chi Bi Capital Water Co., Ltd.

FEAEKBERAT

Hong Hu Capital Water Co., Ltd.

R R KT
AR

Tianjin Capital Environmental
Protection (HK) Co., Ltd.

REEERR(ER)
AR

Hang Zhou Capital Water Co., Ltd.

RMREKBERRA

Wen Deng Capital
Water Co., Ltd.
XEAFKHERAF

Tianjin Jing Hai Capital
Water Co., Ltd.
REFBEFKBERAA

Tianjin Water Recycling Co., Ltd.

REFKERAT

Xi An Capital Water Co., Ltd.

BREEKBERAA

Tianjin Kaiying Environmental
Project Technical Consulting
Co., Ltd.

RENRRRTREMAD
AR

Tianjin Capital New Materials
Co., Ltd.

REEFRHERAA

Place of
registration

g

Chibi,
the PRC
RERE

Honghu,
the PRC
PEH

Hong Kong,
the PRC
TEERE

Hangzhou,
the PRC
EAM

Wendeng,
the PRC
REXE
Tianjin,
the PRC
REXE
Tianjin,
the PRC

ERE

Xi'An,
the PRC
PERER

Tianjin,
the PRC

PERE

Tianjin,
the PRC

hERE

Principal activities

TREH
Sewage water processing
AKEE
Sewage water processing

KRR

Sewage water processing

HKEE

Sewage water processing
AKEE
Sewage water processing
AKEE
Sewage water processing
AKEE

Production and sales of
recycled water,
development and
construction of recycling
water equipments and
technical consulting for
water recycling business
MKEEHE
ARIERAERR
KB

Sewage water processing
KRR

Environmental project
improvement and
technical consulting

RRIEAE RMi##AS

Production and sales of
new types of construction
materials

FHRENRORERHE

Relationship with
the Company
REDABE

Subsidiary of the
Company
TR

Subsidiary of the
Company
TR

Subsidiary of the
Company
TR

Subsidiary of the
Company
TR

Subsidiary of the
Company
TR

Subsidiary of the
Company
TRl

Subsidiary of the
Company

Subsidiary of the
Company
TR

Subsidiary of the
Company

Subsidiary of the
Company
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Type of
enterprise

BENE

Limited
company

AR

Limited
company

BRAF

Limited
company

AR

Limited
company

AR

Limited
company

BRAF

Limited
company

AR

Limited
company

Limited
company

BRAF

Limited
company

BBRLT

peall]

Legal
representative
EERRA
Zhang Wen Hui
RXE

Zhang Wen Hui

RXE

Ma Bai Yu

A=k

GuQifeng

g
Lin Wen Bo
IR
GuQiFeng

B

Liu Wen Ya

fxaE

Zhang Wen Hui

RXE

LiuWen Ya

fxaE

Luo Lian Fang



(b) Paid up capital of related parties that has controlling relationship (b) TFIEEHIBRMNEE 5 M E RS
and their movements 1t
Unaudited
ES
Additions
31 December during the 30 June
2007 period 2008
R20075 "2008%F
12A31H A2 B 6A30H
TMICL MRRE 1,820,000 — 1,820,000
TUICIG BiREE 16,100,000 — 16,100,000
Qu Jing Capital Water Co., Ltd. A K AR AR 120,000 — 120,000
Gui Zhou Capital Water Co., Ltd. EMBIFARBEERAT 100,000 — 100,000
Tianjin Water Recycling Co., Ltd. REFKERLRT 100,000 — 100,000
Tianjin Capital New Materials Co., Ltd. ~ KZEIEEM AR AT 37,500 — 37,500
Fu Yang Capital Water Co., Ltd. BI5EIEKEERAT 45,000 — 45,000
Bao Ying Capital Water Co., Ltd. BRI EKBBRETLT 38,000 — 38,000
Chi Bi Capital Water Co., Ltd. FREEBIFKEBRAT 35,000 — 35,000
Hong Hu Capital Water Co., Ltd. BB A KEER AR 20,000 — 20,000
Hang Zhou Capital Water Co., Ltd. MMKREIKIEER AT 257,445 — 257,445
Wen Deng Capital Water Co., Ltd. XERIEKEAR AT 48,000 — 48,000
Tianjin Jing Hai Capital Water REFHBEIFKBEERAR
Co., Ltd. 2,000 10,000 12,000
Xi An Capital Water Co., Ltd. AL RIEKEAR AT — 270,000 270,000
Tianjin Kaiying Environmental REHFRFTIRRAM
Engineering Technology Consulting HABRAT
Co., Ltd. — 2,000 2,000
usb’000 usb’000 usb’000
ETTTT ETTT ETTT
Tianjin Capital Environmental KEEIERR ()
Protection (HK) Co., Ltd. BRAF] 7,840 — 7,840
(c) Share or equity of the Company held by a related party and its (c) TFIE+E IR R BEE 75 P A2 &R 19 3k
movements R REE
Unaudited
RBET
Reduction during
As at 31 December 2007 the period As at 30 June 2008
720074128318 FHED B R200856A30R
RMB’000 % RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETT ol AREFT ol ARETFT B
T™ICL MERE 774,985 54.3% — — 774,985 54.3%

ARAXBRROERATDVO-ZEZNFEHIHRE
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(2) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During this period, except for those as mentioned elsewhere of these
financial statements, the following is a summary of significant
transactions and balances with related companies which were carried
out in the normal course of operations of the Group.

Related parties

BT B REME
(@) Income:
(@) A
TSC Revenue from sewage water processing
REMHIKAT] services (Note 1(a)) (note)
KRR EWA (AfiE—(a) ()
TUICIG Rental income*
ogse St HE A >

(b)
(b)

©)

note:

Nature of transaction

*  Thelease agreement had been signed with TUICIG before
it became to the related party of the Company.

Key management compensation

BAsEETE A B

In September 2005, Tianjin Municipal Government stipulated
the Principles of Concession Services Arrangements of Tianjin
Municipal Public Utilities (the “Principles”). Pursuant to the
Principles, TJCAC replaces TSC as the Company’s ultimate
customer effective September 2005.

TSC and the Group were both previously supervised by Tianjin Municipal
Engineering General Company (“TMEGC"”). Pursuant to the restructuring of
TMEGC, effective from November 2007, TSC is no longer related to the Group.
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B X 5 K ERE

AmEH - BRAMBHRERT BB
TRBERN  AEBHBHTERESE
BRETHEMEARISWMT :

Unaudited

RGES
Six months Six months
ended ended
30 June 2008 30 June 2007
B Z2008%F B ZE2007%F
6H30H 6H30H
t6fE A IF6f@E A
— 329,013
3,869 2,837

* HEBREERNRBREEKRANE
Ellee)cp gl

3,875 3,201
2005598 - REMBMHEEB(KRE
THHRABEERTLEEEENE)
(KEEWEY]) - BEBEZ(EBEIEN
BT BERABE2005F9AM  KEH
BREEENALRANRRER -

B

REMHKRAREBAEERBSAZRETR TIZERQF
(THRIER) EENBEELE BRI RIRERBNE
- B2007F 1M AR REMPKARTHRARFN
BARE T o
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10

COMMITMENTS

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Sewage Water processing
plants in:
- Hang Zhou
- Wendeng
- Jing Hai
- ChiBi
- Xi An
—E Zhou

Water recycling plants:
—Dong Jiao
—Bei Chen
— Xian Yang Lu

Total-Group

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  +

EIKEERIEE
— M
- X
— &
— JREE
-
—ZFN
FOKRIEE -
—HRBHEK
— b RAIKER
— BB S/KE A IR
X

bR

A B
BEXRMEARSA

Contracted but not
provided for

Authorised but not
contracted for

BEARRE EMERED
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
30 June 31 December 30 June 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2007
REEET 2REG REEET 2B
B Z2008F HBZE2007F H#ZE2008F H#HE2007F
6H30H1 12A31H1 6H30H1 12A31H1E
RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million RMB’ million
ARBBEET ARKBEET ARKHEET ARKBEET
341 341 — —
60 96 — —
37 43 — —
— 12 — 7
— — — 643
— — — 95
32 50 59 59
12 14 58 59
4 10 49 50
486 566 166 913

s R ZER D

The accounts were approved by the Directors of the Company on 21

August 2008.

K IEHRERP2008F8A21 BEEMA AR ES

GREEE -
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VII. Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s listed securities

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of
the listed securities of the Company during the reporting period.

Vill. Audit Committee

On 31st July 2001, the Board approved the establishment of the Audit
Committee to review and supervise the Company’s financial reporting
procedure and internal controls. The Audit Committee comprises the
independent non-executive Directors Messrs. Ko Poming, Xie Rong and
Di Xiaofeng. The Audit Committee, together with the management of
the Group have reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed with the management of the Group the
internal controls and financial reporting matters including the review of
the unaudited interim results and the Interim Report. The Audit Committee
agreed with the accounting principles, standards and methods adopted
in the preparation of the Group’s unaudited interim accounts for the six
months ended 30th June 2008.

IX. Code on Corporate Governance Practices

None of the Directors is aware of any information that would reasonably
indicate that the Company is not or was not, for any part of the reporting
period, in compliance with the code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

X. Model Code for Securities Transactions
by the Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the securities
transactions by the Directors and Supervisors on the term exactly the
same as the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in the Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. The Company, having made specific enquiry of all
the Directors and Supervisors, confirmed that all the Directors and
Supervisors have complied with the code of conduct regarding the
securities transactions by the Directors and Supervisors during the
reporting period.

X1. Documents Available for Inspection

1. Textand summary of the 2008 Interim Report signed by the chairman
of the Company;

2. Financial statements signed and sealed by the legal representative,
officer in charge of the accounting function and the officer in charge
of the accounting department of the Company;

3. Original copies of the documents and announcements of the
Company which were publicly disclosed on newspapers specified
by CSRC during the period covered by this report; and

4.  The Articles of Association of the Company.

By order of the Board
Ma Baiyu
Chairman

Tianjin, the PRC

21 August 2008
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NEBEERE
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1 BEARREERFFN2008FFHIRELE R
HEE

2 BAEARRDEERERA TEEHTHENAEA
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4 RRARBAGFEIR -

EREERgMm
BEBE
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RE - RE
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